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In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with the tax covenants described herein, and the accuracy of certain represeniations and

certifications made by the Corporation and the City described herein, interest on the Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B1 Bonds is excluded from gross income for

Federal income tax purposes under Section 1013 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest is not
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and the Series 2007-B1 Bonds is, however, included in the adjusted current earnings of cerfain corporations for purposes of computing the alfernative minimum fax imposed on

such corporations. Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that inferest on all of the Bonds is exempt from California personal income faxes. See “TAX MATTERS REGARDING
SERIES 2007-A BONDS AND SERIES 2007-B1 BONDS” and “TAX MATTERS REGARDING SERIES 2007-B2 BONDS” herein regarding certain other fax considerations.
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The Bonds {each a “Series” of Bonds and referred to individually herein as the “Series 2007-A Bonds,” the “Series 2007-B1 Bonds” and the “Series 2007-B2 Bonds™
and collectively as the “Bonds,” and the Series 2007-B1 Bonds and the Series 2007-B2 Bonds being referred to collectively as the “Series 2007-B Bonds™) will be issued
pursuant to the Indenture dated as of August 1, 2007 (the “Indenture™), by and among the Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles (the “Corporation”), the City
of Los Angeles, California (the “City™), and U.S. Bank National Association, Los Angeles, California, as trustee (the “Trustee™). The Bonds are being issued: (i) with respect
to the Series 2007-A Bonds, to refinance, through the redemption of outstanding commercial paper notes of the Corporation, costs associated with the acquisition of certain
capital equipment used by the City; (ii) with respect to the Series 2007-B Bonds, to finance the costs of acquisition of an office building complex and parking structure
(“Figueroa Plaza™) occupied by certain City departments and other tenants; (iii) with respect to the Series 2007-B Bonds, to reimburse the City for certain internal borrowings
relating to the acquisition of Figueroa Plaza; (iv) to purchase a Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy, as further described below, for each Series of the Bonds in a maximum
amount not less than the amount of the Reserve Requirement for said Series of Bonds; and (v) to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds.

The Bonds are being issued as full y registered bonds, registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC"),
and will be available to ultimate purchasers in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, under the book-entry system maintained by DTC. Ultimate
purchasers of Bonds will not receive physical certificates representing their interest in the Bonds. Interest on the Bonds will be payable on February 1 and August 1 of each
year, commencing February 1, 2008. The Trustee will make payments of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds directly to DTC, or its nominee,
Cede & Co., so long as DTC or Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds. Disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds is the responsibility
of DTC’s Participants and Indirect Participants, as more fully described herein. See APPENDIX E — “DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.”

The Bonds of each Series are payable from the Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) pledged to such Series under the Indenture. Such Revenues primarily consist of
Basic Lease Payments to be made by the City to the Corporation under the Lease Agreement (hereinafter described and defined) securing such Series. The Bonds of each
Series are also payable from certain funds and accounts held under the Indenture and pledged to said Series of Bonds as described further herein, and insurance or
condemnation awards, if any, arising under the respective Lease Agreement. Pursuant to the Lease Agreements, the City will lease certain property therein described (the
“Property”) from the Corporation. The City is required under the Lease Agreements to make payments in each fiscal year in consideration for the use and possession of the
Property described in said Lease Agreement from any source of available funds in an amount sufficient to pay the annual principal and interest due on the Bonds of such
Series secured by the respective Lease Agreement, subject under certain circumstances to abatement, as described herein. The Series 2007-A Bonds are secured solely by,
and payable solely from, the Basic Lease Payments to be made by the City under the Equipment Lease Agreement, as hereinafter defined and described, and the funds and
accounts pledged to said Series of Bonds under the Indenture. The Series 2007-B Bonds are secured solely by, and payable solely from, the Basic Lease Payments to be made
by the City under the Facility Lease Agreement, as hereinafter defined and described, and the funds and accounts pledged to said Series of Bonds under the Indenture. Lease
Payments made under a Lease Agreement relating to a particular Series of Bonds shall not be applied as Revenues to pay principal and interest on any other Series
of Bonds. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS” and “RISK FACTORS” herein.

The Bonds are subject to optional, extraordinary mandatery and mandatory sinking fund redemption as more fully set forth herein. See “THE BONDS —
Redemption Provisions™ herein.

This cover contains certain information for general reference only. It is not a suwmmary of this issue. Investors are strongly advised o read the entire Qfficial Starement
to obtain information essential fo the making of an informed investment decision, including “RISK FACTORS” herein.

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, doing business in California as FGIC Insurance Company (“FGIC” or the “Bond
Insurer”) will issue a separate Municipal Bond New Issue Insurance Policy for the Insured Series 2007-A Bonds (which are comprised of all of the Series 2007-A Bonds except
for the Series 2007-A Bonds maturing in the years 2008 and 2009, as shown on the inside front cover, which are not insured) and for the Series 2007-B Bonds (each, a “Bond
Insurance Policy” and collectively, the “Bond Insurance Policies™). The Insured Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B Bonds to be insured by FGIC, which are comprised
of all of the Series 2007-B 1 Bonds and the Series 2007-B2 Bonds, are referred to collectively herein as the “Insured Bonds.” Each Bond Insurance Policy unconditionally guarantees
the payment of the principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds of the respective Series which has become due for payment, but shall be unpaid by reason of nonpayment.
Additionally, concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, FGIC will issue a separate Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy relating to the Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B
Bonds, which unconditionally guarantees the payment of that portion of the principal of and interest on each Series of the Bonds which have become due for payment, but shall
be unpaid by reason of nonpayment. See “THE BOND INSURER, THE BOND INSURANCE POLICIES AND THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND POLICIES” herein.
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THE BONDS OF EACH SERIES ARE A LIMITED LIABILITY OF THE CORPORATION SECURED SOLELY BY THE BASIC LEASE PAYMENTS OF THE CITY
PAYABLE UNDER THE LEASE AGREEMENT SECURING SAID SERIES OF BONDS. THE BONDS ARE NOT ADEBT OF THE CITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
OR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS, AND NONE OF SAID CITY, STATE OR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS IS LIABLE THEREFOR. THE
PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS OF EACH SERIES ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE BASIC LEASE PAYMENTS OF THE CITY (AS DEFINED
HEREIN) PAYABLE UNDER THE LEASE AGREEMENT SECURING SAID SERIES OF BONDS AND OTHER FUNDS RELATING TO SAID SERIES OF BONDS AS
SET FORTHIN THE INDENTURE. THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE INDEBTEDNESS WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY
DEBT LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION WITH RESPECT TO THE CITY OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OR GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY.

The Bonds are offered for sale to the original purchaser subject to the final approving legal opinion of Nixen Peabody LLF, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel. Certain
legal matters will be passed upon for the City by The Law Offices of Elizabeth C. Green, Los Angeles, California, Disclosure Counsel. Certain additional legal matters will be
passed upon for the City and the Corporation by Rockard J. Delgadille, City Attorney. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Underwriters by Ovrrick, Herrington &
Suecliffe LLE as counsel for the Underwriters. Gardner, Underwood & Bacon LLC, Los Angeles, California, and Montague DeRose and Associates, LLC, Westlake Village,
California, are serving as Co-Financial Advisors to the City. It is anticipated that the Bonds will be available for delivery to DTC in book-entry form on or about August 8, 2007

DEe La Rosa & Co.

EN VESTMERNT BANXERS Cltl
Senior Manager: Series 2007-A Bonds Senior Manager: Series 2007-B Bonds
Co-Senior Manager: Series 2007-B Bonds Co-Senior Manager: Series 2007-A Bonds
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated Loop Capital Markets, LLC
Co- Manager: Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B Bonds Co- Manager: Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B Bonds

Dated: JTuly 26, 2007



MATURITY SCHEDULE
MUNICTPAL IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION OF LOS ANGELES

$106,900,000
LEASE REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2007-A

(CAPITAL EQUIPMENT)
$169,050,000 $52,085,000
LEASE REVENUE BONDS LEASE REVENUE BONDS
SERTES 2007-B1 SERTES 2007-B2 (TAXABLE)
(FIGUEROA PLAZA) (FIGUEROA PLAZA)

$106,900,000
LEASE REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2007-A (CAPTTAL EQUIPMENT)
(Base CUSIP Number: 544587yt

Year Principal Interest
(August 1) Amount Rate Pricett Yieldtt CUSTPY

2008* $3,925,000 5.000% 101.307% 3.630% NL®8
2008 % 9,400,000 4.250% 100.591% 3.630% ND6
2009* 6,600,000 5.000% 102.498% 3.680% NM6
2009* 7,345,000 4.250% 101.078% 3.680% NE4
2010 12,510,000 3.625% 99.845% 3.680% NF1
2010 2,025,000 4.250% 101.5%4% 3.680% NN4
2011 8,045,000 5.000% 104.619% 3.740% NP9
2011 7,110,000 4.250% 101.869% 3.740% NG9
2012 6,950,000 5.000% 105.351% 3.810% NQ7
2012 8,920,000 4.250% 101.978% 3.810% NH7
2013 12,335,000 5.000% 105.871% 3.890% NRS
2013 4,300,000 4.250% 101.903% 3.890% NI3
2014 7,700,000 5.000% 106.413% 3.940% N33
2014 9,735,000 4.250% 101.875% 3.940% NKO

$169,050,000
LEASE REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2007-B1 (FIGUERQA PLAZA)
(Base CUSIP Number: 544587yt

Year Principal Interest
(August 1) Amount Rate Pricett Yieldtt CuUSsIPt

2020 $5,000,000 5.000% 103.876%%% 4.350% ME2
2021 6,325,000 5.000% 103.693% %% 4.380% MGO
2022 6,650,000 5.000% 103.510%%* 4410% MHS
2023 6,990,000 5.000% 103.328%p%** 4.440% MI4
2024 7,350,000 5.000% 103.207%%* 4.460% MK1
2025 7,725,000 5.000% 103.086%%* 4.480% MLS
2026 8,125,000 5.000% 102.965%** 4.500% MM?7
2027 8,540,000 5.000% 102.845%%* 4.520% MNS5
2028 8,980,000 5.000% 102,724 9% 4.540% MPO

$40,545,000 4.750% Term Bonds due August 1, 2032: Pricett 98.988% Yieldtt 4.820% CUSIPt: 544587 MQ8
$62,820,000 4.750% Term Bonds due August 1, 2037: Pricett 98.427% Yieldtt 4.850% CUSIPt: 544587 MR6

$52,085,000
LEASE REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2007-B2 (TAXABLE) (FIGUEROA PLAZA)
(Base CUSIP Number: 544587yt

Year Principal Interest
{(August 1) Amount Rate Price CUSIP?

2008 $3,115,000 5.080% 100% MS4
2009 3,270,000 5.170% 100% MT2
2010 3,445,000 5.200% 100% MU9
2011 3,630,000 5.340% 100% MV7
2012 3,830,000 5.420% 100% MW5
2013 4,050,000 5.510% 100% MX3
2014 4,280,000 5.600% 100% MY1
2015 4,525,000 5.640% 100% MZ8
2016 4,750,000 5.680% 100% NAZ
2017 5,070,000 5.710% 100% NBO

$12,080,000 5.810% Term Bonds due August 1, 2020: Pricett 100% CUSIPT: 544587 NC8

1 Copyright 2007 American Bankers Association. CUSIP numbers heren are provided by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Burequ, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.,
and are set forth herein for the convenience of reference only. None of the City, Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel, the Underwriters or the Financial Advisors assume any
responsibility for the gccuracy of such numbers.

11 Reoffering prices and yields were supplied by the respective Underwriters.

* Series 2007-A Bonds maturing in 2008 and 2009 are not insured by the Bond Insurance Policy but are covered by the Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy to be issued by FGIC relating
to the Series 2007-A Bonds.

**Priced to the first call date, August 1, 2014,
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No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to make any
representations other than those contained herein, and if given or made, such other information or representation must not be relied upon
as having been authorized by the City. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor
shall there be any sale of the Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make an offer, solicitation or
sale.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds. Statements contained in this Official
Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as
such and are not to be construed as a representation of facts.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources which are believed to be reliable. The
Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Underwriters have reviewed the
information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as a part of, their responsibilities to investors under the federal securitics
laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantze the accuracy or completeness of
such information.

The information in the section of this Official Statement captioned “THE BOND INSURER, THE BOND INSURANCE POLICIES
AND THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND POLICIES,” in Appendix F — “SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND NEW ISSUE
INSURANCE POLICY” and in Appendix G — “SPECIMEN DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND POLICY” attached hereto has been
furnished by FGIC and no representation has been made by the City, MICL A or the Underwriters as to the aceuracy or completeness of
such information. The information in Appendix E — “DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM” attached hersto has been
furnished by The Depository Trust Company and no representation has been made by the City or the Underwriters as to the accuracy or
completeness of such information. The information and expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without notice and neither
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been
no change in the affairs of the City since the date thereof. This Official Statement is submitted with respect to the sale of the Bonds
referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose, unless authorized in writing by the City.
All summaries of the documents and laws are made subject to the provisions thereof and do not purport to be complete statements of any
or all such provisions.

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in the Official Statement constitute “forward-looking statements.” Such
statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as “plan,” “cxpect,” “estimate,” “budget” or other similar words. The
achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, performance or achievements described to be materially different from
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Although such expectations
reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct.
The City is not obligated to issue any updates or revisions to the forward-looking statements if or when its expectations, or events,
conditions or circumstances on which such statements are based occur.

27 <

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS
WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF THE BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT
OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, I[F COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY
TIME. THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OFFER AND SELL THE BONDS TO CERTAIN DEALERS, INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS
AND OTHERS AT PRICES LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES STATED ON THE INSIDE FRONT COVER
HEREOF, AND SAID PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITERS.

A wide variety of other information, including financial information, concerming the City, is available from publications and
websites of the City of Los Angeles, the County of Los Angeles and others. Any such information that is inconsistent with the
information set forth in this Official Statement should be disregarded. No such information is a part of or incorporated into this Official
Statement, except as expressly noted.

OTHER THAN WITH RESPECT TO INFORMATION CONCERNING FGIC (THE “BOND INSURER”) CONTAINED UNDER
THE CAPTION “THE BOND INSURER, THE BOND INSURANCE POLICIES AND THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND
POLICIES” HEREIN AND THE SPECIMENS OF THE MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICIES AND THE DEET SERVICE
RESERVE FUND POLICIES SET FORTH IN APPENDICES F AND G HEREIN, NONE OF THE INFORMATION IN THIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT HAS BEEN SUPPLIED OR VERIFIED BY THE BOND INSURER, AND THE BOND INSURER MAKES
NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION OR THE
VALIDITY OF THE BONDS.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION OF LLOS ANGELES

$106,900,000 LEASE REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2007-A
(CAPITAL EQUIPMENT)

$169,050,000 LEASE REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2007-B1 (FIGUEROA PLAZA)
and
$52,085,000 LEASE REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2007-B2 (TAXABLE) (FIGUEROA PLAZA)

INTRODUCTION

This introduction is not intended to be a complete statement of the terms and provisions of the Bonds
and is qualified by the more detailed information contained elsewhere in this Official Statement. This Official
Statement, which includes the cover page, inside cover page, and appendices hereto (the “Official Statement™), is
provided for the purpose of setting forth information concerning the sale by the Municipal Improvement
Corporation of Los Angeles (the “Corporation” or “MICLA™) of its $106,900,000 Lease Revenue Bonds, Series
2007-A (Capital Equipment), its $169,050,000 Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2007-B1 (Figueroa Plaza) and its
$52,085,000 Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2007-B2 (Taxable) (Figueroa Plaza) (collectively, the “Bonds™). The
Bonds are sometimes referred to herein individually as the “Series 2007-A Bonds,” the “Series 2007-B1 Bonds™
and the “Series 2007-B2 Bonds.”” The Series 2007-B1 Bonds and the Series 2007-B2 Bonds are collectively
referred to herein as the “Series 2007-B Bonds.” The Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B Bonds are
sometimes referred to individually as a “Series™ of Bonds. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the
meanings given in the Indenture and the Lease Agreements (hereinafter defined) or in APPENDIX C —
“CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING DOCUMENTS” hereto.

Authority; Purpose for Issuance

The Bonds are authorized under the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation and the laws of the State
of California. The Bonds are being issued pursuant to an Indenture dated as of August 1, 2007 (the “Indenture™),
by and among the Corporation, the City of Los Angeles, California (the “City’) and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (the “Trustee™).

The Bonds are being issued: (i) in the case of the Series 2007-A Bonds, to refinance, through the
redemption of outstanding commercial paper notes of the Corporation, costs associated with the acquisition of
certain capital equipment used by the City; (11) in the case of the Series 2007-B Bonds, to finance costs associated
with the acquisition of an office building complex and parking structure (“Figueroa Plaza™) occupied by certain
City departments and other tenants; (iii) in the case of the Series 2007-B Bonds, to reimburse the City for certain
mternal borrowings related to the acquisition of Figueroa Plaza; (iv) to purchase a Debt Service Reserve Fund
Policy for each Series of the Bonds to be issued by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, doing business in
California as FGIC Insurance Company (“FGIC” or the “Bond Insurer’”) in a maximum amount not less than the
amount of the Reserve Requirement for said Series of the Bonds; and (v) to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Proceeds from the sale of the Series 2007-B1 Bonds will be used to finance the acquisition of the portion
of Figueroa Plaza occupied by certain City departments and other governmental tenants. Proceeds from the sale of
the Series 2007-B2 Bonds will be used to finance the acquisition of the portion of Figueroa Plaza occupied by
non-governmental entities. Interest on the Series 2007-B1 Bonds 1s excluded from gross income of the
Bondholders for federal income tax purposes under existing statutes and court decisions, as and to the extent



further described herein. See “TAX MATTERS REGARDING SERIES 2007-A BONDS AND SERIES 2007-
B1 BONDS™ herein. Interest on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds is not excluded from gross income of the Bondholders
for federal income tax purposes, as and to the extent further described herein. See “TAX MATTERS
REGARDING SERIES 2007-B2 BONDS” herein.

The Lease Payments and the Bonds

The City will lease from the Corporation certain municipal capital equipment owned by the Corporation
(the “*Capital Equipment’) pursuant to the Equipment Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2007, between the
City and the Corporation (the “Equipment Lease Agreement™. The City will lease the Figueroa Plaza land,
buildings and improvements (“Figueroa Plaza™ and the “Figueroa Plaza Property™) to the Corporation pursuant to
the Site Lease dated as of August 1, 2007, between the City and the Corporation (the “Site Lease™) and the
Corporation will sublease to the City the Figueroa Plaza land, buildings and improvements pursuant to the
Facility Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2007, between the City and the Corporation (the “Facility Lease
Agreement”). The Facility I.ease Agreement and the Equipment Lease Agreement are herein referred to
collectively as the “Lease Agreements.” The Capital Equipment which will be leased to the City pursuant to the
Equipment Lease Agreement and Figueroa Plaza, which will be leased pursuant to the Facility Lease Agreement,
are herein referred to collectively as the “Property” and each is severally referred to herein as a “Property
Component.™

Under the Lease Agreements, in addition to the Basic Lease Payments the City has agreed to pay
Additional Payments consisting of: (1) all taxes, fees or assessments levied upon the Property or upon any interest
therein of the Corporation or the Trustee; (i1) insurance premiums, if any, on insurance required under the Lease
Agreement; (ii1) all fees and expenses of the Trustee, and expenses of the City required to comply with the Lease
Agreement and the Indenture; (iv) any other fee, cost or expense incurred by the Corporation in connection with
the execution, performance or enforcement of the Lease Agreements or the Indenture, including any amounts
necessary to indemnify and defend the Corporation; and (v) any amounts required to be paid to the United States
government pursuant to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code; the Basic Lease Payments and Additional
Lease Payments, collectively, constitute the “Iease Payments.”

The Bonds will be secured solely by a pledge of Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) and certain other
moneys held in any fund, account or subaccount held under the Indenture (other than the Rebate Fund). The
Revenues consist of (1) in the case of the Series 2007-A Bonds, the Basic Lease Payments made pursuant to the
Equipment Lease Agreement, (i) in the case of the Series 2007-B Bonds, the Basic Lease Payments made
pursuant to the Facility Lease Agreement, and (i1i) interest or profits from the investment of money in any fund,
account or subaccount held under the Indenture relating to said Series of the Bonds (other than the Rebate Fund).
The Basic Lease Payments are defined in the Equipment Lease Agreement and the Facility Lease Agreement as
the rental payments, and any prepayment thereof, required to be made by the City under the respective Lease
Agreement on any date. The Basic Lease Payments will be transferred to the Trustee in an amount sufficient to
pay the principal and interest on the Bonds of the Series secured thereby on each Interest Payment Date and
Redemption Date. The Basic Lease Payments payable under a Lease Agreement relating to a particular
Series of Bonds shall not be applied to pay principal and interest on any other Series of Bonds. Under the
Lease Agreements, the City covenants to take such action as may be necessary to include all Lease Payments
payable under the Equipment Lease Agreement and the Facility Lease Agreement in its annual budgets and make
the necessary annual appropriations therefor. The Lease Agreements provide that such covenants of the City are
deemed by the City to be and shall be construed to be ministerial duties imposed by law.

Interest on the Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B1 Bonds is excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes under existing statutes and court decisions, as further described herein. See “TAX
MATTERS REGARDING THE SERIES 2007-A BONDS AND THE SERIES 2007-B1 BONDS” herein.
Interest on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds is subject to federal income taxation, as further described herein. See
“TAX MATTERS REGARDING THE SERIES 2007-B2 BONDS"” herein.



Further Information in This Official Statement

Brief descriptions of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Lease Agreements, the Site Lease and other
documents and information are included in this Official Statement. Such descriptions and information do not
purport to be comprehensive or definitive. The descriptions herein of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Iease
Agreements, the Site Lease and other documents are qualified in their entirety by reference to the forms thereof.
For definitions of certain capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined, and a description of certain
terms relating to the Bonds, see APPENDIX C — “CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF THE
FINANCING DOCUMENTS” herein. See APPENDIX C — “CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF
THE FINANCING DOCUMENTS — THE EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT” AND “— THE FACILITY
LEASE AGREEMENT” herein for further information regarding the City’s obligations under the Iease
Agreements. See “RISK FACTORS™ herein for certain factors that may affect the payment of and security for
the Bonds.

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, FGIC will issue a separate Municipal Bond New Issue
Insurance Policy (each, a “Bond Insurance Policy” and collectively, the “Bond Insurance Policies”) for the
Insured Series 2007-A Bonds (which are comprised of all of the Series 2007-A Bonds except for the Series 2007-
A Bonds maturing in the years 2008 and 2009, which are not insured) and the Series 2007-B Bonds. The Insured
Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B Bonds to be insured by FGIC (which are comprised of all of the
Series 2007-B1 Bonds and the Series 2007-B2 Bonds) are referred to collectively herein as the “Insured Bonds.”
Additionally, FGIC will issue a separate Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy relating to the Series 2007-A Bonds
(including the uninsured maturities of the Series 2007-A Bonds) and the Series 2007-B Bonds (each, a “Debt
Service Reserve Fund Policy” and collectively, the “Debt Service Reserve Fund Policies™). See “THE BOND
INSURER, THE BOND INSURANCE POLICIES AND THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND POLICIES™
herein for further information regarding the Bond Insurer, the Bond Insurance Policies and the Debt Service
Reserve Fund Policies. Specimens of the Bond Insurance Policies and the Debt Service Reserve Fund Policies
are set forth in Appendix F — “SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND NEW ISSUE INSURANCE POLICY™ and in
Appendix G — “SPECIMEN DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND POLICY.”

Certain demographic, financial and other information with respect to or affecting the City is contained in
APPENDIX A — “CITY OF LOS ANGELES INFORMATION STATEMENT” and APPENDIX B —
“EXCERPTS FROM THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT” herein.

THE BONDS

General Terms

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest at the rates per annum and mature in
the amounts and on the dates shown on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. The Bonds will be
delivered in registered form, without coupons, initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner
and nomimee of DTC. See APPENDIX E — “DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM" hereto. Interest
on the Bonds will be payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1,
2008 (each, an “Interest Payment Date™). So long as DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., 1s the registered owner of
the Bonds, all payments on the Bonds and any notice with respect to any Bond will be sent directly to DTC, and
disbursement of such payments and delivery of such notices to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility
of the DTC Participants as more fully described herein.

Payment of interest on the Bonds due on or before the maturity or prior redemption thereof shall be made
to the person in whose name such Bonds are registered, as of the Record Date preceding the applicable Interest
Payment Date, on the registration books kept by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, such interest to be paid by
check mailed by first class mail on such Interest Payment Date to such Owner at such address as it appears on
such books as of the Record Date; provided, however, that upon the written request of an Owner of $1,000,000
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or more in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds received by the Trustee prior to the applicable Record Date,
interest shall be paid by wire transfer in immediately available funds. Any such written request shall remain in
effect until rescinded in writing by the Owner.

Principal of the Bonds is payable upon maturity or redemption of the Bonds upon surrender thereof at the
principal corporate trust offices of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota.

Redemption Provisions—Series 2007-A Bonds

Optional Redemption. The Series 2007-A Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their
respective stated maturity dates.

Redemption Provisions—S8eries 2007-B Bonds

Optional Redemption. The Series 2007-B1 Bonds maturing on or before August 1, 2014 are not subject
to optional redemption prior to their stated maturity dates. The Series 2007-B1 Bonds maturing on or after
August 1, 2015 are subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturity dates, on or after August 1, 2014,
at the option of the Corporation, m whole or in part, on any date, at the principal amount of the Series 2007-B1
Bonds called for redemption, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium.

The Series 2007-B2 Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturity dates, at the
option of the Corporation, in whole or in part on any date, at a redemption price equal to the greater of:

(1) 100 percent of the principal amount of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds to be redeemed; and

(2) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Series
2007-B2 Bonds to be redeemed (exclusive of interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption) discounted to
the date of redemption on a semiannual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months)
at the Treasury Rate plus 12.5 basis points; plus in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on the Series 2007-
B2 Bonds being redeemed to the date fixed for redemption.

For the purpose of determining the Treasury Rate, the following definitions will apply:

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any redemption date for a particular Series 2007-B2 Bond, the rate
per annum, expressed as a percentage of the principal amount, equal to the semiannual equivalent vield to
maturity or interpolated maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming that the Comparable Treasury
Issue is purchased on the redemption date for a price equal to the Comparable Treasury Price, as calculated by
the Designated Investment Banker.

“Comparable Treasury Issue”™ means, with respect to any redemption date for a particular Series 2007-B2
Bond, the United States Treasury security or securities selected by the Designated Investment Banker which has
an actual or interpolated maturity comparable to the remaining average life of the applicable Series 2007-B2
Bonds to be redeemed, and that would be utilized in accordance with customary financial practice in pricing new
1ssues of debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining average life of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds to be
redeemed.

“Comparable Treasury Price” means, with respect to any redemption date for a particular Series 2007-B2
Bond, (1) if the Designated Investment Banker receives at least four Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the
average of such quotations for such redemption date, after excluding the highest and lowest Reference Treasury
Deal Quotations, or (2) if the Designated Investment Banker obtains fewer than four such Reference Treasury
Dealer Quotations, the average of all such quotations.



“Designated Investment Banker” means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers appointed by the
Corporation.

“Reference Treasury Dealer” means Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and its respective successors and three
other firms, specified by the Corporation from time to time, that are primary U.S. Government securities dealers
in the City of New York (each a “Primary Treasury Dealer™); provided, however, that if any of them ceases to be
a Primary Treasury Dealer, the Corporation shall substitute another Primary Treasury Dealer.

“Reference Treasury Deal Quotations” means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any
redemption date for a particular Series 2007-B2 Bond, the average, as determined by the Designated Investment
Banker, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of
its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Designated Investment Banker by such Reference Treasury Dealer
at 3:30 p.m., New York City time, on the third business day preceding such redemption date.

Mandatory Redemption. The Serics 2007-B1 Bonds maturing on August 1, 2032 are subject to
mandatory redemption prior to their stated maturity, in part by lot, from sinking account payments deposited in
the Series 2007-B1 Bonds Sinking Account, on each August 1 commencing August 1, 2029 at the principal
amount thereof and interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium, according to the
following schedule:

Year
(August 1) Principal Amount
2029 $ 9,425,000
2030 9,885,000
2031 10,365,000
2032% 10,870,000
* Maturity

The Series 2007-B1 Bonds maturing on August 1, 2037 are subject to mandatory redemption prior to
their stated maturity, in part by lot, from sinking account payments deposited in the Series 2007-B1 Bonds
Sinking Account, on each August 1 commencing August 1, 2033 at the principal amount thercof and interest
accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium, according to the following schedule:

Year
(August 1) Principal Amount

2033 $11,400,000
2034 11,955,000
2035 12,535,000
2036 13,145,000
2037* 13,785,000

* Maturity



The Series 2007-B2 Bonds maturing on August 1, 2020 are subject to mandatory redemption prior to
their stated maturity, in part on a pro rata basis, from sinking account payments deposited in the Series 2007-B2
Bonds Sinking Account, on each August 1 commencing August 1, 2018 at the principal amount thereof and
interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium, according to the following schedule:

Year
(August 1) Principal Amount
2018 $5,370,000
2019 3,695,000
2020 1,015,000
* Maturity

Redemption Provisions Applicable to All Series of Bonds

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their respective
maturity dates, in Authorized Denominations, upon notice as hereinafter provided, on any date, as a whole or in
part, from Net Proceeds of any policy of insurance, title insurance or condemnation award received by the
Trustee arising from the damage, destruction, taking or other loss of or to the Equipment or the Property leased
under a Lease Agreement, in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture and the respective Lease
Agreement relating thereto, at the principal amount thereof together with accrued interest to the date of
redemption, without premium. If less than all Outstanding Bonds of the Series secured by such Lease Agreement
are to be redeemed at any time, the Trustee shall use the net insurance proceeds or condemnation awards
attributable to the portion of the Capital Equipment or Figueroa Plaza destroyed, damaged, stolen or taken, to
redeem Bonds of the Series secured by such Lease Agreement, by lot among all maturities of Bonds of such
Series, as directed in writing by the City. Subject to the foregoing, if less than all Outstanding Bonds of such
Series maturing by their terms on any one date are to be so redeemed at any one time, Bonds of such series and
maturity date to be redeemed shall be selected in any manner that the Trustee deems appropriate. The redemption
date shall be a date, selected by the City on behalf of the Corporation, no later than 75 days after receipt of the
Written Request of the City delivered to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption shall be mailed by the Trustee, not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days prior to the redemption date to: (i) the respective Bondholders designated for redemption at their
addresses appearing on the registration books of the Trustee by first class mail; (i1) the Securities Depositories (if
any); and (ii1) the Information Services. Notice of redemption to the Securitics Depositories and the Information
Services shall be given by registered mail or by overnight delivery. Failure by the Trustee to give notice to any
one or more of the Information Services or Securities Depositories, or the insufficiency of any such notice, shall
not affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption. Failure by the Trustee to mail or otherwise provide
notice of redemption to any one or more of the respective Owners of any Bonds designated for redemption shall
not affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption with respect to the Owners to whom such notice was
mailed. The notice of redemption for any optional redemption pursuant to the Indenture shall contain a statement
to the effect that redemption of the Bonds 1s conditioned upon the receipt by the Trustee of amounts equal to the
redemption price of the Bonds to be redeemed on or before the redemption date, and such optional redemption
shall be so conditioned.

DTC and the Book-Entry Only System

The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC™), will act as securities depository for the
Bonds. The Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee), and will be
available to ultimate purchasers in the denomination of $5.000 or any integral multiple thereof, under the book-
entry system maintained by DTC. Ultimate purchasers of Bonds will not receive physical certificates
representing their interest in the Bonds. So long as the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as
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nominee of DTC, references herein to the Bondholders shall mean Cede & Co., and shall not mean the ultimate
purchasers of the Bonds. Payments of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be made
directly to DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., by the Trustee, so long as DTC or Cede & Co. 1s the registered
owner of the Bonds. Disbursements of such payvments to DTC’s Participants are the responsibility of DTC and
disbursements of such payments to the Beneficial Owners are the responsibility of DTC’s Participants and
Indirect Participants. See APPENDIX E — “DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.”

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The sources of funds to be received from the sale of the Bonds and the proposed uses of the Bond
proceeds are estimated to be in the amounts shown below.

Sources of Funds Series 2007-A Series 2007-B1 Series 2007-B2
Principal Amount of Bonds $106,900,000.00 $1692.050,000.00 $52.085,000.00
Plus Net Reoffering Premium 2.898.954 .50 697.542.90 -
Total Sources $109,798.954.50 $169,747,542.90 $52.085,000.00
Uses of Funds
Commercial Paper Issuing and Paying Agent ¢ $109,000,000.00 - -
Figuerca Plaza Acquisition Escrow - $148,410,000.00 $45,590,000.00
City Reimbursement for Internal Borrowing @ - 19,125,000.00 5,875.,000.00
Costs of Issuance ™ 501,830.59 1,775,475.40 480,727.50
Underwriters” Discount 207.12391 437.067.50 139272 50
Total Uses $109,798.954.50 $169,747,542.90 $52.085,000.00

W To be used to retire, at maturity, principal and interest on the MICL A Commercial Paper Program Notes (the “Notes), which were issued
to pay costs of acquisition of the Capital Equipment {approximately $109,000,000).

@ Reimbursement to City for internal borrowings related to Figueroa Plaza acquisition.

®) Includes fees for trustee, legal counsel, financial advisors, real estate consultant, rating agencies, insurance relating to the Property, the
premiums for the Bond Insurance Policies and the Debt Service Reserve Fund Policies and other costs associated with the issuance of the
Bonds.



DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULES

Each of the Lease Agreements requires the City to make the Basic Lease Payments on each January 15
and July 15, commencing January 15, 2008 (each a “Lease Payment Date™), as rental for the use and possession
of the therein-described Property during the Term of the respective Lease Agreement. The Indenture requires that
the Basic Lease Payments received under the Equipment [ease Agreement and the Facility Lease Agreement be
deposited i the Series 2007-A Bond Fund and the Series 2007-B Bond Fund, respectively, maintained by the
Trustee. Pursuant to the Indenture, on February 1 and August 1 of each year, the Trustee will apply such amounts
i the Series 2007-A Bond Fund and the Series 2007-B Bond Fund as are necessary to make principal and
iterest payments on the respective Series of Bonds as the Bonds of such Series become due and payable. The
table on the following page sects forth the scheduled principal and interest payments on the Bonds, which
correspond to the Basic Lease Payments to be paid in each period by the City under the Lease Agreements. The
Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B Bonds will be separately secured by the Basic Lease Payments
to be made under the Equipment Lease Agreement and the Facility Lease Agreement, respectively, and
Basic Lease Payments payvable under a Lease Agreement relating to a particular Series of Bonds shall not
be applied to pay principal and interest on any other Series of Bonds.

If the City defaults on its covenants in the Equipment Lease Agreement or the Facility Lease Agreement,
mcluding the covenant to include all Lease Payments payable thereunder in the annual budgets, the Trustee may
exercise any remedies available pursuant to law or the respective Lease Agreement, including re-letting the
Property leased thereunder and/or terminating the respective Lease Agreement; provided that the Lease Payments
cannot be accelerated. There are no cross-default provisions in the Lease Agreements and a default under one
Lease Agreement will not, by its mere occurrence, trigger a default under the other Lease Agreement. See “RISK
FACTORS — Limitations on Default Remedies™ herein. THE OBLIGATIONS TO BUDGET FOR AND THE
OBLIGATIONS TO MAKE THE BASIC LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER THE LEASE AGREEMENTS DO
NOT CONSTITUTE A DEBT OF THE CITY, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY, NOR DO SUCH OBLIGATIONS
CONSTITUTE OBLIGATIONS FOR WHICH THE CITY IS OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE, OR HAS
LEVIED OR PLEDGED, ANY FORM OF TAXATION.

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE-SERIES 2007-A BONDS

T otal Series

Date Principal Interest Debt Service
02/01/2008 - $2,309,898.40 $2,305,898.40
08/01/2008 $13,325,000.00 2,403,362.50 15,728,362.50
(02/01/2009 - 2,105,487.50 2,105,487.50
(08/01/2009 13,945,000.00 2,105,487.50 16,050,487.50
02/01/2010 - 1,784,406.25 1,784,406.25
08/01/2010 14,535,000.00 1,784,406.25 16,319,406.25
02/01/2011 - 1,514,631.25 1,514,631.25
08/01/2011 15,155,000.00 1,514,631.25 16,669,631.25
02/01/2012 - 1,162,418.75 1,162,418.75
08/01/2012 15,870,000.00 1,162,418.75 17,032,418.75
02/01/2013 - 799,118.75 799,118.75
08/01/2013 16,635,000.00 799,118.75 17,434,118.75
02/01/2014 - 399,368.75 399,368.75
08/01/2014 17,435,000.00 399,368.75 17,834,368.75
TOTAL $106,900,000.000 $20,244.123.40  $127,144,123.40




DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE-SERIES 2007-B BONDS

Total Total Total

Series 2007 B1 Series 2007 B-1 Series 2007-B1  Series 2007-B2 Series 2007-B2 Series 2007-B2 Series 2007-B

Date Principal Interest Debt Service Principal Interest Debt Service Debt Service
02/01/2008 $3,937,714.27 $3.937,714.27 $1,388,484 06 $1,388,484.06 $5,326,198.33
08/01/2008 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 $3,115,000.00 1,444,665.50 4,559.665.50 8,656,709.25
02/01/2009 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 1,365,544.50 1,365,544.50 5,462,588.25
08/01/2009 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 3,270,000.00 1,365,544.50 4,635,544.50 8,732,588.25
02/01/2010 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 1,281,015.00 1,281,015.00 5,378,058.75
08/01/2010 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 3,445,000.00 1,281,015.00 4,726,015.00 8,823,058.75
02/01/2011 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 1,191,445.00 1,191,445.00 5,288,488.75
08/01/2011 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 3,630,000.00 1,191,445.00 4,821,445.00 8,918,488.75
02/01/2012 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 1,094,524.00 1,094,524.00 5,191,567.75
08/01/2012 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 3,830,000.00 1,094,524.00 4,924,524.00 9,021,567.75
02/01/2013 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 990,731.00 990,731.00 5,087,774.75
08/01/2013 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 4,050,000.00 990,731.00 5,040,731.00 9.137,774.75
02/01/2014 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 £79,153.50 £79,153.50 4,976,197.25
08/01/2014 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 4,280,000.00 £79,153.50 5,159,153.50 9,256,197.25
02/01/2015 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 759,313.50 759,313.50 4,856,357.25
08/01/2015 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 4,525,000.00 759,313.50 5,284,313.50 9.381,357.25
02/01/2016 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 631,708.50 631,708.50 4,728,752.25
08/01/2016 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 4,790,000.00 631,708.50 5,421,708.50 9.518,752.25
02/01/2017 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 495,672.50 495,672.50 4,592,716.25
08/01/2017 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 5,070,000.00 495,672.50 5,565,672.50 9.662,716.25
02/01/2018 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 350,924.00 350,924.00 4,447,967.75
08/01/2018 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 5,370,000.00 350,924.00 5,720,924.00 9,817,967.75
02/01/2019 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 194,925.50 194,925.50 4,291,969.25
08/01/2019 4,097,043.75 4,097,043.75 5,695,000.00 194,925.50 5,889,925.50 9,986,969.25
02/01/2020 4,097,043.75 4,097.043.75 2948575 29485.75 4,126,529.50
08/01/2020 $5,000,000.00 4,097,043.75 9,097,043.75 1,015,000.00 29,485.75 1,044,485.75 10,141,529.50
02/01/2021 3,972,043.75 3,972,043.75 3,972,043.75
08/01/2021 6,325,000.00 3,972,043.75 10,297,043.75 10,297,043.75
02/01/2022 3,813918.75 3,813918.75 3,813,918.75
08/01/2022 6,650,000.00 3,813,918.75 10,463,918.75 10,463,918.75
02/01/2023 3,647,668.75 3,647,668.75 3,647,668.75
08/01/2023 6,990,000.00 3,647,668.75 10,637,668.75 10,637,668.75
02/01/2024 347291875 347291875 3,472,918.75
08/01/2024 7,350,000.00 347291875 10,822,918.75 10,822,918.75
02/01/2025 3,289,168.75 3,289,168.75 3,289,168.75
08/01/2025 7,725,000.00 3,289,168.75 11,014,168.75 11,014,168.75
02/01/2026 3,096,043.75 3,096,043.75 3,096,043.75
08/01/2026 8,125,000.00 3,096,043.75 11,221,043.75 11,221,043.75
02/01/2027 2,892.918.75 2,892.918.75 2,892 918.75
08/01/2027 £,540,000.00 2,892918.75 11,432,918.75 11,432,918.75
02/01/2028 2,679418.75 2,679418.75 2,679,418.75
08/01/2028 8,980,000.00 2,679418.75 11,659,418.75 11,659,418.75
02/01/2029 245491875 245491875 2.454,918.75
08/01/2029 9,425,000.00 245491875 11,879,918.75 11,879,918.75
02/01/2030 2,231,075.00 2,231,075.00 2,231,075.00
08/01/2030 9,885,000.00 2,231,075.00 12,116,075.00 12,116,075.00
02/01/2031 1,996,306.25 1,996,306.25 1,996,306.25
08/01/2031 10,365,000.00 1,996,306.25 12,361,306.25 12,361,306.25
02/01/2032 1,750,137.50 1,750,137.50 1,750,137.50
08/01/2032 10,870,000.00 1,750,137.50 12,620,137.50 12,620,137.50
02/01/2033 1,491,975.00 1,491,975.00 1,491,975.00
08/01/2033 11,400,000.00 1,491,975.00 12,891,975.00 12,891,975.00
02/01/2034 1,221,225.00 1,221,225.00 1,221,225.00
08/01/2034 11,955,000.00 1,221,225.00 13,176,225.00 13,176,225.00
02/01/2035 937,293.75 937,293.75 937,293.75
08/01/2035 12,535,000.00 937,293.75 13,472,293.75 13,472,293.75
02/01/2036 639,587.50 639,587.50 639,587.50
08/01/2036 13,145,000.00 639,587.50 13,784,587.50 13,784,587.50
02/01/2037 327,393.75 327,393.75 327,393.75
08/01/2037 13,785,000.00 327,393.75 14,112,393.75 14,112,393.75
TOTAL $169,050,000.00 $186,191,833.02 $355,241,833.02 $52,085,000.00 $21,362,035.06 $73,447,035.06 $428,688,868.08




SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS
General

The Bonds will be secured solely by a pledge of Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) and such other
moneys, funds and accounts pledged to the payment of said Series of Bonds under the Indenture (other than the
Rebate Fund). The Revenues consist of (i) in the case of the Series 2007-A Bonds, the Basic I.ease Payments
(defined as the rental pavments required to be made by the City on any date pursuant to the Equipment Lease
Agreement, including any prepayment thereof) made pursuant to the Equipment Lease Agreement, (ii) in the
case of the Series 2007-B Bonds, the Basic Lease Payments (defined as the rental payments required to be made
by the City on any date pursuant to the Facility Lease Agreement, including any prepayment thereof) made
pursuant to the Facility Lease Agreement, and (ii1) interest or profits from the investment of money in any fund,
account or subaccount relating to said Series of the Bonds held under the Indenture (other than the Rebate
Fund). The Basic Lease Payments will be paid by the City to the Trustee in an amount sufficient to pay the
principal and interest on the Bonds of the Series secured thereby on each Interest Payment Date and Redemption
Date. The Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B Bonds will be separately secured by the Basic Lease
Payments to be made under the Equipment lLease Agreement and the Facility Lease Agreement,
respectively, and Basic Lease Payments payable under the Equipment Lease Agreement and the Facility
Lease Agreement shall only be applied as Revenues to pay principal and interest on the Bonds of the
Series secured thereby.

On or before each Lease Payment Date (on Januvary 15 and July 15) during the Term of each Lease
Agreement, the City is required to pay to the Trustee the Basic Lease Payments due on such date from the City’s
General Fund, or from other legally available sources. The Trustee, as assignee of the Corporation, will receive
the Basic Lease Payments for the benefit of the Bondholders and credit such Basic Lease Payments to the
respective Bond Fund established pursuant to the Indenture for the Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B
Bonds. The Trustee will apply the Revenues held in the respective Bond Fund on each Interest Payment Date to
pay principal and interest due on such date on the respective Series of Bonds.

Lease Payments

The City has covenanted in each Lease Agreement to take such action as may be necessary to include
the Lease Payments payable by the City thereunder in its annual budgets and to make the necessary annual
appropriations for all such Lease Payments. Each Lease Agreement also provides that, in so providing for the
payment of Lease Payments in its annual budgets, the City may take into account moneys on deposit in the
various funds and accounts under the Indenture, which moneys are properly available to make Lease Payments.
Each Lease Agreement provides that such covenants on the part of the City are deemed to be and shall be
construed to be ministerial duties imposed by law, and it shall be the duty of each and every public official of
the City to take such action and do such things as are required by law in the performance of the official duty of
such officials to enable the City to carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in such Lease
Agreement. For a discussion of the financial and budgetary information on the City’s General Fund, see
APPENDIX A — “CITY OF LOS ANGELES INFORMATION STATEMENT” herein.

Under each Lease Agreement, in addition to the Basic Lease Payments payable thereunder, the City has
agreed to pay Additional Payments consisting of: (1) all taxes, fees or assessments levied upon the Property or
upon any interest therein of the Corporation or the Trustee; (ii) insurance premiums, if any, on insurance
required under the respective Lease Agreement; (1n) all fees and expenses of the Trustee, and expenses of the
City required to comply with the respective Lease Agreement and the Indenture; (iv) any other fee, cost or
expense incurred by the Corporation in connection with the execution, performance or enforcement of the
respective Lease Agreement or the Indenture, including any amounts necessary to indemnify and defend the
Corporation; and (v) any amounts required to be paid to the United States government pursuant to Section 148
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of the Internal Revenue Code. The Basic Lease Payments and Additional Lease Payments, collectively,
constitute the “Lease Payments.”

Under each Lease Agreement, the Lease Payments for the Property for each Rental Period shall
constitute the total rental for such Property for such Rental Period, and shall be paid by the City in each Rental
Period for and in consideration of the right of the use of, and the continued quiet use and enjoyment of, the
Property during such Rental Period. The City and Corporation have determined that the total of all Lease
Payments for the Property is not greater than the total fair rental value of the Property and the total of all Lease
Payments for each Property Component does not exceed the total fair rental value of such Property Component.
Further, the City and Corporation have determined that the Lease Payments for the Property for each Rental
Period do not exceed the fair rental value of the Property for such Rental Period and the Lease Payments for
each Property Component for each Rental Period do not exceed the fair rental value of such Property
Component for such Rental Period. In making such determinations, consideration has been given to the costs of
acquisition and financing of the Property, the appraised or market value of the Property, the cost of
modifications made or to be made to the Property, other obligations of the parties under the respective Lease
Agreement, the uses and purposes which may be served by the Property and the benefits therefrom which will
accrue to the City and the general public.

Abatement of Lease Payments

During any period in which damage to or destruction of all or a portion of a Property Component or
other event, results in substantial interference with the use and possession or occupancy of such Property
Component or any portion thereof, all or a portion of the Lease Payments due under the respective Lease
Agreement will be abated such that the remaining Lease Payments due under such Lease Agreement represent
fair rental for the use of the portion of the Property Component not affected. In the event of any such
mterruption of use and possession, the Lease Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and the Lease
Payments shall not be subject to abatement to the extent that the proceeds of rental interruption insurance or
amounts in the Reserve Account or otherwise in the Bond Fund are available to pay Lease Payments which
would otherwise be abated. The City has covenanted in the Lease Agreements to mamtain insurance against
certain risks, which the City provides in some cases through self-insurance. Net Proceeds of such insurance or
self-insurance may be applied to redeem the related Series of Bonds in the event of loss of use of the Property.
See “THE BONDS—Redemption Provisions Applicable to All Series of the Bonds™ herein and APPENDIX C —
“CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING DOCUMENTS” and the provisions
described under the captions “THE EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT — Damage, Destruction and Use of
Net Proceeds,” and the subcaptions “— Prepayment of Lease Payments™ and “— Damage, Destruction and Use
of Net Proceeds — Abatement” thereunder and under the captions “THE FACILITY LEASE AGREEMENT —
Damage, Destruction and Eminent Domain; Use of Net Proceeds™ and the subcaptions ““—Prepavment of Lease
Payments” and ““— Abatement™ thereunder.

Reserve Accounts

The Indenture establishes separate Reserve Accounts for the Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-
B Bonds (the “Series 2007-A Reserve Account and the “Series 2007-B Reserve Account,” respectively, and
each such account, a “Reserve Account’™) that will be held by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture and funded
with a Reserve Account Credit Facility in an amount equal to, with respect to each Series of the Bonds, the least
of: (1) 10% of the initial principal amount of said Series of the Bonds; or (1) Maximum Annual Debt Service for
said Series of the Bonds for the current or any future Fiscal Year; or (iii) 125% of average Annual Debt Service
for said Series of the Bonds (such amount being the “Reserve Requirement”™ for said Series of the Bonds). For
purposes of determining if the amount on deposit in a Reserve Account equals the Reserve Requirement, any
Reserve Account Credit Facility for said Series of the Bonds shall be deemed to be a deposit m the face amount
or stated amount of such Reserve Account Credit Facility, less any unreimbursed drawings or other amounts not
reinstated under such Credit Facility.
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All money m the Series 2007-A Reserve Account and the Series 2007-B Reserve Account shall be used
and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of replenishing the Interest Account or the Principal
Account within the Bond Fund relating to the respective Series of the Bonds, in the event of any deficiency at
any time in any of such respective accounts, or for the purposes of paying the interest, principal or redemption
premiums, if any, with respect to the Bonds of a Series secured thereby in the event that no other money of the
Corporation 1s lawfully available therefor, or for the retirement of all the Bonds of said Series then Outstanding,
so long as the Corporation is not in default under the Indenture.

On the date of 1ssuance of the Bonds, the Reserve Requirement for the Series 2007-A Reserve Account
1s $10,979,895.45. The Series 2007-A Reserve Account will be funded by the Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy
to be 1ssued by FGIC concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds in the maximum amount of $10,979,895.45.
On the date of issuance of the Bonds, the Reserve Requirement for the Series 2007-B Reserve Account is
$14,439,787.50. The Series 2007-B Reserve Account will be funded by the Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy
to be issued by FGIC concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds in the maximum amount of $14,439,787.50.
Sec “THE BOND INSURER, THE BOND INSURANCE POLICIES AND THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE
FUND POLICIES” herein.

On or before August 1 of each year, beginning on August 1, 2008, the Trustee will set aside from the
Bond Fund and deposit in the Reserve Account for each Series of the Bonds that amount of money which shall
be required to maintain said Reserve Account in the full amount of the Reserve Requirement or such larger
amount as shall be required to be maintained in said Reserve Account by any Supplemental Indenture. No
deposit need be made in a Reserve Account so long as there shall be on deposit therein a sum equal to the
Reserve Requirement for said Series of the Bonds.

All interest income recerved by the Trustee on investment of moneys in a Reserve Account shall be
transferred first to the Rebate Fund to the extent required by the Indenture; provided, however, that such interest
mcome shall be retained in the Reserve Account for such Series of Bonds to the extent that amounts therein
have been transferred to make up a deficiency in the Interest Account or the Principal Account; and thereafter to
the Interest Account for such Series of Bonds.

Additional Bonds

The Indenture provides that the Corporation and the City may, at any time, determine to issue and
delver Additional Bonds, without the consent of the Owners of any Bonds, payable from the Revenues pledged
to a Series of Bonds as provided therein and secured by a pledge of the Revenues as provided therein equal to
the pledge securing the Outstanding Bonds of such Series theretofore issued pursuant to the Indenture, but only
subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture and which are made conditions precedent to the
issuance of any such Additional Bonds. See APPENDIX C — “CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY
OF THE FINANCING DOCUMENTS — THE INDENTURE - Issuance of Additional Bonds™ herein. See also
“RISK FACTORS —No Limitation on Incurring Additional Obligations™ herein.

Repair and Maintenance; Taxes and Assessiments; Insurance; Modification of the Property

During the respective Term of each Lease Agreement, all improvement, modification, repair and
maintenance of the Property shall be the responsibility of the City. The City shall, at its own expense, during
the Term of each Lease Agreement maintain the Property, or cause the same to be maintained, in good order,
condition and repair and shall replace any portion of the Property which is lost, stolen or destroved; provided
that the City shall not be required to repair or replace any such portion of the Property pursuant to the Lease
Agreement if there shall be applied to the prepayment of Basic Lease Payments thereunder insurance proceeds
or other legally available funds sufficient to prepay (1) all of the Bonds Outstanding of such Series or (ii) any
portion thereof relating to the Property or such portion thereof such that the Basic Lease Payments allocable to
the remaining portion of the Property will be sufficient to pay the principal pavable on the Bonds Outstanding of
such Series after such prepayment. The Lease Agreements require that the City provide or cause to be provided
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all security service, custodial service, janitorial service and other services necessary for the proper upkeep and
maintenance of the Property. The Lease Agreements require that the City provide or cause to be provided all
mechanical service and other services necessary for the proper upkeep and maintenance of the Equipment.

The City shall keep the Property free and clear of all liens, charges and encumbrances, subject only to
Permitted Encumbrances. The City shall also pay or cause to be paid all taxes and assessments of any type or
nature, if any, charged to the Corporation or the City affecting the Property or the respective interests therein;
provided, however, that subject to the provisions of the respective Lease Agreement, the City may, at its
expense and in its name, in good faith contest any such taxes, assessments, utility and other charges and, in the
event of any such contest, may permit the taxes, assessments or other charges so contested to remain unpaid
during the period of such contest and any appeal therefrom.

Fire, Collision and Extended Coverage Insurance

The Facility Lease Apreement, which provides for the lease by the City of Figueroa Plaza, requires the
City to procure and maintain, or cause to be procured and maintained, throughout the Term of such Lease
Agreement, insurance against loss or damage to any structures or equipment constituting any part of the
Figueroa Plaza Property leased thereby by fire and lightning, with extended coverage and vandalism and
malicious mischief insurance. The extended coverage insurance shall, as nearly as practicable, cover loss or
damage by explosion, windstorm, riot, aircraft, vehicle damage, smoke and such other hazards as are normally
covered by such insurance. Such insurance does not cover loss or damage from acts of terrorism, earthquake or
flood. Such insurance shall be in an amount equal to the lesser of the Outstanding principal amount of the
Series 2007-B Bonds and 100% of the replacement cost of Figueroa Plaza (including all improvements thereon)
(it being understood and agreed that in the event of the loss of a portion of Figueroa Plaza and the redemption of
Series 2007-B Bonds from the Net Proceeds of such msurance, that the remaining Figueroa Plaza land and
improvements will have a fair rental value equal to or exceeding the remaining Lease Payments). The City will
self-insure against loss or damage to any structures or equipment constituting any part of the Figueroa Plaza
Property resulting from this category of loss or damage.

The Facility Lease Agreement provides that, in the event of any uninsured loss to the Figueroa Plaza
Property resulting from earthquake, (a) the City shall apply for and use its best efforts to obtain financial
assistance from the United States of America to be used for the repair, reconstruction or replacement of such
property, and (b) the City shall repair or replace the property or defease the outstanding Bonds of the applicable
Series from moneys, if any, legally available therefor.

The Equipment Lease Agreement requires that the City procure and maintain, or cause to be procured
and maintained, commencing upon its possession of the Equipment pursuant to the Equipment Lease
Agreement, and thereafier throughout the Term of this Equipment Lease Agreement, insurance against loss or
damage to any part the Equipment by collision, fire, loss and theft, with extended coverage and vandalism and
malicious mischief insurance. The extended coverage msurance shall, as nearly as practicable, cover loss or
damage by such hazards as are normally covered by such insurance. The insurance shall be in an amount equal
to the lesser of the Outstanding principal amount of the Series 2007-A Bonds and 100% of the replacement cost
of the Equipment (including all modifications thereon) (it being understood and agreed that in the event of the
loss of such Equipment and the redemption of Series 2007-A Bonds from the Net Proceeds of such mnsurance,
that the remaining Equipment will have a fair rental value equal to or exceeding the remaining [.ease Payments).

The Lease Agreements provide that such insurance may be subject to deductible clauses not to exceed
$100,000 for any one loss. The Lease Agreements permit such msurance to be satisfied by a combmation of
commercial insurance, risk pooling under a joint powers authority or similar statutory provision, self-funded loss
reserves and, to the extent permitted by law, risk retention programs, all in such proportions as are deemed
appropriate by professional risk management personnel or independent consultants.
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The City covenants that it will use such budgeted funds and the proceeds of any purchased insurance to
accomplish one of the following purposes in the event of the loss or destruction of or unrepaired damage to any
portion of the Property which would otherwise result in abatement of all or a portion of the Basic Lease
Payments payable under the respective Lease Agreement:

(1) to acquire, construct or repair diligently (at the City’s cost) replacement property having a useful life not
less than the remaining Lease Term of the Property so lost, destroyed or damaged to be and become subject
to the LLease Agreement at a cost such that the total fair market rental value of the property leased pursuant
to the Lease Agreement (including such replacement property) is not less than the then fair market rental
value of the Property originally scheduled to be leased thereunder;

(2) to deposit with the Trustee, as assignee of the Corporation, in a special account to be held in trust by the
Trustee, an amount (not less than $30,000) sufficient, under the Lease Agreement, to purchase the portion of
the Property so destroyed or irreparably damaged, and to instruct the Trustee at the time of said deposit that
said amount 1s to be used as a special fund for prepayment of Basic Lease Payments pertaining to the
Property destroved or irreparably damaged; or

(3) to apply such funds as provided in the Lease Agreement and the Indenture to redeem Bonds of the
applicable Series so that the Basic Lease Payments to be made on the remaining Property under the
respective Lease Agreement will be sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds of the applicable
Series that remain Outstanding.

See “RISK FACTORS—Insurance Risk™ herein for further information regarding the manner in which
the City maintains its msurance coverages, including (in some cases) self-insurance, and certain limitations and
risks related to losses which could affect the Property.

Rental Interruption Insurance

Each Lease Agreement requires that the City procure and maintain, throughout the Term of the Lease
Agreement, rental interruption or use and occupancy nsurance to cover loss, total or partial, of the use of any
part of the Property for a period of 24 months during the Term of the Lease Agreement as a result of any of the
hazards covered m the insurance required by the provisions of the Lease Agreement relating to fire and extended
coverage msurance, in an amount to insure against loss of substantial use and possession of the Property. The
provider of such insurance shall be rated at least “A” by AM. Best & Company. Any amounts received under
such policy shall be credited towards the Lease Payments in the order in which such Lease Payments come due
and payable. Rental interruption or use and occupancy surance cannot be provided by self-insurance.

Title Insurance

The Facility Lease Agreement provides that the City shall obtam, at its own expense, on or before
commencement of the Term of the Facility Lease Agreement, a CLTA title insurance policy in the amount equal
to the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2007-B Bonds or the appraised value of the Figueroa Plaza
Property leased theremn, whichever i1s greater, insuring the Corporation’s leaschold estate in such leased
Property, subject only to Permitted Encumbrances. All Net Proceeds, if any, received under the policy shall be
deposited with the Trustee and shall be credited towards the prepayment of the remaining Lease Payments as
further provided in the Facility Lease Agreement.

Maintenance of Insurance Coverages
Each Lease Agreement provides that cach policy of insurance required thereby shall name the Trustee
as a loss payvee and its interests may appear in each respective policy of insurance and shall provide that all

proceeds thereunder be payable to the Trustee. The City shall pay or cause to be paid when due the premiums
for all insurance policies required by the respective Lease Agreement, and shall promptly furnish or cause to be
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furnished to the Trustee on or before September 1 annually a certificate of a City Representative stating that
such payments have been made and that the insurance policies required by the respective Lease Agreement are
m force and effect. For further discussion of these matters, see APPENDIX C — “CERTAIN DEFINITIONS
AND SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING DOCUMENTS — THE EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT —
Maintenance; Taxes; Insurance; and Other Matters” and “~ THE FACILITY LEASE AGREEMENT —
Maintenance; Taxes; Insurance; and Other Matters™ herein.

Substitution of Property

Pursuant to the Equipment Lease Agreement, the City shall, at any time, have the right to substitute for
all or a portion of the Capital Equipment other property of comparable value, and of a comparable essential
nature to the City, and having a remaining useful life not less than the useful life of the portion of Capital
Equipment substituted for, by providing the Trustee, the Bond Insurer and the Rating Agencies with a written
certificate describing both the new Capital Equipment and the Capital Equipment for which it is to be
substituted, and stating that such portion of Capital Equipment is of comparable value and has a useful life not
less than the useful life of the Capital Equipment described in the Equipment Lease Agreement for which it is
being substituted and a financing statement and an executed amendment to the Equipment Lease Agreement for
the new Capital Equipment.

The City must obtain prior to any such substitution of the Capital Equipment described in the
Equipment Lease Agreement the written consent of the Bond Insurer (which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld) and confirmation from the Rating Agencies that such substitution shall not result in a downgrading or
suspension of the ratings on the Bonds. All costs and expenses incurred in connection with such substitution
including without limitation the cost of acquiring such Capital Equipment, shall be borne by the City. In the
event of such substitution, the Capital Equipment substituted for the origmal Capital Equipment shall become
fully subject to the terms of the Equipment Lease Agreement. Notwithstanding any substitution of Capital
Equipment pursuant to the Equipment Lease Agreement, there shall be no reduction in the Basic Lease
Payments due from the City thereunder and there shall be no reduction in the aggregate fair rental value of the
Capital Equipment as a result of such substitution.

Pursuant to the Site Lease and the Facility Lease Agreement, which provides for the lease of the
Figueroa Plaza Property to the City, the City shall, at any time, have the right to substitute for all or a portion of
the Property leased thereunder other property of comparable value, and of a comparable essential nature to the
City, and having a remaining useful life not less than the useful life of the portion of Property substituted for, by
providing the Trustee, the Bond Insurer and the Rating Agencies with a written certificate describing both the
new Property and the Property for which it is to be substituted, and stating that such portion of Property 1s of
comparable value and has a useful life not less than the useful life of the Property described in the Facility Lease
Agreement for which it is being substituted, an executed amendment to the Site Lease and the Facility Lease
Agreement and an executed and acknowledged memorandum of lease for the new Property.

The City must obtain prior to any such substitution of the Property described in the Facility Lease
Agreement the written consent of the Bond Insurer (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld) and
confirmation from the Rating Agencies that such substitution shall not result in a downgrading or suspension of
the ratings on the Series 2007-B Bonds. All costs and expenses incurred in connection with such substitution of
Property under the Facility Lease Agreement including without limitation the cost of acquiring such Property,
shall be borne by the City. In the event of such substitution, the Property substituted for the original Property
shall become fully subject to the terms of the Facility Lease Agreement, and the City shall obtain, in the case of
new real property to be substituted for the Property, a policy of CLTA title insurance nsuring the City’s
leasehold estate in the new real property so that the combined policies of CLTA title insurance on all of the
leaschold estate(s) in the Property subject to the Facility Lease Agreement will be not less than the aggregate
principal amount of Outstanding Bonds. Notwithstanding any substitution of Property pursuant to the Facility
Lease Agreement, there shall be no reduction in the Basic Lease Payments due from the City thereunder and
there shall be no reduction in the aggregate fair rental value of the Property as a result of such substitution.
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THE PROPERTY COMPONENTS

The City will lease the Capital Equipment and Figueroa Plaza, which comprise the Property
Components, from the Corporation pursuant to the Lease Agreements.

Capital Equipment

The Capital Equipment to be leased by the City from the Corporation pursuant to the Equipment Lease
Agreement is comprised of police station and fire station equipment, communications equipment, police and fire
department vehicles (exclusive of police patrol vehicles), aircraft, other municipal service vehicles, recreational,
landscaping and park fixtures and equipment, and other miscellaneous municipal equipment. The Corporation
acquired the Capital Equipment with the proceeds of sale of MICLA Commercial Paper Notes. Accordingly,
proceeds of sale of the Series 2007-A Bonds in the approximate amount of $109 million will be used to redeem
principal of the Notes and pay interest thereon, at maturity.

Figueroa Plaza

The City will lease Figueroa Plaza from the Corporation pursuant to the Facility Lease Agreement.
Figueroa Plaza is an office building complex comprised of two adjacent 16-story buildings located at 201 N.
Figueroa Street (the “201 Tower™) and 221 N. Figueroa Street (the “221 Tower™) in the Civic Center area of
downtown Los Angeles, California. Fach of the buildings has approximately 306,000 square feet. The 201
Tower was constructed in 1986. The 221 Tower was constructed in 1991. The complex contains a four-level
parking garage with 1,249 parking spaces located under the two towers and connecting plaza. At the time of
their construction, the buildings were determmed by the City Department of Building and Safety to be in
compliance with all relevant seismic code requirements.

The City is currently the largest tenant of Figueroa Plaza, occupying approximately 320,000 square feet
of office space utilized by several City Departments. The City anticipates leasing an additional 10,000 square
feet of office space in the next six months, at which time the City will occupy approximately 34% of the total
612,000 square feet of space in the two towers. At that time, Figueroa Plaza will be utilized by the following
City Departments: the “One-Stop™ Construction Services Center, including the Department of Building and
Safety, the Bureau of Engineering, the Fire Department, City Planning Department, Office of the City Clerk and
Office of Finance, which provides building and construction permit-related services to property developers and
builders; the Cultural Affairs Department; Department of Animal Services; the Financial Management Services
of the City Controller’s Office; and other City offices. The next largest tenants of Figueroa Plaza are a 195-
attorney law firm and the County of Los Angeles, occupying 142,000 and 87,000 square feet, respectively.

The City’s lease with the current owner of Figueroa Plaza granted the City a first right of refusal in the
event the building owner decided to sell the property. On March 28, 2007, the owner informed the City of its
mtention to sell the property for $219 million. The City Council took action to require that an analysis of the
offer be undertaken and, in connection therewith, obtained an appraisal and review appraisal of the Figueroa
Plaza site and improvements. The appraisal and review appraisal concluded, based upon the assumptions and
conditions expressed therein, that the market value of the Figueroa Plaza site and improvements as of April 30,
2007 was $214 nullion. Upon review and analysis, the City Council determined that the City should acquire the
property based upon the right of first refusal.

The City has utilized internal borrowings to pay an initial deposit to acquire the Figueroa Plaza site and
improvements, in the amount of $25 million. Accordingly, proceeds of sale of the Series 2007-B Bonds in the
approximate amount of $25 million will be used to reimburse the City for such borrowings. An additional
approximately $194 million from proceeds of sale of the Series 2007-B Bonds will be used for the remaining
portion of the acquisition costs of Figueroa Plaza at closing, scheduled to occur concurrently with the issuance
of the Bonds.
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Property Generally

For additional information regarding insurance on the Property, maintenance, replacement and
substitution of Property and similar matters, see “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE
BONDS” herein and APPENDIX C — “CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING
DOCUMENTS — THE EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT — Maintenance; Taxes, Insurance;, and Other
Matters™ and “~ THE FACILITY LEASE AGREEMENT — Maintenance; Taxes; Insurance; and Other Matters™
herein.

THE BOND INSURER, THE BOND INSURANCE POLICIES
AND THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND POLICIES

The Bond Insurer, Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, doing business in California as FGIC
Insurance Company (“Financial Guaranty” or “FGIC”) has supplied the following information for
inclusion in this Official Statement. No representation is made by the City, the Corporation or the
Underwriters as to the accuracy or completeness of this information.

Payments Under the FGIC Bond Insurance Policies

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Financial Guaranty will issue a separate Municipal Bond
New Issue Insurance Policy for the Insured Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B Bonds (each policy
being referred to herein as the “Bond Insurance Policy™ and collectively, the “Bond Insurance Policies™). Each
Bond Insurance Policy unconditionally guarantees the payment of that portion of the principal or acereted value
(if applicable) of and interest on the respective Series of Insured Bonds which has become due for payment, but
shall be unpaid by reason of nonpayment by the City as the obligor of the Basic Lease Payments relating to the
respective Series of the Insured Bonds. Financial Guaranty will make such payments to U.S. Bank Trust
National Association, or its successor as its agent (the “Fiscal Agent™), on the later of the date on which such
principal, accreted value or interest (as applicable) is due or on the business day next following the day on which
Financial Guaranty shall have received notice (in accordance with the terms of each Bond Insurance Policy)
from an owner of Insured Bonds or the trustee or paying agent (if any) of the nonpayment of such amount by the
City. The Fiscal Agent will disburse such amount due on any Insured Bond to its owner upon receipt by the
Fiscal Agent of evidence satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent of the owner’s right to receive payment of the
principal, accreted value or interest (as applicable) due for payment and evidence, including any appropriate
mstruments of assignment, that all of such owner’s rights to payment of such principal, accreted value or interest
(as applicable) shall be vested in Financial Guaranty. The term “nonpayment™ in respect of an Insured Bond
includes any payment of principal, accreted value or interest (as applicable) made to an owner of an Insured
Bond which has been recovered from such owner pursuant to the United States Bankruptey Code by a trustee n
bankruptcy in accordance with a final, nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction.

Once issued, each Bond Insurance Policy is non-cancellable by Financial Guaranty. FEach Bond
Insurance Policy covers failure to pay principal (or accreted value, if applicable) of the Insured Bonds on their
stated maturity dates and their mandatory sinking fund redemption dates, and not on any other date on which the
Insured Bonds may have been otherwise called for redemption, accelerated or advanced in maturity. Each Bond
Insurance Policy also covers the failure to pay interest on the stated date for its payment. In the event that
payment of the Insured Bonds is accelerated, Financial Guaranty will only be obligated to pay principal (or
accreted value, if applicable) and interest in the originally scheduled amounts on the originally scheduled
payment dates. Upon such payment, Financial Guaranty will become the owner of the Insured Bond,
appurtenant coupon or right to payment of principal or interest on such Insured Bond and will be fully
subrogated to all of the Insured Bondholder’s rights thereunder.

The Bond Insurance Policies do not insure any risk other than Nonpayment by the City, as defined in
each Bond Insurance Policy. Specifically, the Bond Insurance Policies do not cover: (i) payment on
acceleration, as a result of a call for redemption (other than mandatory sinking fund redemption) or as a result of
any other advancement of maturity; (i1) payment of any redemption, prepayment or acceleration premium; or
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(111) nonpayment of principal (or accreted value, if applicable) or interest caused by the insolvency or negligence
or any other act or omission of the trustee or paying agent, if any.

As a condition of its commitment to msure Bonds, Financial Guaranty may be granted certain rights
under the Bond documentation. The specific rights, if any, granted to Financial Guaranty in connection with its
msurance of the Insured Bonds may be set forth in the description of the principal legal documents appearing
elsewhere in this Official Statement, and reference should be made thereto.

The Bond Insurance Policies are not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security Fund
specified in Article 76 of the New York Insurance Law.

The Bond Insurance Policies are not covered by the California Insurance Guaranty Association
(California Insurance Code, Article 14.2).

The FGIC Debt Service Reserve Fund Policies

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Financial Guaranty will issue a separate Municipal Bond
Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy for each of the Series 2007-A Bonds (including the Series 2007-A Bonds
which are not insured by the Bond Insurance Policy relating to the Insured Series 2007-A Bonds) and the Series
2007-B Bonds, each such policy being referred to as the “Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy™ and collectively,
the “Debt Service Reserve Fund Policies.” Each Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy unconditionally guarantees
the payment of that portion of the principal or accreted value (if applicable) of and interest on the respective
Series of Bonds which has become due for payment, but shall be unpaid by reason of nonpayment by the City as
obligor of the Basic L.ease Payments relating to the respective Series of the Bonds, provided that the aggregate
amount paid under each Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy for the respective Series of Bonds may not exceed
the maximum amount set forth in the Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy relating thereto, $10,979,895.45 for the
Series 2007-A Bonds and $14,439,787.50 for the Series 2007-B Bonds. Financial Guaranty will make such
payments to the paying agent (the “Paying Agent™) for the Bonds on the later of the date on which such
principal or accreted value (if applicable) and interest is due or on the business day next following the day on
which Financial Guaranty shall have received telephonic or telegraphic notice subsequently confirmed in
writing or written notice by registered or certified mail from the Paying Agent of the nonpayment of such
amount by the City. The term “nonpayment™ in respect of a Bond includes any payment of principal, acereted
value or interest (as applicable) made to an owner of a Bond which has been recovered from such owner
pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in accordance with a final
nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction.

Each Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy is non-cancellable and the premium will be fully paid at the
time of delivery of the Bonds. Each Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy covers failure to pay principal or
accreted value (if applicable) of the Bonds on their respective stated maturity dates, or dates on which the same
shall have been called for mandatory sinking fund redemption, and not on any other date on which the Bonds
may have been accelerated, and covers the failure to pay an installment of mterest on the stated date for its
payment. Each Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy shall terminate on the earlier of the scheduled final maturity
date of the respective Series of Bonds outstanding as of the issuance date of each Debt Service Reserve Fund
Policy or the date on which no Bonds are outstanding under the authorizing document.

Generally, in connection with its issuance of a Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy, Financial Guaranty
requires, among other things, (i) that, so long as it has not failed to comply with its payvment obligations under
each Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy, it be granted the power to exercise any remedies available at law or
under the authorizing document other than (A) acceleration of the Bonds or (B) remedies which would adversely
affect holders in the event that the City fails to reimburse Financial Guaranty for any draws on a Debt Service
Reserve Fund Policy; and (11) that any amendment or supplement to or other modification of the principal legal
documents be subject to Financial Guaranty’s consent. The specific rights, if any, granted to Financial Guaranty
in connection with its issuance of each Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy may be set forth in the description of
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the principal legal documents appearing elsewhere in this Official Statement. Reference should be made as well
to such description for a discussion of the circumstances, if any, under which the City as the obligor of the Basic
Lease Payments relating to the respective Series of Bonds is required to provide additional or substitute credit
enhancement, and related matters.

The Debt Service Reserve Fund Policies are not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security
Fund specified in Article 76 of the New York Insurance Law.

The Debt Service Reserve Fund Policies are not covered by the California Insurance Guaranty
Association (California Insurance Code, Article 14.2).

Financial Guaranty Insurance Company

Financial Guaranty is a New York stock insurance corporation that writes financial guaranty insurance
in respect of public finance and structured finance obligations and other financial obligations, including credit
default swaps. Financial Guaranty is licensed to engage in the financial guaranty insurance business in all 50
states, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands and the United
Kingdom.

Financial Guaranty is a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of FGIC Corporation, a Delaware corporation.
At March 31, 2007, the principal owners of FGIC Corporation and the approximate percentage of its outstanding
common stock owned by each were as follows: The PMI Group, Inc. — 42%; affiliates of the Blackstone Group
L.P. — 23%; and affiliates of the Cypress Group L.L.C. — 23%. Neither FGIC Corporation nor any of its
stockholders or affiliates is obligated to pay any debts of Financial Guaranty or any claims under any insurance
policy, including the Bond Insurance Policies or the Debt Service Reserve Fund Policies, issued by Financial
Guaranty.

Financial Guaranty is subject to the insurance laws and regulations of the State of New York, where
Financial Guaranty is domiciled, including New York’s comprehensive financial guaranty insurance law. That
law, among other things, limits the business of each financial guaranty insurer to financial guaranty msurance
(and related lines); requires that each financial guaranty insurer maintain a minimum surplus to policyholders;
establishes limits on the aggregate net amount of exposure that may be retained in respect of a particular issuer
or revenue source (known as single risk limits) and on the aggregate net amount of exposure that may be
retained 1n respect of particular types of risk as compared to the policyholders” surplus (known as aggregate risk
limits); and establishes contingency, loss and unearned premium reserve requirements. In addition, Financial
Guaranty is also subject to the applicable insurance laws and regulations of all other jurisdictions in which it is
licensed to transact insurance business. The insurance laws and regulations, as well as the level of supervisory
authority that may be exercised by the various insurance regulators, vary by jurisdiction.

At March 31, 2007, Financial Guaranty had net admitted assets of approximately $3.947 billion, total
liabilities of approximately $2.828 billion, and total capital and policyholders’ surplus of approximately $1.119
billion, determined in accordance with statutory accounting practices (“SAP™) prescribed or permitted by
msurance regulatory authorities.

The unaudited financial statements as of March 31, 2007, and the audited consolidated financial
statements of Financial Guaranty and subsidiaries, on the basis of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP™), as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, which have been filed with the Nationally
Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repositories (“NRMSIRs™), are hereby included by specific
reference in this Official Statement. Any statement contained herein under the heading “THE BOND
INSURER, THE BOND INSURANCE POLICIES AND THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND POLICIES”
or m any documents included by specific reference herein, shall be modified or superseded to the extent required
by any statement in any document subsequently filed by Financial Guaranty with such NRMSIRs, and shall not
be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Official Statement. All financial
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statements of Financial Guaranty (if any) included in documents filed by Financial Guaranty with the NRMSIRs
subsequent to the date of this Official Statement and prior to the termination of the offering of the Bonds shall
be deemed to be included by specific reference into this Official Statement and to be a part hereof from the
respective dates of filing of such documents.

The New York State Insurance Department recognizes only SAP for determining and reporting
the financial condition and results of operations of an insurance company, for determining its solvency
under the New York Insurance Law, and for determining whether its financial condition warrants the
payment of a dividend to its stockholders. Although Financial Guaranty prepares both GAAP and SAP
financial statements, no consideration is given by the New York State Insurance Department to financial
statements prepared in accordance with GAAP in making such determinations. A discussion of the
principal differences between SAP and GAAP is contained in the notes to Financial Guaranty’s audited
SAP financial statements.

Copies of Financial Guaranty’s most recently published GAAP and SAP financial statements are
available upon request to: Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, 125 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10017,
Attention: Corporate Communications Department. Financial Guaranty’s telephone number 1s (212) 312-3000.

Financial Guaranty’s Credit Ratings

The financial strength of Financial Guaranty 1s rated “AAA™ by Standard & Poor’s, a Division of The
MecGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., “Aaa’ by Moody’s Investors Service, and “*AAA™ by Fitch Ratings. Each rating
of Financial Guaranty should be evaluated independently. The ratings reflect the respective ratings agencies’
current assessments of the insurance financial strength of Financial Guaranty. Any further explanation of any
rating may be obtained only from the applicable rating agency. These ratings are not recommendations to buy,
sell or hold the Insured Bonds, and are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agencies. Any
downward revision or withdrawal of any of the above ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of
the Insured Bonds. Financial Guaranty does not guarantee the market price or investment value of the Insured
Bonds nor does it guarantee that the ratings on the Insured Bonds will not be revised or withdrawn.

Neither Financial Guaranty nor any of its affiliates accepts any responsibility for the accuracy or
completeness of the Official Statement or any information or disclosure that is provided to potential
purchasers of the Bonds, or omitted from such disclosure, other than with respect to the accuracy of
information with respect to Financial Guaranty, the Bond Insurance Policies or the Debt Service Reserve
Fund Policies under the heading “THE BOND INSURER, THE BOND INSURANCE POLICIES AND
THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND POLICIES.” In addition, Financial Guaranty makes no
representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing in the Bonds.

THE CITY

The City was incorporated in 1781. The original Charter of the City was adopted in 1850, and most
recently amended in 1999, with an effective date of July 1, 2000. The governing body of the City consists of a
Mayor and City Council, comprised of fifteen members. The City is the second most populous city in the United
States with a 2007 population of 4 million persons. See APPENDIX A — “CITY OF LOS ANGELES
INFORMATION STATEMENT” hereto.

THE CORPORATION

The Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles is a nonprofit public benefit corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (Title 1, Division 2, Part 2 of the California
Corporations Code), for the purpose of providing financial assistance to the City by acquiring, constructing,
mproving, and developing certain equipment and real property together with appurtenances and appurtenant
work for the use, benefit and enjoyment of the public. The Corporation was formed at the request of the City n
1984. The directors of the Corporation receive no compensation and serve at the consent of the Council of the
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City. The City will indemnify the directors of the Corporation for any liabilities occurring in connection with the
performance of their duties.

RISK FACTORS

The following factors, along with all other information in this Official Statement, should be considered
by potential investors in evaluating the risks inherent in the purchase of the Bonds.

Limited Obligations of the City

The City has covenanted in the Lease Agreements to take such actions as may be necessary to include
the Basic Lease Payments in its annual budgets and to make the necessary annual appropriations therefor. THE
OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY TO BUDGET FOR AND THE OBLIGATIONS TCO MAKE LEASE
PAYMENTS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY FOR WHICH THE CITY IS
OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE, OR HAS LEVIED OR PLEDGED, ANY FORM OF TAXATION.
NEITHER THE BONDS NOR THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY TO MAKE LEASE PAYMENTS
UNDER THE LEASE AGREEMENTS CONSTITUTE A DEBT OF THE CITY OR A PLEDGE OF THE
FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE CITY. THE CORPORATION HAS NO TAXING POWER.

Abatement

In the event of the loss of, damage to or destruction or condemnation of any of the Property which
causes the City not to have the use and possession of all or a substantial part of such Property, the City’s
obligation to make the Basic Lease Payments due under the related Lease Agreement will be abated and,
notwithstanding: (1) the provisions of the Lease Agreements specifying the extent of such abatement; (i1) the
City’s covenants to maintain certain rental terruption insurance and to insure against certain other risk of loss;
and (i11) the funding of the Reserve Accounts for each Series of the Bonds, the resulting Basic Lease Payments
(and such other funds) may not be sufficient to pay all of the remaining principal and interest due with respect to
the Bonds. See APPENDIX C — “CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING
DOCUMENTS — THE EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT — Damage, Destruction and Use of Proceeds —
Abatement” and “— THE FACILITY LEASE AGREEMENT — Damage, Destruction and Eminent Domain, Use
of Proceeds — Abatement™ herein.

No Limitation on Incurring Additional Obligations

Neither the I.ease Agreements nor the Indenture contains any legal limitations on the ability of the City
to enter into other obligations that may constitute additional charges against its General Fund revenues. To the
extent that the City incurs additional obligations, the funds available to make Basic Lease Payments may be
decreased. The City is currently liable on other obligations payable from General Fund revenues and 1s currently
contemplating entering into other such obligations. See APPENDIX A — “CITY OF LOS ANGELES
INFORMATION STATEMENT — BONDED AND OTHER INDEBTEDNESS.”

Earthquake and Seismic Conditions

A number of known and uncharted geologic faults run through the City, and the City lies near the San
Andreas Fault, which is the boundary between the Pacific and North American tectonic plates. Seismic activity
could damage taxable property in the City causing a reduction in taxable values, and therefore tax revenues
available to the General Fund to make Lease Payments. Seismic activity may also affect the use and occupancy
of the Property. The City generally does not maintain earthquake insurance coverage against loss or damage to
City property due to earthquakes. Instead, the City relies on its general reserves as well as the expectation that
some disaster relief funds, which could be mmimal amounts in comparison to the losses, will be available from
the Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA™) to address any resulting damage from seismic activity.
The City has received a waiver from the requirement under federal law that it acquire earthquake insurance on
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facilities that were the beneficiaries of prior FEMA grants. There is no assurance that sufficient City reserves or
FEMA assistance would be available in the event of a natural disaster for the repair or replacement of any
Property Component. The Lease Agreements do not require the City to maintain insurance coverage insuring
against loss or damage due to earthquakes and the City does not intend to purchase such insurance coverage
during the Term of the Lease Agreements. See APPENDIX A — “CITY OF LOS ANGELES INFORMATION
STATEMENT - Seismic Considerations.”

Constitutional and Statutory Limitations on Increase of Revenues

Article XIIT A (Limitation on Ad Valorem Tax), Article XIIT B (Government Spending Limitation),
Article XIII C (Voter Approval for Local Tax Levies) and Article XIIT D (Assessment and Property Related Fee
Reform) of the Constitution of the State of California were each adopted as measures that qualified for the ballot
pursuant to California’s mitiative process. From time to time, other initiative measures may be adopted, which
may affect the City’s revenues and its ability to expend said revenues. The above-mentioned measures and any
future measures could restrict the City’s ability to raise additional funds for its General Fund. See APPENDIX A
— “CITY OF LOS ANGELES INFORMATION STATEMENT — LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND
APPROPRIATIONS.”

Limitations on Default Remedies

In the event of non-payment by the City of the Lease Payments, or other default by the City under the
Lease Agreements, the enforcement of any remedies provided in the Indenture and in the Lease Agreements by
or on behalf of Bondholders could prove both expensive and time consuming. Although the Indenture and the
Lease Agreements provide that if there is a default by the City under a Lease Agreement the Trustee may
terminate the Lease Agreement and re-let the Property, such Property may not be casily re-leased. Furthermore,
due to the essential nature of the governmental function of the Property Components, it is not certain whether a
court would permit the exercise of the remedies of repossession and reletting with respect to any or all of the
Property. The Trustee may exercise any and all remedies available pursuant to law or the Lease Agreements, but
there shall be no right under any circumstances to accelerate the Lease Payments not then in default to be
mmmediately due and payable. In addition, under the United States Bankruptcy Code, a bankruptcy case may be
filed by the Corporation or by the City. In general, the filing of any such bankruptcy petition operates as a stay
against enforcement of the terms of the agreements to which the bankrupt entity is a party, and in the bankruptcy
process, executory contracts such as the Indenture or the Lease Agreements may be subject to the assumption or
rejection by the bankrupt party. In the event of any such rejection, the non-rejecting party or its assigns may
become an unsecured claimant of the rejecting party. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently
with the Bonds (including Bond Counsel’s approving opinion) will be qualified as to the enforceability of the
various legal instruments, by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization, msolvency or other similar
laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and by general principles of equity applied in the exercise of
judicial discretion.

Insurance Risk

The City directly assumes virtually all insurable risks without procuring commercial insurance policies.
The City administers, adjusts, settles, defends and pays claims from budgeted resources. It is self-insured for
workers’ compensation as permitted under State law. Funds are budgeted annually to provide for claims and
other liabilities based both on the City’s historical record of payments and an evaluation of known or anticipated
claims. See APPENDIX A — “CITY OF LOS ANGELES INFORMATION STATEMENT — Risk Retention
Program” and APPENDIX C - “CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING
DOCUMENTS — THE EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT — Maintenance;, Taxes; Insurance and Other
Matters™ and ““~ THE FACILITY LEASE AGREEMENT — Maintenance; Taxes; Insurance and Other Matters.”
The Lease Agreements permit the City to insure by a combination of commercial insurance, risk pooling under a
joint powers authority or similar statutory provision, self-funded loss reserves and risk retention programs in
such proportions as are deemed appropriate and actuarially sound by professional risk management personnel or
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independent consultants. The Lease Agreements require that the City maintain insurance agamnst loss or damage
to any equipment and structures constituting any part of the Property by collision, fire and lightning, with
extended coverage and vandalism and malicious mischief insurance. Such insurance does not cover acts of
terrorism or certain other casualties. Rental or business interruption insurance shall be maintained commencing
upon possession of the Property by the City; however, some rental or business interruption mnsurance policies
may require that the insured, such as the City, elect to rebuild a damaged property in order for such rental
interruption insurance to be payable under the policy. See APPENDIX C — “CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND
SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING DOCUMENTS - THE EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT -
Maintenance; Taxes; Insurance and Other Matters” and <~ THE FACILITY LEASE AGREEMENT —
Maintenance; Taxes; Insurance and Other Matters™ herein. The Property could be damaged or destroyed due to
carthquake or other casualty for which the Property i1s uninsured. Therefore, the Lease Agreements do not
require that the City either insure against or self-insure against every potential risk of loss and there is a risk that
damage or destruction of the Property could occur for which no insurance or City funds will be available. Under
these circumstances an abatement of Basic Lease Payments could occur and could continue indefinitely. There
can be no assurance that the insurance providers will pay claims under the respective policies promptly or at all,
should a claim be made by the City in connection with loss or damage to a Property under such policies. It is
possible that an insurance provider will refuse to pay a claim, especially if it 1s substantial, and force the City to
sue to collect on or settle the insurance claim. TFurther, there can be no assurances that amounts received as
proceeds from insurance will be sufficient to redeem the Bonds or to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds
as and when due.

The City believes that the insurance arrangements provided in the I.ease Agreements will be adequate to
reasonably protect the City from the various liabilities that arise from use of the Property and to provide for the
payment of Basic I.ease Payments in the event that the City loses beneficial use of the Property due to risks for
which fire and extended coverage insurance has been obtained. However, no assurance can be given that such
insurance arrangements will cover all events causing damage or will be adequate to cover the payment of Basic
Lease Payments in all circumstances.

Environmental Concerns

Owners or operators of real property may be required by law to remedy conditions of a property relating
to releases or threatened releases of hazardous substances. The federal Comprehensive Environmental Response
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 or the “*Superfund Act” is the most widely applicable of these laws, but
California laws with regard to hazardous substances are also stringent. Under many of these laws, the owner or
operator is obligated to remedy a hazardous substance condition on the property whether or not the owner or
operator created the hazardous substance condition. The City knows of no existing hazardous substances which
require remedial action on or near the Property. However, it i1s possible that such substances do currently or
potentially exist and the City is currently unaware of such condition.

Utility Users’ Taxes

The City’s imposition and collection of the telephone users' tax, which is a source of revenue to the
General Fund, are the subject of several ongoing legal challenges and a significant portion of such tax revenue
may be at risk. In addition, the City could be exposed to the risk of having to make refunds of telephone users'
tax for a limited number of years of prior collections. The City’s telephone users’ tax revenue for Fiscal Year
2007-08 1s projected to be $270 million or about 6 percent of the General Fund revenue. See APPENDIX A —
“CITY OF LOS ANGELES INFORMATION STATEMENT — MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE
SOURCES—Utility Users” Tax,” herein.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

Pursuant to the Indenture and a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Bonds, the City has
covenanted for the benefit of Bond Owners to provide certain financial information and operating data relating
to the City by not later than June 30th of each year, commencing on June 30, 2008, for the prior fiscal year, n
the form of an annual report (the “Annual Report™), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain
enumerated events, if deemed by the City to be material. The Annual Report will be filed by the City with each
Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repository and the State Repository, if any. The
notices of material events will be filed by the City with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and the
State Repository, if any. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report or the
notices of material events is summarized in APPENDIX H — “FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
CERTIFICATE.” These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriters m complying with S.E.C.
Rule 15¢2-12(b) (5).

TAX MATTERS REGARDING SERIES 2007-A BONDS AND SERIES 2007-B1 BONDS
Introduction

Interest on the Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B1 Bonds is intended to be exempt from
Federal mcome taxes to the extent described herein. Interest on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds, however, 1s not
exempt from Federal income taxes. Approximately 24% of the rentable office space in Figueroa Plaza is leased
to nongovernmental private entities. The acquisition by the City of such privately used space cannot be financed
on a Federally tax exempt basis. The proceeds of the sale of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds will be used to finance
the portion of the acquisition costs of Figueroa Plaza proportional to the private use portion of the property.
Interest earned on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds will thus be subject to Federal income taxation. See “TAX
MATTERS REGARDING SERIES 2007-B2 BONDS” herein.

Federal Income Taxes

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), imposes certain requirements that must
be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds for interest
thereon to be and remain excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Noncompliance with
such requirements could cause the interest on the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds to be included in
gross income for Federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue of such Bonds.

Pursuant to the Indenture and the Tax and Nonarbitrage Certificate to be executed by the Corporation
and the City on the date of issuance of the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds (the “Tax Certificate™), the
Corporation and the City have covenanted to comply with the applicable requirements of the Code in order to
maintain the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds from gross income for
Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code. In addition, the Corporation and the City have
made certain additional covenants, representations and certifications in the Indenture and the Tax Certificate.
Bond Counsel will not independently verify compliance with such covenants or the accuracy of those
representations and certifications.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with the aforementioned
covenants, and the accuracy of certain representations and certifications made by the Corporation and the City
as described above, interest on the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds 1s excluded from gross income for
Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code. Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such
interest 1s not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code
with respect to individuals and corporations.
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Interest on the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds is, however, included in the adjusted current
earnings of certain corporations for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on such
corporations.

State Taxes

Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds (including the Series 2007-B2 Bonds) is
exempt from California personal income taxes. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to other California tax
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds or as to the taxability of the Bonds or the income therefrom
under the laws of any state other than California.

Original Issue Discount

Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that the difference between the principal amount of the Series
2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds that are issued with original issue discount, if any (collectively, the
*“Discount Bonds™) and the initial offering price to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons
or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at which price a substantial amount of
such Discount Bonds of the same maturity was sold constitutes original issue discount which is excluded from
gross income for Federal income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the Series 2007-A and Series
2007-B1 Bonds. Further, such original issue discount accrues actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over
the term of each Discount Bond and the basis of each Discount Bond acquired at such initial offering price by an
mitial purchaser thereof will be increased by the amount of such accrued original issue discount. The accrual of
original issue discount may be taken into account as an increase in the amount of tax exempt income for
purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning Discount Bonds, even though there will not
be a corresponding cash payment. Owners of Discount Bonds are advised that they should consult with their
own advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning or disposing of such Discount
Bonds.

Original Issue Premium

The Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds that are issued with original issue premium, if any
(collectively, the “Premium Bonds™) are being offered at prices m excess of their principal amounts. An initial
purchaser with an initial adjusted basis in a Premium Bond in excess of its principal amount will have
amortizable bond premium which is not deductible from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. The
amount of amortizable bond premium for a taxable vear is determined actuarially on a constant interest rate
basis over the term of each Premium Bond based on the purchaser’s yield to maturity (or, in the case of
Premium Bonds callable prior to their maturity, over the period to the call date, based on the purchaser’s vield to
the call date and giving effect to any call premium). For purposes of determining gain or loss on the sale or other
disposition of a Premium Bond, an initial purchaser who acquires such obligation with an amortizable bond
premium is required to decrease such purchaser’s adjusted basis in such Premium Bond annually by the amount
of amortizable bond premium for the taxable vear. The amortization of bond premium may be taken into
account as a reduction in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax
consequences of owning such Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds. Owners of Premium Bonds are advised
that they should consult with their own advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning
or disposing of such Premium Bonds.

Ancillary Tax Matters

Ownership of the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds may result in other Federal tax
consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, certain S corporations, foreign corporations
with branches in the United States, property and casualty insurance companies, individuals receiving Social
Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals seeking to claim the earned income credit, and taxpayers
(including banks, thrift institutions and other financial mstitutions) who may be deemed to have incurred or
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continued indebtedness to purchase or to carry the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds. Commencing with
interest paid in 2006, interest paid on tax-exempt obligations such as the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1
Bonds 1s subject to information reporting to the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS™) in a manner similar to
interest paid on taxable obligations. In addition, interest on the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1 Bonds may be
subject to backup withholding if such interest is paid to a registered owner that (a) fails to provide certain
identifying information (such as the registered owner’s taxpayver identification number) in the manner required
by the IRS, or (b) has been identified by the IRS as being subject to backup withholding.

Bond Counsel is not rendering any opinion as to any Federal tax matters concerning the Series 2007-A
Bonds and Series 2007-B1 Bonds other than those described under the caption “TAX MATTERS
REGARDING SERIES 2007-A BONDS AND SERIES 2007-B1 BONDS™. Prospective investors, particularly
those who may be subject to special rules described above, are advised to consult their own tax advisors
regarding the Federal tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Series 2007-A and Series 2007-B1
Bonds, as well as any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state or other taxing jurisdiction.

Changes in Law and Post Issuance Events

Legislative or administrative actions and court decisions, at either the federal or state level, could have
an adverse impact on the potential benefits of the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds for
Federal or state income tax purposes, and thus on the value or marketability of the Bonds. This could result
from changes to Federal or state income tax rates, changes in the structure of Federal or state income taxes
(including replacement with another type of tax), repeal of the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross
mcome for Federal or state income tax purposes, or otherwise. It is not possible to predict whether any
legislative or administrative actions or court decisions having an adverse impact on the Federal or state income
tax treatment of holders of the Bonds may occur. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own
tax advisers regarding such matters.

On May 21, 2007, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to hear Davis v. Kentucky Dep’t Of Revenue of The
Finance and Admin. Cabinet, 197 S.W.3d 557 (2006), a case that has questioned the permissibility under the
U.S. Constitution of the Commonwealth of Kentucky providing for a state income tax exemption for interest on
obligations i1ssued by Kentucky or its subdivisions while taxing interest on obligations of other states or their
subdivisions. The laws of California currently result in such differing treatment, by exempting mnterest on
obligations of California and its subdivisions and instrumentalities while taxing the interest on obligations issued
by other states and therr subdivisions or instrumentalities.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of issuance
and delivery of the Series 2007-A Bonds and Series 2007-B1 Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the
Series 2007-A Bonds or Series 2007-B1 Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to any Federal, state or
local tax law consequences with respect to the Series 2007-A Bonds or Series 2007-B1 Bonds, or the interest
thereon, if any action is taken with respect to the Series 2007-A Bonds or Series 2007-B1 Bonds or the proceeds
thereof upon the advice or approval of other counsel.

TAX MATTERS REGARDING SERIES 2007-B2 BONDS

Federally Taxable Offered Bonds

The following is a summary of certain anticipated United States federal income tax consequences of the
purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds. The summary is based upon the provisions
of the Code, the regulations promulgated thereunder and the judicial and administrative rulings and decisions
now 1n effect, all of which are subject to change. The summary generally addresses Series 2007-B2 Bonds held
as capital assets and does not purport to address all aspects of federal income taxation that may affect particular
mvestors i light of their individual circumstances or certain types of investors subject to special treatment under
the federal income tax laws, including but not limited to financial institutions, insurance companies, dealers in
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securities or currencies, persons holding such Bonds as a hedge against currency risks or as a position in a
“straddle” for tax purposes, or persons whose functional currency is not the United States dollar. Potential
purchasers of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors in determining the federal, state
or local tax consequences to them of the purchase, holding and disposition of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds.

The advice set forth in this section was not intended or written by Bond Counsel to be used and cannot
be used by an owner of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed on
the owner of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds. The advice set forth herein is written to support the promotion or
marketing of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds. Each owner of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds should seek advice based on
its particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

Generally

In the opmnion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds is not excluded from gross
mcome for federal income tax purposes and so will be fully subject to federal income taxation. Purchasers other
than those who purchase Series 2007-B2 Bonds in the initial offering at their principal amounts will be subject
to federal income tax accounting rules affecting the timing and/or characterization of payments received with
respect to such bonds. In general, interest paid on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds and recovery of accrued original
1ssue and market discount, if any, will be treated as ordinary income to a bondholder and, after adjustment for
the foregoing, principal payments will be treated as a return of capital.

Original Issue Discount

The following summary is a general discussion of certain federal income tax consequences of the
purchase, ownership and disposition of Series 2007-B2 Bonds issued with original issue discount (*Discount
Series 2007-B2 Bonds™). A Series 2007-B2 Bond will be treated as having been issued at an original issue
discount if the excess of its “stated redemption price at maturity” (defined below) over its issue price (defined as
the initial offering price to the public at which a substantial amount of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds of the same
maturity have first been sold to the public, excluding bond houses and brokers) equals or exceeds one quarter of
one percent of such Series 2007-B2 Bond’s stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the number of
complete vears to its maturity.

A Series 2007-B2 Bond’s “stated redemption price at maturity™ is the total of all payments provided by
the Series 2007-B2 Bond that are not payments of “qualified stated interest.” Generally, the term “qualified
stated interest” includes stated interest that is unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt
mstruments of the issuer) at least annually at a single fixed rate.

In general, the amount of original issue discount includible in income by the initial holder of a Discount
Series 2007-B2 Bond is the sum of the “daily portions™ of original issue discount with respect to such Series
2007-B2 Bond for each day during the taxable year in which such holder held such Series 2007-B2 Bond. The
daily portion of original issue discount on any Discount Series 2007-B2 Bond is determined by allocating to
each day in any “accrual period” a ratable portion of the original issue discount allocable to that accrual period.

An accrual period may be of any length, and may vary in length over the term of a Series 2007-B2
Bond, provided that each accrual period i1s not longer than one year and each scheduled payment of principal or
mterest occurs at the end of an accrual period. The amount of original issue discount allocable to each accrual
period 1s equal to the difference between (1) the product of the Series 2007-B2 Bond’s adjusted issue price at the
beginning of such accrual period and its yield to maturity (determined on the basis of compounding at the close
of each accrual period and appropriately adjusted to take into account the length of the particular accrual period)
and (i1) the amount of any qualified stated interest pavments allocable to such accrual period. The “adjusted
1ssue price” of a Discount Series 2007-B2 Bond at the beginning of any accrual period 1s the sum of the issue
price of the Discount Series 2007-B2 Bond plus the amount of original issue discount allocable to all prior
accrual periods minus the amount of any prior payments on the Series 2007-B2 Bond that were not qualified

27



stated interest payments. Under these rules, holders will have to include in income increasingly greater amounts
of original issue discount in successive accrual periods.

Holders utilizing the accrual method of accounting may generally, upon election, include all interest
(including stated interest, acquisition discount, original issue discount, de minimis original issue discount,
market discount, de minimis market discount, and unstated interest, as adjusted by any amortizable bond
premium or acquisition premium) on the Series 2007-B2 Bond by using the constant yield method applicable to
original issue discount, subject to certain limitations and exceptions.

Market Discount

Any owner who purchases a Series 2007-B2 Bond at a price which includes market discount in excess
of a prescribed de minimis amount (i.e., at a purchase price that is less than its adjusted issue price in the hands
of an original owner) will be required to recharacterize all or a portion of the gain as ordinary income upon
receipt of each scheduled or unscheduled principal payment or upon other disposition. In particular, such owner
will generally be required either (a) to allocate each such principal payment to accrued market discount not
previously mcluded in income and to recognize ordinary income to that extent and to treat any gain upon sale or
other disposition of such a Series 2007-B2 Bond as ordnary income to the extent of any remaining accrued
market discount (under this caption) or (b) to elect to include such market discount in income currently as it
accrues on all market discount instruments acquired by such owner on or after the first day of the taxable year to
which such election applies.

The Code authorizes the Treasury Department to issue regulations providing for the method for accruing
market discount on debt instruments the principal of which is payable in more than one installment. Until such
time as regulations are issued by the Treasury Department, certain rules described in the legislative history of
the Tax Reform Act of 1986 will apply. Under those rules, market discount will be included in income either (a)
on a constant interest basis or (b) in proportion to the accrual of stated interest.

An owner of a Series 2007-B2 Bond who acquires such Bond at a market discount also may be required
to defer, until the maturity date of such Series 2007-B2 Bonds or the earlier disposition in a taxable transaction,
the deduction of a portion of the amount of interest that the owner paid or accrued during the taxable year on
indebtedness incurred or maintained to purchase or carry a Series 2007-B2 Bond in excess of the aggregate
amount of interest (including original issue discount) includable in such owner’s gross income for the taxable
vear with respect to such Series 2007-B2 Bond. The amount of such net interest expense deferred in a taxable
vear may not exceed the amount of market discount accrued on the Series 2007-B2 Bond for the days during the
taxable year on which the owner held the Series 2007-B2 Bond and, in general, would be deductible when such
market discount is includable in income. The amount of any remaining deferred deduction is to be taken into
account in the taxable year in which the Series 2007-B2 Bond matures or is disposed of in a taxable transaction.
In the case of a disposition in which gain or loss is not recognized in whole or in part, any remaining deferred
deduction will be allowed to the extent gain is recognized on the disposition. This deferral rule does not apply if
the bondowner elects to include such market discount in income currently as described above.

28



Bond Premium

A purchaser of a Series 2007-B2 Bond who purchases such Series 2007-B2 Bond at a cost greater than
its then principal amount (or, in the case of a Series 2007-B2 Bond issued with original issue premium, at a
price in excess of its adjusted issue price) will have amortizable bond premium. If the holder elects to amortize
the premium under Section 171 of the Code (which election will apply to all bonds held by the holder on the
first day of the taxable year to which the election applies, and to all bonds thereafter acquired by the holder),
such a purchaser must amortize the premium using constant yield principles based on the purchaser’s yield to
maturity. Amortizable bond premium is generally treated as an offset to interest income, and a reduction in
basis is required for amortizable bond premium that is applied to reduce interest payments. Different rules apply
to Discount Tax Exempt Offered Bonds that are acquired with “acquisition premium’(that 1s, at a price
generally in excess of the Bond’s adjusted issue price). Purchasers of any Series 2007-B2 Bonds who acquire
such Bonds at a premium (or with acquisition premium) should consult with their own tax advisors with respect
to the determination and treatment of such premium for federal income tax purposes and with respect to state
and local tax consequences of owning such Series 2007-B2 Bonds.

Sale or Redemption of Series 2007-B2 Bonds

A bondowner’s tax basis for a Series 2007-B2 Bond is the price such owner pays for the Series 2007-B2
Bond plus the amount of any original issue discount and market discount previously included in income,
reduced on account of any payments received (other than “qualified periodic interest” payments) and any
amortized bond premium. Gam or loss recognized on a sale, exchange or redemption of a Series 2007-B2 Bond,
measured by the difference between the amount realized and the Series 2007-B2 Bond basis as so adjusted, will
generally give rise to capital gain or loss if the Series 2007-B2 Bond is held as a capital asset (except as
discussed above under “Market Discount™).

Backup Withholding

A bondowner may, under certain circumstances, be subject to “backup withholding™ (currently the rate
of this withholding tax is 30% (although the rate is scheduled to be reduced over the next few year) with respect
to interest or original issue discount on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds. This withholding generally applies if the
owner of a Series 2007-B2 Bond (a) fails to furnish the Trustee or other payor with its taxpayer identification
number; (b) furnishes the Trustee or other payor an incorrect taxpayer identification number; (c) fails to report
properly interest, dividends or other “reportable payments™ as defined in the Code; or (d) under certain
circumstances, fails to provide the Trustee or other payor with a certified statement, signed under penalty of
perjury, that the taxpayer identification number provided is its correct number and that the holder is not subject
to backup withholding. Backup withholding will not apply, however, with respect to certain payments made to
bondowners, including payments to certain exempt recipients (such as certain exempt organizations) and to
certain Nonresidents (as defined below). Owners of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds should consult their tax advisors
as to their qualification for exemption from backup withholding and the procedure for obtaining the exemption.

The amount of “reportable payments™ for each calendar year and the amount of tax withheld, if any,
with respect to payments on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds will be reported to the bondowners and to the Internal
Revenue Service.

Nonresident Bondowners

Under the Code, interest and original issue discount income with respect to Series 2007-B2 Bonds held
by nonresident alien individuals, foreign corporations or other non-United States persons (“Nonresidents™)
generally will not be subject to the United States withholding tax (or backup withholding) if the Authority (or
other person who would otherwise be required to withhold tax from such payments) is provided with an
appropriate statement that the beneficial owner of the Series 2007-B2 Bond is a Nonresident. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if any such payments are effectively connected with a United States trade or business conducted
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by a Nonresident bondowner, they will be subject to regular United States income tax, but will ordinarily be
exempt from United States withholding tax.

ERISA

The Employees Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“FRISA™), and the Code
generally prohibit certain transactions between a qualified employee benefit plan under ERISA or tax-qualified
retirement plans and individual retirement accounts under the Code (collectively, the *“Plans™) and persons who,
with respect to a Plan, are fiduciaries or other “parties in interest” within the meaning of ERISA or “disqualified
persons”™ within the meaning of the Code. All fiduciaries of Plans, in consultation with their advisors, should
carefully consider the impact of ERISA and the Code on an mvestment in any Series 2007-B2 Bonds.

State Taxes

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that interest on the Series 2007-B2 Bonds 1s exempt from personal
income taxes of the State of California.

On May 21, 2007, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to hear Davis v. Kentucky Dep’t Of Revenue of The
Finance and Admin. Cabinet, 197 S.W.3d 557 (2006), a case that has questioned the permissibility under the
U.S. Constitution of the Commonwealth of Kentucky providing for a state income tax exemption for interest on
obligations i1ssued by Kentucky or its subdivisions while taxing interest on obligations of other states or their
subdivisions. The laws of California currently result in such differing treatment, by exempting mnterest on
obligations of California and its subdivisions and instrumentalities while taxing the interest on obligations issued
by other states and therr subdivisions or instrumentalities.

In all events, all investors should consult their own tax advisors in determining the federal, state, local
and other tax consequences to them of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 2007-B2 Bonds.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Bond Counsel will render an opinion with respect to the validity of the L.ease Agreements and the
Indenture, the execution and delivery of the Bonds, the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax
purposes of interest on the Series 2007-A Bonds and the Series 2007-B1 Bonds, and the exemption of interest
on all of the Bonds from present State of California personal income taxes, which opinion will be substantially
in the form appearing in APPENDIX D to this Official Statement. Copies of such approving opinion will be
available at the time of delivery of the Bonds. Bond Counsel undertakes no responsibility for the accuracy,
completeness or fairness of this Official Statement. Bond Counsel will receive compensation contingent upon
the sale and delivery of the Bonds. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the City and the Corporation by
The Law Offices of Elizabeth C. Green, Disclosure Counsel, and by Rockard J. Delgadillo, City Attorney.
Disclosure Counsel will receive compensation contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds.

LITIGATION

There is no controversy of any nature now pending against the City or the Corporation or, to the
knowledge of their respective officers, threatened, seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or
delivery of the Bonds or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Bonds or any proceedings of the
City or the Corporation taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof or the pledge or application of any
moneys or security provided for the payment of the Bonds or the use of the Bond proceeds.

There are no pending lawsuits which in the opinion of the City Attorney challenge the validity of the

Bonds, the corporate existence of the City or the Corporation, or the title of the officers thereof to their
respective offices. See APPENDIX A — “CITY OF LOS ANGELES INFORMATION STATEMENT® herein.
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Included as part of APPENDIX A is a list prepared by the Office of the City Attorney of pending matters or
cases relating to the City which involve in excess of $4,000,000 liability each.

RATINGS

Fitch Ratings (“Fitch™), Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (*Moody’s™), and Standard & Poor’s Ratings
Services, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc. (“Standard & Poor’s™), are expected to assign the
ratings of “AAA,” “Aaa”, and “AAA,” respectively, to the Insured Bonds, with the understanding that FGIC
will deliver its Bond Insurance Policies for the Insured Bonds at the time of execution and delivery of the
Bonds. Fitch and Standard & Poor’s have assigned underlying ratings of “AA-“ to the Bonds. Moody’s has
assigned underlying ratings of “A2” to the Series 2007-A Bonds and “Al1” to the Series 2007-B Bonds. The
Series 2007-A Bonds maturing in 2008 and 2009, which are not insured, have the underlying ratings of “AA-*
by Fitch and Standard & Poor’s and “A2”* by Moody’s.

Such ratings reflect only the views of such organizations and an explanation of the significance of such
ratings may be obtained from the respective agencies at the following addresses: Fitch Ratings, One State Street
Plaza, New York, New York 10004, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., 99 Church Street, New York, New York
10007 and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041. There is no
assurance that such ratings will continue for any given period of time or that they will not be revised downward
or withdrawn entirely by the rating agencies, if in the judgment of such rating agency circumstances so warrant.
Any such downward revisions or withdrawals of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of
the Bonds.

AVAILABILITY OF DOCUMENTS

Copies of the Official Statement, Lease Agreements, the Site Lease, the Indenture and the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate will be available, upon written request, from the Office of the City Administrative
Officer, Debt Management Group, 200 North Main Street, City Hall East, Room 1500, Los Angeles, California
90012, Telephone: (213) 473-7528.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Excerpts from the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30,
2006 (including the Independent Auditor’s Report regarding the Financial Statement(s)), included in
APPENDIX B hereto have been audited by Simpson & Simpson, independent auditors. Financial statements for
the City’s Departments of Airports, Harbor, and Water and Power, Fire, and Police Pension System, and Los
Angeles City Employees” Retirement System were audited by other auditors. See “INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT” in APPENDIX B hereto. Neither Simpson & Simpson, nor any other auditor was
requested to consent to the inclusion of its report in APPENDIX B and Simpson & Simpson has not undertaken
to update its report or to take any action intended or likely to elicit information concerning the accuracy
completeness or fairness of the statements made in this Official Statement, and no opmion is expressed by
Simpson & Simpson or any other auditor with respect to any event subsequent to the date of its report.

UNDERWRITING

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bond Purchase Agreement for the Series 2007-A Bonds (the
“Series 2007-A Bond Purchase Agreement™) among the City, the Corporation and E. J. De La Rosa & Co., Inc.,
as representative of the Underwriters named therein (the “Series 2007-A Bonds Underwriters™), the Series 2007-
A Bonds Underwriters have agreed to purchase the Series 2007-A Bonds from the City and the Corporation at
an aggregate purchase price of $109,501,830.59 (consisting of the par amount of the Series 2007-A Bonds of
$106,900,000.00 plus net original issue premium of $2.898,954.50, and less underwriters’ discount of
$297,123.91).
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bond Purchase Agreement for the Series 2007-B Bonds (the
“Series 2007-B Bond Purchase Agreement™) among the City, the Corporation and Citigroup Global Markets
Inc., as representative of the Underwriters named therein (the “Series 2007-B Bonds Underwriters™), the Series
2007-B Bonds Underwriters have agreed: (a) to purchase the Series 2007-B1 Bonds from the City and the
Corporation at an aggregate purchase price of $169,310,475.40 (consisting of the par amount of
$169,050,000.00, plus net original issue premium of $697.542.90 and less underwriters’ discount of
$437,067.50); and (b) to purchase the Series 2007-B2 Bonds from the City and the Corporation at an aggregate
purchase price of $51,945,727.50 (consisting of the par amount of $52,085,000.00, less underwriters” discount
of $139,272.50).

The Series 2007-A Bonds Underwriters and the Series 2007-B Bonds Underwriters are collectively
referred to herein as the “Underwriters”™ and the Series 2007-A Bond Purchase Agreement and the Series 2007-B
Bond Purchase Agreement are collectively referred to herein as the “Bond Purchase Agreements.”

Each Bond Purchase Agreement provides, among other things, that the obligations of the Underwriters
are subject to certain terms, conditions and precedents, and that the Underwriters will be obligated to purchase
all of the Bonds offered under each Bond Purchase Agreement, if any of the Bonds offered thereunder are
purchased.

The Underwriters reserve the right to join with dealers and other underwriters in offering the Bonds to
the public. The Underwriters may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers depositing Bonds
into mvestment trusts) at prices lower than the public offering prices, and such dealers may reallow any such
discounts on sales to other dealers. After the initial public offering, the public offering prices of the Bonds may
be changed from time to time by the Underwriters.

FINANCIAL ADVISORS

Gardner Underwood & Bacon LLC, Los Angeles, California and Montague DeRose and Associates,
LLC, Westlake Village, California have acted as Financial Advisors to the City m conjunction with the
execution and delivery of the Bonds. The Financial Advisors have assisted the City in preparation of this
Official Statement and in other matters related to the planning, structuring, execution and delivery of the Bonds.
The Financial Advisors will receive compensation contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds.

The Financial Advisors have not audited, authenticated or otherwise independently verified the
information set forth in the Official Statement, or any other information related to the City with respect to the
accuracy or completeness of disclosure of such information. Because of this limited participation, the Financial
Advisors make no guaranty, warranty or other representation respecting the accuracy or completeness of the
Official Statement or any other matter related to the Official Statement.
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MISCELLANEOUS
Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so
stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a

contract or agreement between the City and the Corporation and the purchasers or Owners of any of the Bonds.

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by the City.

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

By: /s/ Raymond P. Ciranna
Assistant City Administrative Officer
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INTRODUCTION

The City of Los Angeles, California (the “City™) is the second most populous city in the
United States with an estimated 2007 population of 4.02 million persons. Los Angeles is the
principal city of a metropolitan region stretching from the City of Ventura to the north, the City
of San Clemente to the south, and the City of San Bernardino to the cast.

Founded in 1781, Los Angeles was for its first century a provincial outpost under a
successive Spanish, Mexican and American rule. The City experienced a population boom
following its linkage by rail with San Francisco in 1876. l.os Angeles was selected as the
Southern California rail terminus because its natural harbor, unlike San Diego’s, seemed to offer
little challenge to San Francisco, home of the railroad barons. But what the region lacked in
commerce and industry, it made up in temperate climate and available real estate, and soon tens
and then hundreds of thousands of people living in the Northeastern and Midwestern United
States migrated to new homes in the region. The City’s population climbed to 50,000 persons in
1890, and then swelled to 1.5 million persons by 1940. Agricultural and oil production, followed
by the creation of a deep water port, the opening of the Panama Canal, and the completion of the
City-financed Owens Valley Aqueduct to provide additional water, all contributed to an
expanding economic base. During this same period, the motor car became the principal mode of
American transportation, and the City developed as the first major city of the automotive age.
Following World War 1I, the City became the focus of a new wave of migration, with its
population reaching 2.4 million persons by 1960.

The City and its surrounding metropolitan region have continued to experience growth in
population and in economic diversity. Services, wholesale and retail trade, manufacturing,
government, financial service industries, tourism, transportation, utilities and construction all
contribute significantly to local employment. The City’s 470 square miles contain 11.5% of the
area and 38.9% of the population of the County of Los Angeles (the “County™). The County is a
top-ranked county in manufacturing in the nation, of such diverse items as aircraft, aircraft
equipment, aluminum, dental equipment, games and toys, gas transmission and distribution
equipment, guided missiles, space vehicles and propulsion units, and women’s apparel. Fueled
by trade with the Pacific Rim countries, the Ports of Los Angeles and Long Beach combined
rank first in the nation in volume of cargo shipped and received. As home to the film, television
and recording industries, as well as important cultural facilities, the City serves as a principal
global cultural center.



The economic and demographic information provided below has been collected from
sources which the City deems to be reliable. Because it is difficult to obtain timely regional
economic and demographic information, the City’s economic condition may not be fully

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

apparent in all of the publicly available regional economic statistics provided herein.

Population

Table 1 summarizes City, County, and State of California (the ““State™) population

estimated at January 1 of each vear.

Table 1

CITY, COUNTY AND STATE POPULATION STATISTICS

1980
1985
1990
1995
2000
2005
2006
2007

W For five-year time series, represents average annual growth rate for each of the five vears.

City of Annual County of
Los Angeles Growth Rate'" Los Angeles
2,968,579 7477421
3,216,900 1.67% 8,121,000
3485557 1.67% 8,863,052
3,547,700 0.36% 9,103,900
3,694,820 0.83% 9,519,330
3,934,714 1.30% 10,166,417
3,980,422 1.23% 10,257,994
4,018,080 1.20% 10,331,939

Annual State of

Growth Rate™ California
23,782,000

1.72% 26,113,000
1.83% 29,758,213
0.54% 31,617,000
0.91% 33,984,980
1.36% 36,728,196
1.22% 37,195,240
1.14% 37,662,518

Annual

Growth Rate'"

1.96%
2.79%
1.25%
1.50%
1.61%
1.80%
1.43%

Source:

U. S. Census for 1980, 1990 and 2000; other figures are California Department of Finance estimates as of January 1 of each vear.

A-2



Industry and Employment

The average number of employed and unemployed residents of the City and the County,
together with the average annual unemployment rate of the City, County, State and United
States, 1s summarized in Table 2. Historically, the City’s unemployment rate has been higher

than both the County’s and the State’s rate.

Table 2
ESTIMATED AVERAGE ANNUAL EMPLOYMENT AND
UNEMPLOYMENT OF RESIDENT LABOR FORCE

Civilian Labor Force® 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
City of Los Angeles

Employed 1,737,400 1,722,900 1,719,400 1,730,400 1,769,000 1,785,300

Unemployed 119,100 142,900 147.000 137,300 113,300 103,100
Total 1,856,500 1,865,800 1,886,400 1,867,700 1,882,300 1,888,400
County of Los Angeles

Employed 4,483,000 4,447,100 4,400,800 4,477,900 4,581,100 4,631,600

Unemployed 269,900 323,100 332,700 311.100 256,200 229,000
Total 4,752,900 4,770,200 4,773,500 4,789,000 4,837,300 4,860,600
Unemployment Rates

City 6.4% 7.7% 7.9% 7.4% 6.0% 5.5%

County 5.7% 6.8% 7.0% 6.5% 5.3% 4.7%

State 54% 6.7% 6.8% 6.2% 5.4% 5.3%

United States 4.7% 5.8% 6.0% 5.5% 5.1% 4.6%

™ March 2006 Benchmark; not seasonally adjusted. The “benchmark” is the annual revision process in which manthly labor force and payroll
employment data, which are based on estimates, are updated based on detailed tax records. Benchmark data is typically released in March

for the prior calendar year.

California Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division for the State and County; U.S. Bureau of

Source:
Labor, Department of Labor Statistics for the U.S.
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Table 3 summarizes the California Employment Development Department’s estimated
average annual employment for the County, which includes full-time and part-time workers who
recetve wages, salaries, commissions, tips, payment in kind, or piece rates. (Separate figures for
the City are not maintained.) Percentages indicate the percentage of the total employment for
each type of employment for the given year. For purposes of comparison, employment for the
State 1s also summarized.

The trade, transportation and utilities sector was the largest employment sector in the
County 1n 2006, employing 19.9% of the wage and salary workers in the County. Professional
and Business Services, at 14.5%, 1s the second highest employment sector in the County,
followed by government, which employs 14.4% of the wage and salary workers in the County.

Table 3
LOS ANGELES COUNTY
ESTIMATED INDUSTRY EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR FORCE®

County State of Califoria

% of % of April % of

1990 Total 2006 Total 20079 Total

Agricultural 13,700 0.3% 7.600 0.2% 353,500 2.3%
Natural Resources and Mining 8,200 0.2 4,000 01 24,600 02
Construction 145,100 35 156,700 38 924,800 59
Manufacturing 811,600 19.6 462,300 11.3 1,495,000 9.6
Trade, Transportation & Utilities 794,700 19.2 814,100 19.9 2,872,000 18.4
Information 186,200 45 209,700 5.1 469,800 30
Financial Activities 280,300 6.8 248,000 6.0 941,400 6.0
Professional and Business Services 541,900 13.1 594,700 14.5 2,262,000 14.5
Educational and Health Services 384,700 93 481,300 11.7 1,664,600 10.7
Leisure and Hospitality 306,600 7.4 387,500 9.5 1,549,500 99
Other Services 136,700 33 145,700 36 514,700 33
Govemment 539,800 13.0 588,600 14.4 2,522,100 16.2

Total 4,149,500 100.0% 4,100,200 100.0% 15,594,000 100.0%

o Since 2000, the California Economic Development Department has converted employer records from the Standard Industrial Classification
(SIC) coding system to the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS). Items may not add to totals due to rounding.

@ March 2006 Benchmark. The “benchmark” is the annual revision process in which monthly labor force and payroll employment data,
which are based on estimates, are updated based on detailed tax records. Benchmark data are typically released in March for the prior
calendar year.

Source:  California Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division.
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Major Employers

The top 25 major non-governmental employers in the County are listed in Table 4; these
represent approximately 6% of the labor force. In addition, government employment represents
approximately 14% of the labor force (see Table 3 — Estimated Industry Employment and Labor

Force).

Table 4
LOS ANGELES COUNTY

MAJOR NON-GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYERS

Employer Product/Service Emplovees
Kaiser Permanente Non-profit health care plan 32,180
Northrop Grumman Corp. Defense contractor 21,000
Boeing Co. Integrated aerospace and defense systems 15,825
Kroger Co. Grocery retailer 14,000
University of Southern California Private university 12,379
Bank of America Corp. Banking and financial services 12,200
YVons Grocery retailer 12,116
Target Corp. Retailer 12,066
AT&T Inc. Telecommunications, data, IP based communications services; DSL Internet, 9,500
local and long distance voice, directory publishing
Cedars-Sinai Health System Medical center 8.817
Wells Fargo Banking and financial services 8458
Califomnia Institute of Technology Private university 8,453
Amgen Inc. Biotechnology 8,000
FedEx Corp. Delivery services 7976
Albertsons Southern California Region  Food and drug retailer 7431
ABM Industries Inc. Facility services, janitorial, parking, security, engineering, and lighting 7,221
Providence Health System Acute medical, surgical, transition care 7,058
Edison International Electric utility 6,768
Catholic Healthcare West Hospitals 6,338
UPS Package delivery 6,295
Washington Mutual Inc. Banking and financial services 6,000
Long Beach Memorial Medical Center Regional hospital 5,262
Sempra Energy Energy services 4,151
Adventist Health Hospitals 4,029
Children’s Hospital Los Angeles Hospital 3,814

Source:

Los Angeles Business Journal, “The Lists 2007; from the August 21, 2006 issue.
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Effective Buying Income

“Effective Buying Income” (“EBI™), also referred to as ““disposable” or “after tax”
income, consists of money income less personal tax and certain non-tax payments. Money
income includes: wages and salaries; retirement income (including Social Security income);
public assistance, unemployment compensation, and disability income; and certain other income
(e.g., rental and rovalty income), dividends and interest, child support and alimony, and other
periodic income. In computing EBIL, personal taxes (federal, state and local), and personal
contributions to social insurance (Social Security and federal retirement payroll deductions) are
deducted from this total. Certain receipts are not included as money income, such as non-cash
public assistance; bank withdrawals and loans; and various lump-sum receipts.

Table 5 summarizes historical median household EBI, for the City, County, State and
United States as annually reported by Sales and Marketing Management Magazine through 2005.
Sales and Marketing Management Magazine has announced that they are no longer publishing
this data.

Table 5
CITY,COUNTY, STATE AND U.S.
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD EFFECTIVE BUYING INCOME

Survey Year City of Los Angeles County of Los Angeles State of California United States
2001 $37,321 $41,628 $44.464 $39,129
2002 36,548 40,789 43,532 38,365
2003 33,398 37,983 42,484 38,035
2004 33,541 38,311 42,924 38,201
2005 34,480 39,414 43,915 39,324

Source:  Sales and Marketing Management Magazine *“Survey of Buying Power™ for each respective year.
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Retail Sales

As the largest city in the County, the City accounted for $37.5 billion (or 28.6%) of the
total $130.7 billion in County taxable sales for 2005. Table 6 sets forth a history of taxable sales
for the City for the last five calendar years for which there 1s data.

Table 6
CITY OF LOS ANGELES
TAXABLE SALES
(in thousands)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Apparel stores $ 1,237,498 $ 1,333,967 $ 1,451,760 $ 1,574,342 $ 1,707,160
General merchandise stores 3,121,521 3.173,481 3,351,395 3,525,399 3,720,692
Food stores 1,562,989 1,574,751 1,590,925 1,580,936 1,682,668
Eating and drinking establishments 3,832,553 4,050,080 4,267,618 4,579,413 4,943,745
Home fumnishings and appliances 1,114,428 1,166,157 1,221,327 1,268,561 1,301,546
Building materials and farm implements 1,747,025 1,868,657 1,971,383 2,339,085 2,436,987
Auto dealers and auto supplies 3,506,186 3,759,209 4,057,625 4,034 474 4,187,135
Service stations 2,563,082 2,422,631 2,789,646 3,351,708 3,872,089
Other retail stores 4,324,943 4,368,574 4,543,304 4,759,013 4,860,849
Retail stores total 23,010,225 23,717,507 25,244,983 27,012,931 28,712,871
All other outlets 8,631,925 8,127,353 8,193,532 8,412,414 8,781,680
TOTAL ALL OQUTLETS $31,642,150 $31,844,860 $33,438,515 $35,425,345 $37,494,551

Source: California State Board of Equalization, Research and Statistics Division.
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Construction Activity

Table 7 provides a summary of residential building permit valuations and the number of
new units in the City by calendar year.

Table 7
CITY OF LOS ANGELES
RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT VALUATIONS AND NEW UNITS

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Valuation'"
Residential? $ 969 $1,027 $1.816 $1,789 $2,435
Miscellaneous & 86 103 38 o 79
Total Valuation $1,055 $1,130 $1,854 $1,860 $2,514
Number of Units:
Single family 1,358 1,394 1,779 2,099 2,419
Multi-family 5,355 4,538 9,658 7.673 11,752
Subtotal Residential 6,713 5,932 11437 9,772 14,171
Miscellaneous ¥ 1,604 1,488 675 1,433 1,201
Total Units 8317 7420 12,112 11,205 15,372

m

In millions of dollars. “Valuation™ represents the total valuation of all construction work for which the building permit is issued.
@

Valuation permits issued for Single-Family Dwellings, Duplexes, Apartment Buildings, Hotel/Motels, Artist-in-Residence, and
Condominiums.

Valuation of permits issued for "Addition Creating New Units - Residential” and "Alterations Creating New Units - Residential"

Number of dwelling units permitted for Single-Family Dwellings and Duplexes.

Number of dwelling units permitted for new Apartment Buildings, Hotel/Motels, Artist-in-Residences, and Condominiums.

Number of dwelling units added includes "Addition Creating New Units - Residential" and "Alterations Creating New Units - Residential.”

3
O}
©]
6

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Department of Building and Safety.
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Commercial Real Estate Markets in Los Angeles

Table 8 shows vacancy rates for non-residential space in downtown Los Angeles and the
remainder of the Los Angeles Metropolitan Area.

Table 8
LOS ANGELES METROPOLITAN AREA
NON-RESIDENTIAL VACANCY RATES®

Downtown Suburban Total
Quarter 2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007
First 15.5% 14.6% 13.9% 12.4% 10.3% 8.3% 12.9% 11.0% 9.1%
Second 155 13.7 n/a 11.3 104 n/a 12.0 109 n/a
Third 14.3 13.6 n/a 11.1 9.7 n/a 11.6 103 n/a
Fourth 15.0 14.3 n/a 11.0 9.0 n/a 11.0 9.8 n/a
Average 15.0% 14.1% 13.9% 11.5% 9.85% 8.3% 12.0% 10.5% 9.1%

o The downtown index covers office buildings in the central core. The corresponding suburban area includes the remainder of the
metropolitan area, excluding the central core.

Source:  RAND California.

Education

The TLos Angeles Unified School District (“TLAUSD”) administers public instruction for
grades K-12, adult, and occupational schools in the City and all or significant portions of a
number of smaller neighboring cities and unincorporated territory. The LAUSD, which
encompasses approximately 704 square miles, was formed in 1854 as the Common Schools for
the City of Los Angeles, and became a unified school district in 1960. The LAUSD is governed
by a seven-member Board of Education, elected by district to serve alternating four-year terms.

Table 9 provides a summary of the Enrollment and Average Daily Attendance ("ADA™)
of kindergarten through 12" grade (“K-127) students for the LAUSD.

Table 9
LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TOTAL ANNUAL AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Average Daily Attendance™
2003 766,137
2004 758,605
2005 746,605
2006 722,504
20072 697,285

) Includes students in Adult Education Program and District Charter Schoals.
) Estimated.

Source:  Los Angeles Unified School District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Years 2002-03 through 2005-06. Fiscal Year
2006-07 is from the Final Budget for 2006-07.
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There are many public and private colleges and universities located in the City. Major
colleges and universities located within the City include the University of California at Los
Angeles, the University of Southern California, California State University at Los Angeles,
California State University at Northridge, Occidental College and Loyola Marymount
University. There are seven community colleges located within the City.

Seismic Considerations

Like most regions in the State, the City is subject to unpredictable and significant seismic
activity. A number of known faults run through the City, and the City lies near the San Andreas
Fault, which is the boundary between the Pacific and North American tectonic plates. The
complex Los Angeles fault system interacts with the alluvial soils and other geologic conditions
in the hills and basins. This interaction appears to pose a potential seismic threat for every part of
the City, regardless of the underlving geologic and soils conditions. In addition, there are likely
to be unmapped faults throughout the City. The most recent major earthquake, the Northridge
earthquake 1in 1994, occurred along a previously unmapped blind thrust fault. Although the
Northridge earthquake was listed by seismologists as a moderate earthquake, it was the most
costly seismic event in the Umited States since the 1906 San Francisco earthquake, resulting in
the loss of 72 lives and damage to approximately 93,000 buildings.

The City generally does not maintain earthquake insurance coverage. Instead, the City
relies on its general reserves as well as the expectation that funds will be available from the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA™) to manage earthquake risk. The City has
recetved a waiver from the requirement under federal law that it acquire earthquake insurance on
facilities that were the beneficiaries of prior FEMA grants. There 1s no guarantee that sufficient
reserves or FEMA assistance would be available in the event of a natural disaster. See
“FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Reserve FFund and Financial Management Policies,” “—
Budgetary Reserves” and “—Risk Retention Program” herein.

MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT

Under the State Constitution, charter cities are generally independent of the State
Legislature in matters relating to municipal affairs, and in their ability to raise revenues. Charter
cities are subject to State Constitutional restrictions; see “LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND
APPROPRIATIONS” herein. The City 1s a charter city originally incorporated in 1850. The

most recent charter was adopted 1n 1999, effective July 1, 2000.

The City 1s governed by the Mavor and the Council (the “Council”). The Mayor 1s
elected at large for a four-year term. As executive officer of the City, the Mayor has the overall
responsibility for administration. The Mayor recommends and submits the annual budget to the
Council and passes upon subsequent appropriations and transfers, approves or vetoes ordinances,
and appoints certain City officials and commissioners. He supervises the administrative process
of local government and works with the Council in matters relating to legislation, budget, and
finance. As prescribed by the Charter and City ordinances, the Mayor operates an executive
department, of which he is the ex-officio head. Antonio Villaraigosa was elected Mayor on
May 17, 2005 and took office on July 1, 20035.

The Council, the legislative body of the City, is a full time council and enacts ordinances
subject to the approval of the Mayor. If the Mayor vetoes, the Council may override the veto of



the Mayor by a two-thirds vote. The Council orders ¢lections, levies taxes, authorizes public
improvements, approves contracts, adopts zoning and other land use controls, and adopts traffic
regulations. The Council adopts or modifies the budget proposed by the Mayor. It authorizes the
number of employees in budgetary departments, creates positions and fixes salaries. The Council
consists of 15 members elected by district for staggered four-year terms.

The other two elective offices of the City are the Controller and the City Attorney, both
elected for four-year terms. The Controller is the chief accounting officer for the City. The
current Controller, Laura N. Chick, took office July 1, 2001. She was clected to a second term
commencing July 1, 2005 in the 2005 nominating election. The City Attorney 1s attorney and
legal advisor to the Council and all officers, boards, and departments of the City, and prosecutes
misdemeanors. The current City Attorney, Rockard J. Delgadillo, took office on July 1, 2001.
He was elected to a second term commencing July 1, 2005 in the 2005 Nominating Election.

The City Administrative Officer is the chief fiscal advisor to the Mayor and Council and
reports directly to both. Karen L. Sisson has served as the City Administrative Officer since
December 2006. The City Treasurer (the “Treasurer’™) recerves, mvests and 1s the custodian of
the City’s funds and those of affiliated entities. The Treasurer also serves as the City’s
Investment Officer. The current Treasurer 1s Joya C. De Foor, who has served in that capacity
since January 2001. The Office of Finance 1s responsible for revenue collection within the City.
The current Director of the Office of Finance is Antoinette Christovale, who has served in that
capacity since August 2000. All three of these officials are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the Council.

The City has 41 departments, bureaus, commissions and offices for which operating
funds are annually budgeted by the Council. In addition, five departments (the Department of
Water and Power (“DWP”), Harbor, Airports, the City Employees’ Retirement System
Department and the Fire and Police Pension System Department), the Community
Redevelopment Agency of the City and the Housing Authority of the City are under the control
of boards appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council.

Public services provided by the City include police; fire and paramedics; residential
refuse collection and disposal, wastewater collection and treatment, street maintenance, traffic
management, storm water pollution abatement, and other public works functions; enforcement of
ordinances and statutes relating to building safety; public libraries; recreation and parks;
community development; housing and aging services; and planning.

The City obtains water and electricity from the Los Angeles Department of Water and
Power (“DWP?), the largest municipally-owned utility in the nation.

BUDGET AND REVENUES

Budgetary Process

The City’s fiscal year extends from July 1 through June 30. Under the City Charter, the
Mayor 1s required each year to submit to the Council a Proposed Budget by April 20. The
Proposed Budget 1s based on the Mayor’s budget priorities, and includes estimates of receipts
from the City’s various revenue sources.

The Mayor’s Proposed Budget is reviewed by the Council’s Budget and Finance
Committee, which reports its recommendations to the full Council. The Council 1s required by
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law to adopt the Mayor’s Proposed Budget, as modified by the Council, by June 1. The Mayor
has five working days after adoption to approve or veto any items modified by the Council. The
Council then has five working days to override by a two-thirds vote any items vetoed by the
Mayor. The final Adopted Budget is subject to revision throughout the fiscal year to reflect any
changes in revenue and expenditure projections.

State of California Budget

A number of the City’s revenues are collected and subvened by the State (such as sales
tax and motor-vehicle license fees) or allocated in accordance with State law (most importantly,
property taxes). Therefore, State budget decisions can have a material impact on City finances.

The State's fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. The State Constitution
requires the Governor to submit a budget for each fiscal year to the Legislature by the preceding
January 10 (the “Governor’s Budget™). The Constitution requires the Tegislature to pass a budget
bill by June 15 (although the Legislature has missed this deadline over the past several years
including the current year). Because more than half of the State’s general fund income 1s derived
generally from the April 135 personal income tax, the Governor submits a “May Revised Budget”
by May 14. The Legislature typically waits for the May Revised Budget before making final
budget decisions. Once the budget bill has been approved by a two-thirds vote of each house of
the Legislature, it 1s sent to the Governor for signature.

On May 14, 2007 the Governor released the “May Revision™ to his Proposed 2007-08
State Budget. Neither the original proposed budget nor the May revisions, contained
recommendations that would have a significant impact on the financial operations of the City.
The Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) projects that based on its own projections of revenues
and expenditures, the State would face operating shortfalls in the range of $5 billion in 2008-09.

It cannot be predicted what actions will be taken in the future by the State Legislature and
the Governor to respond to specific provisions of the Proposed Budget, to deal with changing
State revenues and expenditures, or the effect of national and state economic conditions on future
State budgets.

Additional information concerning the State’s Budget and financial condition may be
found on the website of the State of California Department of Finance at http://www.dof.ca.gov,
and of the State’s LAO at http://www.lao.ca.gov; information on these websites i1s not
incorporated as part of this Official Statement.

City’s 2007-08 Adopted Budget

The City’s 2007-08 Adopted Budget is $6.82 billion, comprised of approximately $3.64
billion for departmental expenditures and $3.18 billion for non-departmental expenditures. Total
receipts were budgeted at $6.82 billion, comprised of approximately $4.44 billion in General
Fund receipts and $2.38 billion in special receipts and available balances. The Adopted Budget
projected a beginning Reserve Fund balance of $283.68 million on July 1, 2007. After the
$85.84 million transfer to the budget and reappropriations, the beginning Reserve Fund was
budgeted at $201.84 million, which represents approximately 4.55% of budgeted General Fund
receipts. Among the major actions approved in the Adopted Budget was an acceleration of the
increase in the City’s solid waste resources collection fee, from its originally scheduled date of
July 1, 2008 to September 1, 2007 with another slated fee increase on July 1, 2009. This fee
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reduces the General Fund’s subsidy of solid waste collection and disposal. In addition the
Adopted Budget does not include Water Revenue Transfer to the City’s general fund. See
“MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES — Water and Power Transfers to the
General Fund,” below.

Table 10 presents the Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2007-08 and the prior fiscal vear.
This budget includes the General Fund and most special revenue funds, but excludes those
operations not directly under the direct control of the Council (i.e., Airports, Harbor, DWP, and
City Employees” Retirement System and Pensions departments).

Table 10
CITY OF LOS ANGELES ADOPTED BUDGETS
(ALL BUDGETED FUND TYPES)

Adopted Adopted
Revenues 2006-07 2007-08
Taxes *V $3,271,235,841 $3,436,692,145
Licenses, Permits, Fees and Fines™ 725,115,101 823,091,976
Special Assessments™ 77,039,268 77,222,700
Charges For Services and Operations(“) 872,381,812 1,004,244,181
Intergovernmental®™ 304,919,360 285,057,005
Interest 44,060,000 49,990,000
Transportation Funds® 286,059,966 268,114,198
Other General Fund™” 261,531,000 119,128,987
Other Special Fund 360,336,520 413,508,835
Subtotal Revenues 6,202,678,868 6,477.050,027
Available Balances 470,535,639 340,632,770
Total Receipts™ $6,673,214,507 $6,817,682,797
Appropriations
Community Safety $2,691,114,121 $2,827,143 481
Home and Community Environment 1,767.049,351 1,785,146,827
Transportation 905,945,711 791,546,037
Cultural, Educational and Recreational Services 427,253,585 417,732,412
Human Resources, Economic Assistance and Development 152,602,475 145,288,119
General Administration and Support 729,249,264 850,825,921
Total Appropriations™ $6,673,214,507 $6,817,682,797

= Property tax includes all categories of the City allocation of one percent property tax collections such as secured, unsecured, state

replacement, redemptions and penalties, supplemental receipts and other adjustments and is net of refunds and county charges. Also
included are property taxes remitted to the City as replacement revenue for both vehicle license fees and sales and use taxes.

Revenue sources include State Vehicle License Fees, Municipal Court Fines, and Franchise Income.

Revenue sources include Street Lighting Maintenance Assessment Fund and Stormwater Pollution Abatement Fund.

Major revenue sources include Sewer Construction and Maintenance Fund, Convention Center Revenue Fund, Special Parking Revenue
Fund, and Zoo Enterprise Fund and refuse collection fee revenues.

Major revenue sources include Community Development Block Grant, grant receipts, Local Public Safety Fund, and Workforce Investment
Act. Also includes proprietary department transfers.

Revenue sources include Special Gas Tax Street Improvement Fund, Proposition A Local Transit Improvement Fund, and Proposition C
Anti-Gridlock Transit Improvement Fund.

Includes transfers from the Reserve Fund.

Total may not add due to rounding.

@
©)]
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Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Interim Financial Status

During the fiscal year, the City monitors its revenues, expenditures and reserve estimates,
and will make budgetary adjustments throughout the year as deemed necessary. As instructed by
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the Mavor and Council, the City Administrative Officer issues interim financial status reports.
Additional information concerning the City’s financial condition may be found on the website of
the City Administrative Officer at http://www lacity.org/cao/fin_rpts/; such information is not
incorporated as part of this Official Statement. The CAO has not issued an interim financial
status report since adoption of the 2007-08 Budget.

Budget Forecast

As part of its budget planning, the City Administrative Officer (“CAQO™) prepares a five-
year budget forecast, based on the existing budget and known major future obligatory
expenditures and projections of other revenues and expenditures, to identify future budget
challenges, including whether a budget gap 1s likely to occur. This planning tool helps the City
identify potential budgetary pressures, and allows for earlier mmplementation of budget
adjustments, either through the annual budget process or through interim action. The forecast 1s
updated in connection with the City’s periodic interim financial status reports. The most recent
update of this forecast suggests that, at current trends, the City would experience some level of
operating deficit in each of the forecasted fiscal years. It is important to note that the forecast 1s
constantly changing, and does not include all potential revenue and charges. Even though budget
deficits are currently projected, these budgets will be balanced through some combination of
revenue increases, expenditure reductions, and transfers from reserves as required by the City’s
Charter.


http://www.lacity.org/cao/fm_rpts/

The following represents the City’s most recent planning forecast as of June 18, 2007.

FIVE-YEAR GENERAL FUND BUDGET FORECAST (SMM)

Table 11

(As of June 18, 2007)

Estimated General Fund Revenue
General Fund Base ‘"
Revenue Growth™
Property Related Taxes
Sales and Business Taxes
Utility Users” Tax
License, Permits and Fees
Other Fees, Taxes and Transters
One-Time Revenues
Transfer from Reserve Fund®
Total Revenue

Total Revenue Increase %
Total Revenue Increase $

Estimated General Fund Expenditures
General Fund Base ™
Obligatory Incremental Changes to Base™
Employee Compensation Adjustments'
Fire and Police Pensions™
City Employees’ Retirement System ™
Workers’ Compensation Benefits®
Health and Dental Benefits®™
Debt Service!”
Expense CPI Increases
Delete One-Time Costst!?
Unappropriated Balance®?
New Facilities®'"
City Elections"™
Police 1,000 Officers Hiring Plan “*
VLF Police Hires (1%
Solid Waste Resource Fee Offset’”
Alternative Refuse Disposal Initiativest®
CIEP”
Net-Other Additions and Deletions
Subtotal Expenditures

Expenditures Growth %
Expenditures Growth $

Surplus (Deficits)

Transfer from Reserve Fund®

Potential One-Time Expenditures

New Facilities®'*

CIER!?

Public Safety Radio Interoperability 2%
Subtotal Other Potential Expenditures
Net One-time

Surplus (Deficits) with One-time

Adopted
Budget
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12
$4.1074 $4.351.9 $4,495.4 $4.691.9 $4,900.3
63.2 939 98.8 104 6 111.0
66.7 30.0 41.0 43.0 45.0
13.8 12.6 12.8 13.0 13.3
639 32 17.8 183 189
69 338 26.1 294 309
300 (30.0) - - -
85.8 -- -- -- --
4,437.7 4,495.4 4,691.9 4,900.2 51193
2.3% 1.3% 4 4% 4 4% 4.5%
99.0 Ly ivi 1965 2083 2191
$4.,338.7 $4.437.7 $4.681.2 $4,853.7 $3,071.9
754 126.1 87.1 894 91.7
48.0 6.1 1.0 12.6 4.3
4.1) 5.9 (9.5) 34 5.9
9.7 10.2 11.0 11.9 12.8
44.6 40.1 43.7 45.1 45.8
4.1) (12.0 5.6 (7.1) 14
- 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5
(84.0 - - - -
693 - - - -
294 33 6.3 6.5 5.6
(14.5) 14.5 (14.5) 15.0 (15.0)
11.0 46.5 514 38.5 298
- 28.5 - - -
(77.7) (31.5) (11.6) (3.4) -
54 (0.4 4.3) (0.1) -
134 - - - -
(22.8) - - - -
44377 4,681.2 4,853.7 5,071.9 52579
2.3% 5.5% 3.7% 4.5% 3.7%
99.0 2435 1725 2182 186.1
5 - $(173.3) $(149.3) $(159.2) $(126.1)
5 - $ 1204 $ 1204 $1204 $ 1204
339 1.5 2.0 14
46.8 48.5 50.7 52.6
-- 18.6 18.6 18.6 --
-- 99.3 68.6 71.3 54.0
3 -- $21.1 $51.8 $49.1 $66.4
- $ (152.2) $ (97.5) $ (110.1) $ (59.7)
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Table 11
FIVE-YEAR GENERAL FUND BUDGET FORECAST (SMM)
(As of June 18, 2007)

ASSUMPTIONS:
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General Fund (GF) Base: The General Fund revenue growth is separated from the revenue base. This base excludes the Reserve Fund
transfer to the budget.

Revenue Growth: Overall revenue is assumed to grow slightly above three to four percent over the next few years. No adjustment is made
for challenges facing collection of utility users’ taxes on telephone. See “MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES — Utility
Users’ Tax” and “LITIGATION” herein.

Potential Carryover: The 2007-08 adopted budget includes a transfer from the Reserve Fund based on its estimated June 30, 2007 year-end
balance, after emergency and contingency reserves are set-aside. Future estimates from 2008-09 and beyond are based on the 12-year
(Fiscal Year 1995 to 2006) historical average of unallocated revenue and reversions.

Estimated General Fund Expenditures:
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Estimated Expenditure General Fund Base: Using the 2006-07 General Fund budget as the baseline vear, the General Fund base is the
“Total Obligatory and Potential Expenditures™ carried over to the following fiscal year.

The 2007-08 incremental changes reflect proposed funding added to the 2006-07 General Fund budget. The 5-year forecast expenditures
included for subsequent years are limited to those obligatory and major expenses known at this time and are subject to change.

Employee Compensation Adjustments: This includes cost of living adjustment (COL A), change in number of working days, salary step and
turnover effect, and full funding for partially financed positions. Civilian labor contracts expire on 6/30/07 and include a final COLA of
2.259% on 1/1/2007. Sworn labor contracts expire on 6/30/2009 and include the remaining COLA’s of 3.5% on 7/1/2007 and 3.75% on
7/1/2008. The 2007-08 adopted budget also provides approximately $23.5 million for civilian employees contract negotiations in the
Unappropriated Balance (UB). The forecast assumes a 3% salary growth each year for both civilian and sworn employees beyond the
current labor contracts.

Fire and Police Pensions (Pensions) and City Employees’ Retirement System (LACERS): The Pensions and LACERS contribution are
estimated based on information from the Departments’ actuaries and include COLA assumptions. The estimates are mostly driven by
changes in assumptions and investment returns. See “FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Other Post- Employment Benefits” herein.
Workers” Compensation Benefits (WC): The 2007-08 proposed WC budget increases nearly 8% over 2006-07. The same percentage is
applied through 2011-12.

Health and Dental Benefits: Mercer Consulting provides the civilian plan forecast. Projected civilian employee FLEX benefits reflect
medical subsidy increases of 9.68% for 2008; 9.19% for 2009; 8.71% for 2010; 8.23% for 2011; and 7.74% for 2012; as well as 1% annual
increase for enrollment. Police and Fire health medical subsidy rates are historically higher and assumed to be 2% more than the civilian
rates due to the type of coverage and lower deductible health plans. Police enrollment projects are consistent with the hiring plan. Fire
enrollment is projected to rise 2% per annum.

Debt Service: The debt service amounts include Capital Finance and Judgement Obligation Bond budgets. The 2007-08 budget includes
the Public Works Building debt service. The new Police headquarters facilities debt service starts in 2009-10. See “BONDED AND
OTHER INDEBTEDNESS — Proposed Additional Financings,” herein.

Expense CPI Increases: The CPI increases in 2008-09 and beyond are 2% per vear.

Delete One-Time Costs: None are deleted in 2008-09 to provide a placeholder for equipment, appropriation to special funds, and other one-
time expenses incurred annually.

Unappropriated Balance (UB): The 2007-08 UB total is $87.1 million, including $23.5 million for EAA COLAs and $17.8 million for new
facilitics. To provide a clearer picture of total funding for new facilities, the $17.8 million is added to the “New Facilitics” total (note 14).
The UB is not eliminated to provide a placeholder for various ongoing and/or contingency requirements in the following vears.

New Facilities: Funding projects are based on preliminary departmental estimates for ongoing staffing and expenses that have not been
prioritized. The amounts shown in the Potential One-Time Expenditures section represent one-time costs. Some equipment may be eligible
for debt financing but this has not been determined at this time.

Elections: Citywide elections occur bi-annually.

(a) The Police Hiring Plan is to recruit 1,000 net new officers during 2005-06 to 2009-10, with recruitment to cover attrition in 2010-11.
Costs include salaries and expense. The 2007-08 funding of $11.8 million is primarily paid for by the General Fund ($9M), supplemented
by Vehicle License Fee Gap loan Financing Proceeds Fund (VLF) ($0.3M), and the Efficiency Projects and Police Hiring Fund ($2.5M).
The full year cost of the officers hired in 2006-07 is $6.7 million and reflected in Employee Compensation Adjustments.

(b) By the end of 2007-08, the VLF will be depleted but costs continue to be incurred. General Fund monies will be needed to provide
backfill funding for those hired in prior years.

Solid Waste Resources Fee Offset: A monthly increase of $7 was included for 2006-07 to a total of $18. The 2007-08 adopted budget
includes an increase of $4, from $18 to $22, effective July 1, 2007, and another increase of $4, from $22 to $26, effective September 1,
2007. The adopted plan is to increase the monthly fee per household to $28 in 2009-10.

Public Safety Systems Project: EQC/Fire Dispatch/Police Department Operations Center systems-related costs that cannot be bond-
financed. A project consultant reports that the total investment in information, communications, and dispatch systems for the facility would
be approximately $63 million. This includes the upgrade of all fire stations” voice and data transmission systems that must be in place
before an anticipated 2010 building occupancy by the Fire Department, as well as annual recurring lease of T-1 lines. A total estimated $50
million that may be eligible for MICLA financing are excluded from the forecast.

Capital Improvement Expenditure Program (CIEP): The 2007-08 adopted budget includes $13.4 million for various capital projects. This is
$30.9 million below the City’s financial policy of budgeting 1% of the General Fund for capital improvement projects. For future years, the
CIEP amounts detailed in the Potential One-Time Expenditures section assume compliance with the 1%o policy.

Potential One-Time Expenditures:

@

Public Safety Radio Interoperability: As part of a County-wide interoperability project, the City would need to replace Police, Fire, General
Services Security, and potentially other departments’ handheld radios. The move toward interoperability is recommended as the City’s
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Table 11
FIVE-YEAR GENERAL FUND BUDGET FORECAST (SMM)
(As of June 18, 2007)

radios’ lifecycle are coming to an end. Estimated cost for the City’s share of the entire project is about $250 million, of an estimated $600
million total. The City will pursue various grant opportunities such as UASI, SHSGP, COPS, State bonds, and possibly MICL A financing
subject to eligibility requirements to provide part of the funding.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES

Following is a discussion of the City’s principal General Fund revenue sources. See
“LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS” herein.

On March 2, 2004, California voters approved Proposition 57, a bond act authorizing the
issuance of up to $15 billion of Economic Recovery Bonds (“ERBs™), to fund the accumulated State
budget deficit. In May and June 2004, the State issued $10,896,080,000 of such bonds. These bonds
are secured by a pledge of revenues from an increase in the State’s share of the sales and use tax of
one-quarter cent beginning July 1, 2004. The share of the tax going to local governments was
reduced by the same amount and, in exchange, local governments now receive an increased share of
the local property tax (and K-12 school districts and community colleges receive a reduced share)
until the ERBs are repaid. Although the final maturity of the ERBs 1s 1n 2023, it 1s expected that they
will be repaid by the State substantially in advance of that date, currently estimated to be by 2010.
All education agency property tax reductions are offset by increased state aid. This shift in revenues
between the State and local governments 1s known as the “Triple Flip.”

Property Tax

Property taxes represent 31.5% of General Fund revenues in the 2007-08 Adopted Budget.
Under Article XIII A of the State Constitution (enacted mn 1978 through the passage of
Proposition 13) and its implementing legislation, ad valorem taxes on real property (other than taxes
relating to certain voter-approved indebtedness) are limited to one percent of the “full cash value.”
Full cash value 1s generally defined as the valuation of real property as shown on the 1975-76 tax
bill, or thereafter, as the appraised value of property when purchased or newly constructed after the
1975 assessment period. Real property valuation may be increased to reflect inflation, not to exceed
two percent per year. (See “LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS” herein.)

The assessed valuation of property is established by the County Assessor, and reported at
100% of the full cash value as of each January 1, except for public utility property, which 1s
assessed by the State Board of Equalization. Beginning in 1983, State law provided for the
establishment of a “supplemental roll™; real property is reassessed at market value on the date

property changes ownership or upon completion of new construction (known as the “floating lien
date™). A supplemental tax is collected for the remainder of the tax year.

The County collects the ad valorem taxes. Taxes arising from the 1 percent levy are
apportioned among local taxing agencies on the basis of a formula established by State law.
Under this formula, the City receives a base year allocation plus an allocation on the basis of
growth in assessed value (consisting of new construction, change of ownership and inflation).
Taxes relating to voter-approved indebtedness are allocated to the relevant taxing agency.
Beginning in Fiscal Year 1990-91 (with the adoption of new State legislation), the County
deducts the pro-rata cost of collecting property taxes from the City’s allocation.

The State Constitution and statutes provide exemption from reassessment for property
upon certain changes of ownership, and from ad valorem property taxation for certain classes of
property such as local governments, churches, colleges, non-profit hospitals, and charitable
institutions. State law also allows exemptions from ad valorem property taxation at $7,000 of
full value of owner-occupied dwellings and 100 percent of business inventories. Revenue losses
to the City from the homeowner’s exemption are replaced by the State.
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The California Community Redevelopment Law authorizes redevelopment agencies to
recetve the allocation of tax revenues resulting from increases in assessed valuations of
properties within designated project areas. In effect, the other local taxing authorities realize tax
revenues from such properties only on the base year valuations, which are frozen at the time a
redevelopment project area 1s created. The tax revenues which result from increases in assessed
valuations flow to the redevelopment areas. The City has created redevelopment project areas
pursuant to California law. Generally, funds must be spent within the redevelopment areas in
which the tax increment revenues were generated, and may only be spent on projects that qualify
under California redevelopment law.,

All taxable real and personal property 1s classified as either “secured” or “unsecured” and
1s listed accordingly on separate parts of the assessment roll. The “secured roll” contains real
property (land and improvements), certain taxable personal property (such as business equipment
on business-owned property), and possessory interests (a leasehold on otherwise exempt
government property). The “unsecured roll” contains taxable property that is not secured by the
underlying real property, the majority of which is business equipment on leased or rented
premises, and other taxable personal property such as boats and aircraft, as well as delinquent
possessory interests. The balance of personal property has been exempted by State law from
property taxes. For recent years, approximately 94% of the City’s assessed valuation represents
property contained on the secured roll.

Property taxes on the secured roll are due in two installments: on November 1 and February
1 of the fiscal year. If unpaid, such taxes become delinquent after December 10 and April 10,
respectively, and a 10% penalty 1s added to delinquent taxes. Such property may thereafter be
redeemed by payment of the delinquent taxes and the delinquency penalty, plus a redemption
penalty of 1.5% per month to the time of redemption. If taxes are unpaid for a period of five years
or more, title to the property passes to the State and 1s subject to sale by the County Tax Collector.

California counties can elect to implement the Alternative Method of Distribution of Tax
Levies and Collections and of Tax Sale Proceeds (commonly referred to as the “Teeter Plan™), as
provided for in Section 4701 et seq. of the State Revenue and Taxation Code. Under the Teeter
Plan, each participating local agency levying secured property taxes receives from its county the
amount of uncollected taxes credited to its fund, in the same manner as if the amount credited
had been collected. In return, the county receives and retains delinquent payments, penalties and
interest as collected that would have been due the local agency. Los Angeles County does not
participate in the Teeter Plan, and the City’s property tax revenues reflect both delinquencies and
the receipt of interest and penalties payments.

Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due as of March 1 and become delinquent on
August 31. A 10% penalty attaches to delinquent taxes on property on the unsecured roll, and an
additional penalty of 1.5% per month begins to accrue on November 1. The taxing authority has
four ways of collecting delinquent unsecured personal property taxes: (1) civil action against the
taxpayer; (2) filing a certificate in the Office of the County Clerk specifying certain facts to
obtain a judgment lien on certain property of the taxpayer; (3) filing a certificate of delinquency
for recordation in the County Recorder’s Office, to obtain a lien on certain property of the
taxpayer; and (4) seizure and sale of personal property, improvements or possessory interests
belonging or assessed to the delinquent taxpayer.



Recent assessed valuations, property tax levies, and collections within the City appear in
Table 12.

Table 12
ASSESSED VALUATION, TAX LEVY AND COLLECTION
(in thousands)

Gross Net

Fiscal Assessed Assessed Total Current Collection Other Net Property

Year Valuations®" Valuations® Levy® Collections'™ Rate®® Collections*®  Tax Revenues™
2002-03 $258,385,268 $244,252.348 $624,634 $611,744 97 9% $51,696 $663.440
2003-04 277,855,570 263,378,270 673,416 660,531 98.1% 57,270 717,801
2004-05 299,579,649 284,269,704 730,495 709,492 97.1% 68,465 777,957
2005-06 327,893,445 312,494,275 784,864 768,367 97 9% 55,571 823,938®
2006-07 364,404,000 346,830,607 862,416 835,406 96.9% 115,790 951,196
2007-08% 397,193,000 378,782,000 952,600 919,220 96.5% 66,066 985,286

& Represents Gross Total Locally Assessed Valuations per County Assessor.

@ Valuation for purposes of assessing property taxes consists of Gross Assessed Valuations, less exemptions for churches, schools, and
homeowners.

@ Secured and unsecured basic 1% property tax levy reported by the County Auditor-Controller. Excludes tax override for debt service.

“ Total current year receipts for secured and unsecured property taxes received by the County.

® Current collections divided by total levy.

@ Includes redemptions, supplemental taxes (property taxes levied after the lien date due to reassessment upon change of ownership),
reimbursement of homeowners’ exemption by the State, and other adjustments by the County, less County charges and refunds to
taxpayers. Reasons for the vear-to-year variation include significant annual fluctuations in current year receipts for prior year taxes,
penalties, supplemental tax payments, and refunds; restoration of the City Community Redevelopment Agency (“CRA™) increment; and
County property-tax-year-related accounting adjustments.

o Total property tax received from the County during the fiscal year. Excludes property tax receipts in lieu of Sales Tax and Vehicle
License Fees and partially offsetting ER AF adjustments as a result of the “Triple Flip,” discussed below.

® $44 million that normally would have been received in June 2006, were received in July due to a late remittance from the County.

@ Adopted Budget.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

The State Budget has resulted in various reallocations of property tax revenues, including
the “Triple Flip” of property tax and sales tax, the “backfill” of vehicle license fee revenues with
an increased allocation of property taxes, and the temporary transfers of property taxes to the
Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF).

The 2007-08 Adopted Budget includes $1.397 billion in property tax revenues, composed
of $985.3 million as the City’s share of the 1% property tax levy, $116.3 million in sales tax
replacement and $295.7 million in vehicle license fee replacement.

In preparing its budget, the City forecasts property taxes based on each of the specific
categories of receipts (secured and unsecured, current and delinquent receipts and State
replacement funds). Current receipts are based on the County Assessor’s estimate of growth in
assessed valuation, adjusted for estimates in growth for redevelopment project arcas. The
estimate of current secured levy receipts 1s discounted by 3% for delinquencies. Estimates of
other property tax receipts are primarily based on historical collections. There can be no
assurance that historical trends will continue.
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A list of the 20 largest taxpayers, based on secured assessed valuations within the City for
Fiscal Year 2006-07, appears in Table 13.

Table 13
TWENTY LARGEST TAXPAYERS
LARGEST 2006-07 LOCAL SECURED TAXPAYERS

2006-07 Secured Percent of

Property Owner'” Primary Land Use Assessed Valuation Secured Total®
Douglas Emmett LLC Office Building $1,857,347,141 0.56%
Arden Realty LP Office Building 1,037,689,290 0.31
Anheuser Busch Inc. Industrial 815,680.156 024
Maguire Partners 355 S. Grand LLC Office Building 544,749,668 014
One Hundred Towers LLC Office Building 543,860,949 014
Duesenberg Investment Company Office Building 450,986,733 0.14
Donald Sterling Apartments 291,932,262 012
Casden Park LaBrea LLC Apartments 381,729,612 011
BRE Properties Inc. Apartments 380,788,143 011
Paramount Pictures Corp. Movie Studio 372,061,693 0.11
Rreef America REIT II Corp. Office Building 357,000,000 0.11
Twenty Century Fox Film Corp. Movie Studio 343,965,462 0.10
1999 Stars LLC Office Building 328,421,915 0.10
Century City Mall LLC Regional Mall 325,890,378 0.10
AP Properties Ltd. Office Building 307,751,196 0.09
Library Square Associates LLC Office Building 294,949,089 0.09
Prime Park La Brea Holdings LP Apartments 286,250,000 0.09
Sunstone Century Star LLC Hotel 283,250,000 0.08
2121 Avenue of the Stars LLC Office Building 276,500,000 0.08
Maguire Properties 555 W. Fifth LLC Office Building 270,785,099 0.08
$9,851,982,330 2.95%

o Excludes taxpayers with values derived from mineral rights and/or possessory interests.
@ Based on 2006-07 total secured assessed valuation of $333,517,082,107, as calculated by Califomnia Municipal Statistics, Inc.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

Utility Users’ Taxes

Utility users’ taxes represent 14.1% of General Fund revenues in the 2007-08 Proposed
Budget. The City imposes taxes on users of natural gas, electricity and telephone services within
the City’s limits. The tax 1s 10% of utility charges, with the exception that the rate for electricity
for commercial users is 12.5%. The utility users’ tax was established in 1967, the current tax
rates have been 1n effect since July 1983.

An exemption from the utility users’ tax is available to senior citizens over the age of 62
and to disabled individuals, provided that the combined adjusted gross income of all household
members is below $23,800. As provided by the State Constitution, insurance companies are
exempt from the tax. In addition, county, state, federal and foreign governments within the City
are not subject to this tax, as the City has no authority to impose a tax on these entities.
Exemptions account for approximately 10% of the total tax base.

Utility tax receipts can be volatile, as they reflect not only power, gas and telephone rates,
but also business activities and changing technologies. Both electricity and natural gas sales are
sensitive to weather (warm winters and cool summers reduce demand).
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The largest component of the City’s current utility users’ tax revenues is the tax on
telephone use, which 1s projected to be slightly higher than revenues from the tax on electricity
use. The City’s telephone users’ tax revenue for Fiscal Year 2007-08 is projected to be $270
million or about 6 percent of the General Fund revenue. Changing technologies in the telephone
marketplace, such as the shift to wireless telephone and Voice-over-Internet services, and various
legal challenges and administrative actions have created uncertainties to this portion of the utility
users’ tax.

Certain actions at the federal level may have a negative impact on the City’s collection of
taxes on telephone use. On May 25, 2006, the U.S. Treasury Department, in response to a series
of appellate court losses, announced that 1t is conceding a series of legal disputes over the federal
excise tax (“FET”) on long-distance telephone service. These appellate court decisions held that
a telephonic communication for which there 1s a toll charge that varies with elapsed transmission
time and not distance (time-only service) is not taxable as toll telephone service as defined in the
FET. As a result, amounts paid for time-only service, which is the most common billing method
today, were found not to be subject to the tax. The Internal Revenue Service, pursuant to IRS
Notice 2006-50, has ceased collecting the FET on long distance service, and has begun issuing
refunds of the FET on long-distance service charges in the past three years.

The City’s tax ordinance, like those of many other local telephone user taxes, referenced
the FET s exemptions. The City’s ordinance stated that the telephone users tax ““shall not be
imposed upon any person for using telephone communications services or teletypewriter
exchange services, to the extent that the amounts paid for such services are exempt from or not
subject to the tax imposed under Sec. 4251 of Title 26 of the United States Code (the FET), as
such Section existed on November 1, 1967.” City Ordinance No. 178219 approved by the Mayor
on January 10, 2007, clarifies that the City will continue to carry out its long-standing practice of
applying 1ts telephone users’ tax in a manner consistent with the IRS interpretation of the FET
that was 1n effect prior to the 1ssuance of Revenue Notice 2006-50.

The City has received one request for the cessation of the collection of the telephone
users’ tax on long-distance service where the charge varies only by time and on charges for
services where long-distance and local services are bundled. This request was filed on behalf of a
single resident of the City, and “all similarly situated taxpayers in the City of Los Angeles,” and
also seeks a one- or two-year refund. The request was treated as an administrative claim and
denied. This purported class-action lawsuit 1s in the early stages of litigation.

In addition, another lawsuit challenging the telephone users' tax was brought against the
City by a provider of prepaid telephone cards. In this lawsuit, three of the four claims asserted
against the City, including the claim for refund of taxes previously paid, were dismissed by the
court, but the claim for a determination of rights and responsibilities under the telephone users'
tax was allowed to proceed and 1s in the early stages of litigation.

In addition, a portion of the City’s telephone users’ tax — that on wireless telephone
service — has been challenged under a Superior Court action entitled AT& T Wireless et al. v. City
of Los Angeles. Specifically, the case challenged the City’s request — as a result of other changes
in federal law — that, effective March 2003, all wireless carriers collect the utility users’ tax on
the calling portion of wireless telephone bills, as long as the billing address was within the City,
regardless of whether the carriers had previously collected the tax on that portion of the bill. The
suit alleges that the City’s actions represented a change in the taxing methodology for wireless
phone calls, representing a tax increase that required voter approval under Proposition 218. The
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judge in this Superior Court case 1ssued a writ of mandate and judgment requiring the City to
withdraw its request as to two cellular service providers and revert to prior collection practices as
to those carriers. The City appealed and the appellate court affirmed the trial court decision.
However, the Court’s opinion indicates that the tax does still apply to calls that originate or
terminate within the City (and where the billing address 1s within the City). The portion of the
utility users’ tax that is derived from wireless telephone service is estimated to be $162 million
(of the $270 million total telephone tax revenues) in the Fiscal Year 2007-08.

For a number of reasons, the City 18 unable to establish a reliable estimate of the potential
revenue loss resulting from final resolution of the AT&T Wireless case and current and pending
changes in federal excise tax practices. However, the City believes that, in the event of adverse
rulings, a significant portion of the $270 million telephone users' tax may be at risk. In addition,
the City could be exposed to the risk of having to make refunds for a portion of prior collections.

Table 14 shows the actual or estimated receipts from the Utility Users’ Tax:

Table 14
UTILITY USERS’ TAX RECEIPTSY
(in millions)

2006-07 2007-08

2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 Estimated Adopted Budget
Electric Users™ Tax $237.863 $238.231 $235,708 $252,000 $267,400
Gas Users” Tax 73.209 84418 98,558 82,500 90,000
Telephone Users® Tax 265.179 267.210 270,681 269,748 269,825
$576.251 $589.858 $604,947 $604.248 $627,225

D Cash basis.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Sales Tax

Sales taxes represent 7.9% of General Fund revenues in the 2007-08 Adopted Budget.
Sales and use taxes are collected on the total retail price of tangible personal property sold,
unless specifically exempted. Included in the county-wide tax rate of 8.25% is a sales tax
collected by the State on behalf of cities (or, for unincorporated arcas, on behalf of counties).
Allocation of this local component (often referred to as the “Bradley-Burns Sales Tax™) is on the
basis of “situs,” or the point of sale. Additional sales taxes can be collected based on local voter
approval. Included in the 8.25% county-wide rate is a sales tax collected for the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority for transportation purposes. A portion of those
taxes is remitted to the City for deposit in two special revenue funds.

Effective July 1, 2004, the traditional Bradley-Burns Sales Tax was modified by a State
budgetary change known as the Triple Flip. The Triple Flip puts in place a complex revenue
swap to “secure the State’s deficit bonds™ approved by the electorate in March 2004 to balance
the State budget. The Triple Flip trades 0.25% of the 1% city share of the Bradley-Burns Sales
Tax for an equal share of property taxes from the countywide Education Revenue Augmentation
Fund (ERAF). See “—State of California Budget” herein.
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The components of the sales tax collected in the City are presented below.

Table 15
LOS ANGELES CITY
SALES TAX COMPONENTS

State Rate
General Fund Portion

Local Revenue Fund
Local Public Safety
Total State Rate

Uniform Local Tax Rate

County Transportation
Local Point of Sale

Total Uniform Local Rate

Optional Local Rates

Proposition A
Proposition C
Total Optional Local Rate

Total Sales Tax Rate in Los
Angeles County

5.25%
0.50%
0.50%

6.25%

0.25%
0.75%

1.00%

0.50%
0.50%
1.00%

oo
o
2
=

This rate was temporarily lowered to 4.75% in calendar year 2001, but returned to 5% on January 1,
2002. Itwas increased to 5.25% on July 1, 2004 when the State exchanged local sales taxes for
property taxes.

To support health program costs.

For the Local Public Safety Fund, approved by the State voters in 1993 to support local criminal
justice activities. The City receives a small share of this, about $30 million.

This rate is levied by all counties, of which 0.25% is for county transportation funding. The remaining
portion is allocated to point of sale jurisdiction.

The County allocates a small portion of this to the City.

This is the City sales tax. The City’s share was reduced from 1.00% by the Triple Flip starting July
2004,

State law permits optional voter approval of local tax rates. These rates are levied in 0.25% and 0.5%
increments.

Voter approved measures to improve public transit and reduce traffic congestion.

Voter approved measures to improve public transit and reduce traffic congestion.

The total ranges within the State from 7.25% to the maximum allowable rate of 8.75%

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Table 16 shows the actual or estimated General Fund receipts from the Sales Tax:

Table 16

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX RECEIPTS

(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Receipts(l)
2003-04 $377,890
2004-05 316,561
2003-06 323,555
2006-07 (Estimated) 334,044
2007-08 (Adopted Budget) 348,905@

w Cash basis.

@ Includes reduction from “Triple Flip.”

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Business Tax

Business taxes represent 10.8% of General Fund revenues in the Fiscal Year 2007-08
Adopted Budget. The business tax 1s imposed on persons engaged in a business within the City.
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The tax rate formula, which 1s established by ordinance, varies based upon the type of business.
Beginning in Fiscal Year 2005-06, a number of tax reform measures have been and will continue
to be implemented. These reforms included exemptions for small businesses, changes in the
taxing methodology for entertainment production companies, and the establishment of tax rate
reductions that will be triggered by growth in revenue. The estimated rate decrease calculated
for Fiscal Year 2007-08 1s 4%. The Adopted Budget projects that any losses from tax reform will
be offset by revenues associated with growth in economic activity and increased enforcement.

Table 17 shows the actual or estimated receipts from the business tax:

Table 17
BUSINESS TAX RECEIPTS
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Receipts(l)
2003-04 $373,248
2004-05 396,794
2005-06 434,529
2006-07 (Estimated) 459,191
2007-08 (Adopted Budget) 477,590

w Cash basis.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

State Motor Vehicle License Fee

A vehicle license fee (“VLF”) 1s imposed annually by the State in lieu of local property
taxes, and represents a fee on the ownership of a registered vehicle in California. Automobiles,
motorcycles, pick-up trucks, commercial trucks and trailers, rental cars and taxicabs are all
subject to the VLF. A portion of this fee 1s subvened to cities and counties.

Beginning in 1999, the State began to reduce the fee from its historic level of 2% of the
market value of motor vehicles. State law provided that the State “backfill” (and thus make local
governments whole) the difference between the lower VLF rate and the 2% rate, unless the State
had ““insufficient moneys™ with which to make such payments. As part of the State’s Fiscal Year
2004-05 Budget, the VLF rate was permanently reduced to 0.65%, with the lost revenue replaced
by an incremental allocation of property tax. Vehicle License Fees now represent only 0.5% of
General Fund revenue.
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Table 18 shows the actual or estimated receipts from State Motor Vehicle License Fees:

Table 18

STATE MOTOR VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECEIPTS
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year

2003-04

2004-05

2005-06

2006-07 (Estimated)
2007-08 (Adopted Budget)

M (Cash basis.
@ Reflects loss from suspension of State backfill.

Receipts'”
$174,215%

42,296
23,6763
28,100
26,000

@ Reflects revenue reductions from reduced VLF rates, which are replaced by an increased allocation of property taxes.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Licenses, Permits, Fees and Fines

This category of revenues includes reimbursements to the General Fund from various
special and enterprise funds of the City, and charges for special services performed by City
departments. Reimbursements include the costs of police, fire and other City services to the
Airports and Harbor Departments, and staff costs for the sewer construction and maintenance
program. These revenues also include charges imposed as regulatory measures by City
departments, and fees charged for paramedic ambulance services.

Table 19 shows the actual or estimated receipts from licenses, permits, fees and fines:

Table 19
LICENSES, PERMITS, FEES AND FINES
(in thousands)

2006-07
2003-040 2004-05 2005-06" (Estimated)

Ambulance Fees $ 49,907 $ 49,587 $ 49,587 $ 55,000
Services to Sewer Program 38,718 49,087 58,217 57,881
Services to Dept. of Airports 52,930 54,662 62,540 76,000
Services to Harbor Dept. 19,130 20,506 20,031 29,014
MTA Reimbursement 4,603 0 0 0
Miscellaneous Reimbursements From

Other Special Funds and Other Agencies 105,822 103,230 133,105 189,067
Building and Safety Fees® 80,701 95,510 2,252 2,262
Other Departmental Receipts 110,788 124,016 151,499 164,916
Total General Fund $462,600 $495,598 $477,231 $574,140
Building and Safety Building Permit Enterprise Fund® $0 $0 $132,466 $92,880
W Cash basis.
@ Building Permit revenue formerly credited in this account now being credited to an enterprise fund starting in Fiscal Year 2005-06.

& Revenues to new enterprise fund, minus reimbursements of General Fund costs.

2007-08
(Adopted
Budget)”
$ 57,000
70,322
82,808
29,622

]

213,380
2,905
159,214
$615,251

$89,566

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Documentary Transfer Tax

The documentary transfer tax 1s imposed on each recorded document in which real
property 1s sold. The City’s tax rate 1s 0.45% of the value of real property. This tax 1s in addition
to the 0.11% tax ($1.10 per $1,000) levied by the County. 'This tax is tied to real estate market
activity and 1s more volatile than other City revenues. The 2007-08 Adopted Budget assumes a
slowdown in the real estate market and a 15% decline in City revenue from the current year.
Table 20 presents actual, projected and budgeted receipts from this revenue source.

Table 20
DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Receiptst™ Budget Variance
2003-04 $159,244 $127,000 $32,244
2004-05 191,106 138,100 53,006
2005-06 217,320 156,000 61,147
2006-07 (Estimated) 185,000 192,500 (7,500)
2007-08 (Adopted Budget) N/A 157,014 N/A
@ Cash basis.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Parking Fines

The City receives revenues from parking fines; the schedule of fines is established by the
Council. For budgeting purposes, parking ticket revenue forecasts are based on the number of
parking enforcement officers employed by the City’s Department of Transportation, and
estimates of average revenues per ticket based on historical trends, collection rates and average
worker productivity.

Table 21 shows the actual or estimated receipts from all parking fines:

Table 21
PARKING FINES
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Receipts(l)
2003-04 $107,312%
2004-05 110,071
2005-06 113,060
2006-07 (Estimated) 122,448
2007-08 (Adopted Budget) 126,000

' Cash basis.

@ Decrease attributable to unusually large bail refunds.

@ Starting in Fiscal Year 2005-06, the budget category formerly known as “Municipal Court Fines” was re-classified as “Parking Fines”.
Non-parking-related court fines are now included in Licenses, Permits, Fees and Fines.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Water and Power Transfers to General Fund

The largest revenue source in this category 1s the annual transfer to the General Fund
from the Power Revenue Fund of the DWP. Historically, this transfer has equaled approximately
5% of the total operating revenue of the Power Revenue Fund in the preceding Fiscal Year. This
transfer was increased to 7% beginning in Fiscal Year 2002-03 pursuant to Charter Section 344,
which provides that, with the consent of the Board of Water and Power Commissioners, the
Council may direct by ordinance the transfer of surplus revenue to the General Fund. The 2007-
08 power transfer will continue at 7% of 2006-07 power revenue. The transfer is restricted by
the Charter and the DWP’s revenue bond covenants, which specify that a transfer may not be
greater than the previous fiscal year’s net income, nor may it result in a reduction of the power
system’s surplus to less than 33-1/3% of system’s total outstanding debt. Transfers are made
periodically following Council’s adoption of the ordinance. In 2003-04 and 2004-03, additional
supplemental transfers were also approved.

State of California ex rel Barakat Consulting,Inc., et al. v. Los Angeles Department of
Water and Power 1s a state court action in which governmental plaintiffs allege that DWP
overcharged the public agencies for electricity. The trial court's tentative ruling awarded $223
million in damages and restitution to the plaintiffs. In this decision, the Court preliminarily found
that DWP improperly charged specified governmental customers for “capital facilities fees™ from
July 1997 to October 2006. DWP’s current billing practices are not in 1ssue in light of a new
State statute effective January 1, 2007. The trial court also found that DWP’s annual transfer to
the City 1s improperly treated by DWP as a cost component and is a prohibited tax. However, in
past cases the transfer has been upheld. The City’s 2007-08 budget projects a $185 million
transfer to the City. DWP intends to contest the tentative decision.

Table 22 shows the actual or estimated transfers from the Power Revenue Fund:

Table 22
TRANSFERS FROM POWER REVENUE FUND
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Receipts(l)
2003-04 $179,214%
2004-03 220,167%
2005-06 157,894
2006-07 (Estimated) 174,747
2007-08 (Adopted Budget) 184,600

M (Cash basis.
@ Includes supplemental transter of $29 million in 2003-04. These supplemental transters were deposited in the City’s Reserve Fund.
@ Asupplemental transfer of $60 million was made directly to the General Fund in 2004-05.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

A smaller annual transfer was made from DWP’s Water Revenue Fund. Such transfers
from water revenues were eliminated by recent court decisions mnvolving the application of
Proposition 218. As explained below in further detail (see “LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND
APPROPRIATIONS, Articles XIII C and XIII D of California Constitution — Proposition
218” herein), a recent State Supreme Court decision (Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency v.
Verfil) found that metered charges for consumption of water by a public agency fell within the
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“property-related” fees subject to Proposition 218. The City discontinued this transfer in Fiscal
Year 2006-07, but has filed a validation action in the Los Angeles Superior Court to determine
whether the annual Water Revenue Transfer to the City complies with all applicable provisions
of law. The Department of Water and Power intends to make future Water Revenue Transfers to
the City if there 1s a final favorable judicial ruling by the appellate court.

LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS

Article XIII A of the California Constitution - Proposition 13

Article XIIT A of the California Constitution limits the amount of ad valorem taxes on
real property to one percent of “full cash value™ as determined by the County Assessor, except
that additional ad valorem taxes may be levied to pay debt service on indebtedness approved by
the voters prior to July 1, 1978 and on bonded indebtedness for the acquisition or improvement
of real property that has been approved on or after July 1, 1978 by two-thirds of the voters on
such indebtedness. See “MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES —Property
Tax,” herein.

Article XIIT A defines “full cash value™ to mean the County assessor’s valuation of real
property as shown on the 1975-76 tax bill under full cash value or, thereafter, the appraised value
of real property when purchased, newly constructed or when a change in ownership has occurred
after the 1975 assessment period. The full cash value may be adjusted annually to reflect
inflation at a rate, as shown by the consumer price index, not to exceed two percent per year, or
may be reduced. Article XIII A also permits the reduction of the “full cash value™ base in the
event of declining property values caused by damage, destruction or other factors.

On June 18, 1992, the United States Supreme Court upheld the constitutionality of certain
challenged provisions of Article XIII A in connection with its review of the Nordlinger v. Hahn
case.

Article XIII B of the California Constitution - Gann Limit

On November 6, 1979, California voters approved Proposition 4, the so-called Gann
Imtiative, which added Article XIII B to the California Constitution. In June 1990, Article XIII
B was amended by the voters through their approval of Proposition 111. Article XIII B of the
California Constitution limits the annual appropriations of the State and any city, county, school
district, authority or other political subdivision of the State to the level of appropriations for the
prior fiscal year, as adjusted annually for changes in the cost of living, population and services
rendered by the governmental entity. The “base year” for establishing such appropriation limit
used to be the 1978-79 fiscal year, but 1s now the 1986-87 fiscal year as a result of Proposition
111.

Appropriations subject to Article XIII B include generally any authorization to expend
during the fiscal year the “proceeds of taxes” levied by the State or other entity of local
government, exclusive of certain State subventions, refunds of taxes, benefit payments from
retirement, unemployment insurance and disability insurance funds. “Proceeds of taxes™ include,
but are not limited to, all tax revenues and the proceeds to any entity of government from: (1)
regulatory licenses, user charges and user fees to the extent such proceeds exceed the cost of
providing the service or regulation; (2) the investment of tax revenues; and (3) certain State
subventions recerved by local governments. Article XIII B includes a requirement that if any
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entity’s revenues in any year exceed the amounts permitted to be spent, the excess would have to
be returned by revising tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two fiscal years.

Appropriations subject to limitation pursuant to Article XIII B do not include debt service
on indebtedness approved according to law by a vote of the electors or appropriations required to
comply with mandates of courts or the federal government or certain capital expenditures.

Article XIII B permits any government entity to change the appropriations limit by vote
of the electorate in conformity with statutory and Constitutional voting requirements, but any
such voter-approved change may only be effective for a maximum of four years.

Table 23 1s a comparison of the City’s appropriations limit and appropriations subject to
limitation.

Table 23
APPROPRIATIONS LIMITS AND APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS

Appropriations Subject Amount Appropriations
Fiscal Year City Appropriations Limit to Limitations Are Under Limit
2003-04 $3,430,108,495 $2,496,962,184 $ 933146311
2004-05 3,587,207,464 2,683,430,589 903,776,875
2005-06 3,820,375,949 2,787,085,473 1,033,290,476
2006-07 3,989,932,486 3,054,031,206 935,901,280
2007-08 4,207,533,748 3,208,266,123 999,267,625

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Articles XIII C and XIII D of California Constitution - Proposition 218

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, known as the
“Right to Vote on Taxes Act.” Proposition 218 added Articles XIII C and XIII D to the
California Constitution, which contain a number of provisions affecting the ability of the City to
levy and collect both existing and future taxes, assessments, fees and charges.

Article XIII C requires that all new local taxes or increases in existing local taxes be
submitted to the electorate before they become effective. Taxes for general governmental
purposes of the City require a majority vote and taxes for specific purposes, even if deposited in
the City’s General Fund, require a two-thirds vote. The voter-approval requirements of
Proposition 218 reduce the flexibility of the Council to raise revenues for the General Fund, and
no assurance can be given that the City will be able to impose, extend or increase such taxes in
the future to meet any increased expenditure requirements.

Article XIII D contains provisions relating to how local agencies may levy and maintain
“assessments” for municipal services and programs. “Assessment” 1s defined to mean any levy
or charge upon real property for a special benefit conferred upon the real property. Article XIII
D also contains several provisions affecting “property-related fees™ and ““charges,” defined for
purposes of Article XIII D to mean “any levy other than an ad valorem tax, a special tax, or an
assessment, imposed by a local government upon a parcel or upon a person as an incident of
property ownership, including a user fee or charge for a property related service.” All new and
existing property-related fees and charges must conform to requirements prohibiting, among
other things, fees and charges which (1) generate revenues exceeding the funds required to
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provide the property-related service, (i1) are used for any purpose other than those for which the
fees and charges are imposed, (ii1) are for a service not actually used by, or immediately
available to, the owner of the property in question, or (iv) are used for general governmental
services, including police, fire or library services, where the service 1s available to the public at
large in substantially the same manner as 1t is to property owners. Further, before any property-
related fee or charge may be imposed or increased, written notice must be given to the record
owner of each parcel of land affected by such fee or charge. The City must then hold a hearing
upon the proposed imposition or increase, and if written protests against the proposal are
presented by a majority of the owners of the identified parcels, the City may not impose or
increase the fee or charge. Fees for electrical and gas service are explicitly exempted from the
definition of “property-related” under Article XIII D. Property-related fees or charges for
services other than sewer, water and refuse collection services may not be imposed or increased
without majority approval by the property owners subject to the fee or charge or, at the option of
the local agency, two-thirds voter approval by the electorate residing in the affected area.

In addition to the provisions described above, Proposition 218 removes many of the
limitations on the initiative power in matters of reducing or repealing any local tax, assessment,
fee or charge. No assurance can be given that the voters of the City will not, in the future,
approve an initiative or initiatives which reduce or repeal local taxes, assessments, fees or
charges currently comprising a substantial part of the City’s General Fund.

Proposition 218 continues to be interpreted by Califorma Courts. The recent State
Supreme Court decision concerning the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency case found that
metered charges for consumption of water by a public agency fell within the “property-related”
fees subject to Proposition 218. Fees for sewer and refuse collection could also be found to be
within the definition of property-related fees, and therefore rate increases would be subject to
notice, hearing and majority protest, but not prior voter approval, and rates and charges could be
reduced by referendum. If such charges are property-related charges, rate increases would be
subject to notice, hearing and majority protest, but not prior voter approval, and rates and charges
could be reduced by referendum. Similarly, a recent decision by the Second District Court of
Appeal, AB Cellular LA, LLC v. City of Los Angeles, further clarified what constitutes a tax
increase requiring voter approval under Proposition 218.

Proposition 1A

Proposition 1A, proposed by the Legislature in connection with the 2004-05 Budget Act
and approved by the voters in November 2004, provides that the State may not reduce any local
sales tax rate, limit existing local government authority to levy a sales tax rate or change the
allocation of local sales tax revenues, subject to certain exceptions. Proposition 1A generally
prohibits the State from shifting to schools or community colleges any share of property tax
revenues allocated to local governments for any fiscal year, as set forth under the laws in effect
as of November 3, 2004. Any change in the allocation of property tax revenues among local
governments within a county must be approved by two-thirds of both houses of the I.egislature.
Proposition 1A provides, however, that beginning in fiscal year 2008-09, the State may shuft to
schools and community colleges up to 8% of local government property tax revenues, which
amount must be repaid, with interest, within three years, if the Governor proclaims that the shift
is needed due to a severe state financial hardship, the shift is approved by two-thirds of both
houses and certain other conditions are met. The State may also approve voluntary exchanges of
local sales tax and property tax revenues among local governments within a county. Proposition
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1A also provides that if the State reduces the VLF rate currently in effect, 0.65% of vehicle
value, the State must provide local governments with equal replacement revenues. Further,
Proposition 1A required the State, since July 1, 2005, to suspend State mandates affecting cities,
counties and special districts, excepting mandates relating to employee rights, schools or
community colleges, in any year that the State does not fully reimburse local governments for
their costs to comply with such mandates.

Proposition 1A may result in more stable City revenues depending on future actions by
the State. However, Proposition 1A could also result in decreased resources being available for
State programs. This reduction, in turn, could affect actions taken by the State to resolve budget
difficulties. Such actions could include increasing State taxes, decreasing spending on other
State programs or other action, some of which could be adverse to the City.

Future Initiatives

Article XIIT A, Article XIII B, Article XIII C and Article XIII D were each adopted as
measures that qualified for the ballot pursuant to the State’s imitiative process. From time to time,
other initiative measures could be adopted, which may place further limitations on the ability of
the State, the City or local districts to increase revenues or to increase appropriations which may
affect the City’s revenues or its ability to expend its revenues.

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

Financial Statements

Tables 24 and 25 summarize financial information for the General Fund contained in the
City’s audited Basic Financial Statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) for the periods indicated.

Fiscal Year 2001-02 represented the first period for which the City presented its financial
statements under the new reporting model required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB™) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis - for State and [Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 37.
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The following tables summarize the General Fund condition as reported in the City’s
audited financial statements over the last five years.

Table 24
BALANCE SHEETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND
As of June 30, 2002 through 2006
(in thousands)

2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 706,616 $ 801,219 $776,978  $1,112,939  §1,053,736
Taxes Receivable 232,032 242,284 253,548 225,457 262,464
Accounts Receivable 103,209 144,277 150,764 159,265 159,605
Special Assessments Receivable 7,817 8,821 7,319 5,312 4,439
Investment Income Receivable 12,650 9,855 12,172 10,248 12,021
Intergovernmental Receivable 75,971 65,169 23,311 17,023 15,626
Duc from Other Funds 63,399 51,954 87,582 27,972 28,901
Inventories 24,791 30,345 16,615 16,321 16,985
Advances to Other Funds 10,807 10,450 19,795 27,344 24,464
Total Assets 1,237,292 1,364,374 1,348,084 1.601.881 1.578.241
Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable 48,663 44,964 39,551 50,794 62,934
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions 157,457 191,409 194,720 267,152 237,471
Accrued Wages and Overtime Payable 88,282 97,423 124,079 131,294 150,041
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable 3,060 1,550 2,100 2,096 1,505
Estimated Claims and Judgments Payable 27,386 19,224 14,495 13,090 13,688
Intergovernmental Payable 137 86 81 56 87
Due to Other Funds 32,980 17,796 24,739 20,746 19452
Deposits and Advances 7.370 4,366 240,854 214,101 217,998
Deferred Revenue and Other Credits 209,810 243,800 3,724 20,426 19,952
Advances from Other Funds 57,093 51,998 59,780 60,099 56,159
Other Liabilities 7,664 9.887 12,356 12436 13,564
Total Liabilities 638,902 682,503 718,479 792,250 792,851
Fund Balance:
Reserved for Encumbrances 122,132 105,309 110,727 119,019 124,878
Reserved for Assets Not Available for Appropriation 35,598 40,795 36,410 43,665 41,449
Reserved for Special Purposes 28.451 25,941 16,283 68,001 47,860
Designated for Special Purposes 71,100 71,000 71,000 88,942 118,468
Unreserved and Undesignated 340,209 438,826 395,185 489,964 452,735
Total Fund Balances 597,390 681,871 629,605 809,591 785,390
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $1.237.292 $1.364.374 $1.348084 $1.601.881 §1.578.241

Source: City of Los Angeles, Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR).
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Table 25
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES FOR THE GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2002 through 2006
(in thousands)

2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06

Revenues:
Property Taxes $ 632329 $ 666977 $ 724,930  $1,041,143  $1,168,082
Sales Taxes 346,302 367,112 381,090 303,954 329,169
Utility Users’ Taxes 478,343 521,148 572,018 578,542 606,617
Business Taxes 358,865 356,937 372,376 396,316 436,621
Other Taxes 284,989 311,004 382,615 415,852 476,529
Licenses and Permits 36,939 38,345 37,014 44,283 21,529
Intergovernmental 233,592 225,968 183,933 100,078 319,601
Charges for Services 345,451 360,372 363,138 400,044 324,689
Services to Enterprise Funds 190,024 206,412 230,712 227,314 229,695
Fines 95,794 116,115 106,240 120,297 117,103
Special Assessments 2,095 1,397 3,509 2,625 2,765
Investment Earnings 39913 49,424 1,101 29,198 21,809
Other 28,520 33,664 28,593 29,761 35,077
Total Revenues 3,073,156 3,254,875 3,387,269 3,689,407 3,809,286
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government 659,912 931,710 948,037 976,635 1,063,766
Protection of Persons and Property 1,590,922 1,556,554 1,701,989 1,766,795 1,854,701
Public Works 175,582 170,546 177,208 163,582 190,745
Health and Sanitation 211,780 186,286 213,846 219,228 219,447
Transportation 102,162 103,113 111,919 114,167 115,820
Cultural and Recreational Services 32,358 30,502 38,290 44,298 66,632
Community Development 28,381 26,488 32,980 36,347 39,333
Capital Outlay 34,679 22,013 26,261 24,264 35116
Debt Service: Cost of Issuance 173 223 196 226 197
Total Expenditures 2,835,919 3,027.435 3,250,726 3,345,542 3,585,757
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 237,207 227,440 136,543 343,865 223,529

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfers In 226,832 227,227 221,793 245,704 206,897

Operating Transfer Out (402,853) (375,740) (396,872) (409,289) (455,291)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (176,021) (148,513) (175,079) (163,585) (248,394)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and

Other Sources Over Expenditures and 51,186 78,927 (38,536) 180,280 (24,865)
Other Uses

Fund Balances, July 1, Restated!” 534,958 597,390 681,871 629,605 809,591

(Decrease) Increase in Reserve for Inventories 1,246 5,554 (13,730) (294 664

Fund Balances, June 30 $597.390 $681.871 $629.605 $809.591 $785.390

o Prior period adjustments occurred in 2001 and 2002 to reflect a $97 million retroactive adjustment for the implementation of GASB .
Interpretation No. 6, which reduced the accruals for compensated absences, claims and judgments.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Comprehensive Annual.
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Reserve I'und and Financial Management Policies

The Reserve Fund was created by the City Charter and contains those actual General
Fund cash receipts that are not otherwise appropriated to the City’s Adopted Budget. The City
expects that funds will be transferred from the Reserve Fund as part of the Adopted Budget or
throughout the fiscal yvear for appropriation, or may be transferred as a loan to other funds to
maintain those funds on a parity with their obligations. All unencumbered cash amounts in the
General Fund revert to the Reserve Fund at the end of the fiscal year; some of those funds will be
reappropriated at the beginning of the following fiscal year (primarily for General Fund capital
projects).

In April 2005, the City adopted new comprehensive Financial Policies for the City of Los
Angeles, which consolidated, revised and expanded various pre-existing policies. These
included a revised Reserve Fund policy that requires the City to maintain a budget-basis Reserve
Fund increasing each year until the goal of 5% of General Fund revenues 1s reached. The
Reserve Fund 1s comprised of two accounts - a Contingency Reserve Account and an Emergency
Reserve Account. The Emergency Reserve Account, representing 2% of General Fund revenues
(amended to 2.75% by Council for 2007-08), may not be utilized for funding unless the Mayor
and Council find that there 1s an “urgent economic necessity” and determine that no other viable
sources of funds are available. The Reserve Fund 1s reported as part of the General Fund in the
City’s Financial Statements, with the amount of the Emergency Reserve designated for special
purposes as part of the City’s GAAP-based fund balance. The Contingency Reserve Account 18
available to address unexpected expenditures relating to existing programs or revenue shortfalls
upon authorization by the Mayor and City Council. The City’s Reserve Fund policy addresses
budget-based reserves, and does not set specific goals for GAAP-based year-end fund balances.

The beginning cash balance for the 2007-08 Reserve Fund is budgeted at $283.7 million
or 6.4% of budgeted General Fund revenue. After an $84.8 million transfer to the budget and
other technical adjustments, the July 1 balance will be $201.8 million or 4.55% of the budgeted
General Fund revenue. Of this amount, $122.0 million was allocated to the Emergency Reserve
Account and $79.8 million to the Contingency Reserve Account.

The new Financial Policies include several significant fiscal policies. One of these
policies requires that one-time revenues only be used for one-time expenditures. A second
requires that any new programs, unbudgeted expenditures, or new positions must identify a
revenue source at the time of their approval. The Financial Policies also call for the City to
annually budget 1% of General Fund revenue to fund capital or infrastructure improvements. For
the Fiscal Year 2007-08 Adopted Budget, the City allocated $13.4 million for capital
improvements, $30.9 million lower than the 1% requirement of $44.3 million. These Financial
Policies are available on the City’s website, http://www.lacity.org/cao/Debt Mgmt/index htm,
are subject to change and are not incorporated as part of this Official Statement.
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Budgetary Reserves

In addition to the Reserve Fund established under the City’s Charter, the City maintains
several other budgetary reserves within the General Fund, which are summarized in Table 26 and

further described below.

Table 26
BUDGETED RESERVES
(in millions)

Budgeted
Reservesasa
Actual Budgeted Reserve for Reserve for Total % of Total General
Budget for Fiscal Year Reserve Unappropriated Economic Extraordinary Budgeted Fund Budgeted
Ending June 30 Fund™ Balance” Uncertainties®  Liability Claims™ Reserves Revenues™
2003-04 $ 839 $86.6 $123 $28.9 $211.7 6.1%
2004-05 153.4 237 14.2 16.8 208.1 4.3
2005-06 156.5 459 115 0.7 214.6 4.5
2006-07 179.1 46.6 NA 0.0 2257 52
2007-08 2018 932 NA 0.0 295.0 6.6
o Represents July 1 actual balances after transfer to the budget.
2 Funds received following budget adoption that were set aside in the Reserve for Economic Uncertainties account of the Unappropriated

Balance.

Allocated for Rampart Division litigation. See “LITIGATION” herein.

These funds are “reserved for special purposes” in General

Fund balance in the City’s GAAP-based financial statements. This reserve has been closed due to the substantial settlement of the

litigation.
“ Includes Operating Transfers In.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

The City annually allocates funds to the Unappropriated Balance to be available for
appropriations later in the fiscal year to fund specified new programs and to meet contingencies
as they may arise. A preliminary allocation of these funds 18 included in the City’s budget. The
2007-08 allocation of $93.2 million includes $29.6 million for implementation for costs
associated with the memorandum of understanding for the Engineers and Architects bargaining
union, $16 million for new police facilities, $4 million for increased cost of petroleum products,
and $3.5 million for outside legal counsel expenses.
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GAAP-Based Fund Balance

Table 27 presents the City’s year-end unreserved fund balance, as reported in the City’s
annual Basic Financial Statements, which are prepared in accordance with GAAP. Designations
of the General Fund balance are made on a budgetary basis, and represent the amount allocated
to the Emergency Reserve Account in the Reserve Fund as well as certain advances and
technical adjustments.

Table 27
ANALYSIS OF UNRESERVED GENERAL FUND BALANCES
GAAP BASIS
(in millions)

Unreserved General Fund Balance

Unreserved Fund
General Fund Balance as Percent
Fiscal Year Designal;ed(l)(z) Undesignated(l) Total Revenues"’ of Revenues
2001-02 $71.0 $340.2 $411.2 $3,300.0 12.5%
2002-03 71.0 438.8 509.8 34821 14.6
2003-04 71.0 3952 466.2 3,609.1 12.9
2004-05 88.9 490.0 578.9 39351 14.5
2005-06" 118.5 452.7 571.2 4,0162 14.2
o Includes the City’s contingency and emergency reserves in accordance with the City’s Reserve Fund Policy.
5 Includes the amount allocated to the Emergency Reserve Account in the Reserve Fund as well as certain advances and technical
adjustments.
@ Includes Operating Transfers In.
@ Unandited

Source: City of Los Angeles Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

Risk Retention Program

Because of its size and its financial capacity, the City has long followed the practice of
directly assuming virtually all insurable risks without procuring commercial insurance policies.
The extent and variety of City exposure 1s such that the cost of the premiums would outweigh the
benefits of such coverage. The City administers, adjusts, settles, defends and pays claims from
budgeted resources. The City 1s self-insured for workers’ compensation as permitted under State
law. The City procures commercial insurance when required by bond or lease financing
covenants and for other limited purposes.

Funds are budgeted annually to provide for claims and other liabilities based both on the
City’s historical record of payments and an evaluation of known or anticipated claims.
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The City’s claims payment experience is listed in Table 28.

Table 28
LIABILITY CLAIMS PAID®
(in millions)

Fiscal Year Budget Claims Paid
2003-04 50.0 46.2
2004-05 45.4 29.8
2005-06 41.0 364
2006-07 (Estimate) 42.0 371
2007-08 (Adopted Budget) 350 NA

' Does not include Workers” Compensation claims paid by the City; see Table 29.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Workers’ Compensation, Employee Health Care and Other Human Resources Benefits

The City appropriates funds to a Human Resources Benefits Fund to account for various
programs to benefit its employees. The Fund is administered by the Personnel Department. Since
2001-02, all civilian health, dental, union supplemental benefit and life insurance subsidies have
been consolidated into the “Civilian Flex Program”™ line item. Total benefits expenditures are
shown in Table 29.

Table 29
HUMAN RESOURCES BENEFITS®"

2006-07 2007-08
2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 (Estimatec]) {Adopted Budget)
Workers” Compensation/Rehabilitation $142,082,118 $120,556,904 $120,629,988 $126,400,000 $127.302,000
Civilian FLEX Program 137,436,974 149,422,770 16,367,441 183,257,000 205,719,000
Supplemental Civilian Union Benefits 3,620,010 4,528,089 4,203,236 4,700,000 4,700,000
Police Health and Welfare Program 64,474,583 69,986,402 77418141 81,819,000 93,673,000
Fire Health and Welfare Program 25,864,154 28,356,303 31,201,391 34,105,000 34,419,000
Unemployment Insurance 3,883,900 2,932,019 3,229,909 3,070,000 3,500,000
Employee Assistance Program 1,188,510 1,138,011 971,678 1,209,000 1,084,000
Total $378.550.249 $376.920.499 $401.328.753 $434.560.000 $470.397.000

W Cash basis.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Labor Relations

The City adopted an employee relations ordinance under the provisions of the Meyers-
Milias-Brown Act. The City Administrative Officer represents the Mayor and Council in
negotiations with bargaining units. She gets direction from the Executive Employee Relations
Committee, consisting of the Mayor, the President of the Council, the President Pro-Tempore of
the Council and the chairpersons of the Council’s Budget and Finance and Personnel
Committees. Formal memoranda of understanding are executed between the City and the
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bargaining units incorporating the negotiated wages, hours and working conditions. Typically,
cost of living increases follow a pattern set by the larger bargaining units. The term of the
various memoranda of understanding are staggered so that sworn and civilian bargaining units
are on different bargaining cycles. Approximately 45,556 City employees are associated with
some 54 employee umts represented by 25 unions and employee associations; the other 1,246
employees are not represented.

The following summarizes the membership and status of the largest unions and employee
associations. If an agreement expires without a replacement, the terms of the expired agreement
remain operative.

Table 30
STATUS OF LABOR CONTRACTS
LARGEST EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS®

Approximate

Number of Full-  Number of Status of Cost of

Time Employees  Bargaining Memorandum of Living
Organization Represented Units Understanding Adjustment
Los Angeles Police Protective League 9,376 1 Three-year contracts through June 30, 2009. 3.0% on 7/1/2006

3.5% on 7/1/2007
3.75% on 7/1/2008

United Firefighters of Los Angeles 3,575 1 Three-year contracts through June 30, 2009. 3.0% on 7/1/2006
City, Local 112, AFL-CIO 3.59% on 7/1/2007
3.75% on 7/1/2008

Los Angeles City Employees Union, 9,029 6 Three-year contracts through June 30, 2007. N/A
Local 347, SEIU, AFL-CIO

Engineers and Architects Association 7,234 7 Contracts through June 30, 2010 . 3.0% on 7/1/2007
3.0% on 7/1/2008
3.0% on 7/1/2009

American Federation of State, 5,904 7 Three-year contracts through June 30, 2007. N/A
County, and Municipal Employees,
AFL-CIO

@ Excludes DWP.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Table 31 shows total authorized City staffing for all departments except the City’s three
proprietary departments: Airports, Harbor, and DWP. The Police Department represents the
single largest department in terms of authorized positions.

Table 31
AUTHORIZED CITY STAFFINGY

2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08
Police 13,807 13,805 13,832 13,994 14,245
All Others 22,167 21,827 22,324 22,740 22,903
Total 35974 35,632 36,156 36,734 37,148

) Excludes the Departments of Airports, Harbor, and Water and Power.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Retirement and Pension Systems

The City contributes to three single-employer defined benefit pension plans created by
the City Charter: the Los Angeles City Employees” Retirement System (“LACERS™), the City of
Los Angeles Fire and Police Pension Plan (“FPPP”), and the Water and Power Employees’
Retirement, Disability and Death Benefit Insurance Plan (the “Water and Power Plan™). No
general funds of the City are allocated to the Water and Power Plan.

Both LACERS and FPPP (collectively the “Pensions Systems™) provide retirement,
disability, death benefits, post-employment healthcare and annual cost-of-living adjustments to
plan members and beneficiaries. As required by the City Charter, the actuarial valuations for
both Pension Systems are prepared on an annual basis and the applicable actuary recommends
contribution rates for the fiscal yvear beginning after the completion of that actuarial valuation.
When approved by the respective boards of administration of the Pension Systems, these become
the City’s legally required contribution rates for such years.

The valuation determines the amount needed to fund the normal retirement costs accrued
for current employment and to amortize any unfunded accrued actuarial liability (“UAAL”). The
valuation for each plan 1s an estimate based on relevant economic and demographic assumptions.
This process ensures the contributions necessary to sufficiently fund, as of the date of
calculation, the accrued costs attributable to currently active, vested terminated and retired
employees and their beneficiaries. FExamples of the actuanial assumptions that are used in this
process are the assumed rate of eamings on the assets of the plan into the future, the assumed
future pay increases for current employees, assumed rates of disability, the assumed retirement
ages of active employees, the assumed marital status at retirement, and the post-employment life
expectancies of retirees and beneficiaries. As plan experience differs from adopted assumptions,
the actual amount paid out by a plan will be more or less than the amounts contemplated based
on the assumptions. The contribution rate in the next year’s valuation is adjusted to take into
account actual performance. In addition, each plan performs an experience study every three
years and further adjusts 1ts assumptions accordingly.

When measuring assets for determining the UAAL, many pension plans, including the
Pension Systems, “smooth™ market value gains and losses to reduce volatility. With respect to
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either of the Pension Systems, if in the period for which an actuarial valuation is prepared the
actual investment return on that Pension Systems’ assets is lower or higher than the actuarial
assumed rate of return then, under current practices, 20% of the shortfall or excess is recognized
in that actuarial valuation and each of the next four valuations, resulting in the smoothing or
spreading of that shortfall or excess over a five-year period. The impact of this results in
“smoothed” assets which are lower or higher than the market value of assets depending upon
whether the remaining amount to be smoothed is either a net gain or a net loss.

Actual investment returns for the past five fiscal years for both of the Pension Systems
are shown in Table 32.

Table 32
LOS ANGELES PENSION SYSTEMS
HISTORICAL INVESTMENT RETURNS

2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06
LACERS (5.25)% 3.61% 18.84% 9.71% 12.34%
FPFP (7.97)% 5.47% 16.92% 9.83% 12 40%

Source: City of Los Angeles, LACERS and FPPS actuarial valuations.

LACERS, established in 1937 under the Charter, 1s a contributory plan covering most
City employees except uniformed fire and police personnel and employees of the Department of
Water and Power. As of June 30, 2006, LACERS had 28,839 active members, 14,570 retired
members and beneficiaries, and vested terminated members of 2,903. LACERS 1s funded
pursuant to the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method. Among the actuarial assumptions currently
used in valuing the plan are an investment rate of return of 8%, and that this same rate 1s used to
discount future values. Actuarial losses are funded and actuarial gains credited over fixed 15
year periods. Any liability or surplus due to benefit or assumption changes 1s funded or credited
over 30 years. The Board adopted a policy of re-amortizing the system’s liabilities over 30 years
beginning July 1, 2005.
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Table 33 shows the present value of retirement benefits, the actuarial value of assets
available for retirement benefits, and two indicators of funding progress for LACERS, the
funded ratio and the ratio of UAAL to annual payroll. The actuarial value of assets 1s the market
value of assets with actuarial gains and losses smoothed over five years. As of June 30, 2006,
the market value of assets exceeded the actuarial value by $599 million.

Table 33
LOS ANGELES CITY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(Dollars in Thousands)(l)

Underfunded or
Actuarial Underfunded (Overfunded) AAL
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Or as a Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability (Overfunded) Funded Covered Of Covered
As of June 30 Assets (AAL) AALD Ratio*? Paﬂollw Paﬂoll(s)
2002 $7,060,188 $7,252,118 $ 191,930 97.4% $1,334,335 14.4%
2003@ 6,999,647 7,659,846 660,199 91.4 1,405,058 47.0
2004® 7,042,108 8,533,864 1,491,756 825 1,575,285 94.7
2005 7,193,142 9,321,525 2,128,383 772 1,589,306 133.9
20069 7,674,999 9,870,662 2,195,663 77.8 1,733,340 126.7

&)

o Table includes funding for retirement benefits only. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) not included.

Commonly referred to as UAAL. Actuarial Accrued Liability minus Actuarial Value of Assets. Positive numbers represent a funded ratio
less than 100%.

@ Actuarial value of assets divided by actuarial accrued liability.

“ Annual payroll for members of L ACERS.

®  UAAL divided by covered payroll.

@ Drop in funded ratio is primarily attributable to investment losses and changes in actuarial assumption and not increased benefits.

Source:  The City of Los Angeles City Employees’ Retirement System Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2006.
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Table 34 summarizes the City’s payments to LACERS over the past five years. This table
includes costs for retirement, other post employment benefits, and other miscellaneous benefits.

Table 34
LOS ANGELES CITY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SOURCES AND USES OF CONTRIBUTIONS
(Dollars in Thousands)m

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07

Sources of Contributions
General Fund $69,243 $104,639 $183,786 $260,554 $342,993
Special Funds 9,568 16,443 27,996 43,706 50,317
Total $78,811 $121,082 $211,782 $304,260 $393,310
Percent of payroll 5.9% 8.3% 14.3% 19.0% 23.9%

Uses of Contributions

Current Service Liability (Normal cost) $141,643 $177,180 $161,077 $162,526 $220,242
UAAL/(Surplus) (63,430) (56.627) 50,244 141,332 172,506
Adjustments® 598 529 461 402 562
Total $78,811 $121,082 $211,782 $304,260 $393,310

@ Tneludes funding for other post-employment benefits.
@ Includes the excess benefit plan, the family death benefit plan, and the limited term plan fund.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Table 35 below projects the City’s contributions to LACERS for the next five fiscal years
based on information provided by the system’s current actuary. These contributions include the
projected cost of other post employment benefits.

Table 35
LOS ANGELES CITY EMPLOYEES® RETIREMENT SYSTEM
ADOPTED AND PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS®
(Dollars in Thousands)

(Adopted)
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12
LACERS
General Fund $338,914 $344,822 $335,345 $338,741 3344616
Special Funds 58.541 58,801 56,534 55,173 54,239
Total $397.455 $403.623 $391.879 $393 914 $$398.855
Incremental Change $4,145 36,168 (311,744 $2,035 $4,941

= Projections based on the following assumptions: investments eam a return of 8% for each future vear; prior investment gains as of 6/30/2006
that are scheduled to be recognized using the Board’s 5 vear asset smoothing method; and the “contribution losses” due to the one year time
lag for implementing the new rates.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer as of June 1, 2007.

The City of Los Angeles Fire and Police Pension Plan, established in 1923 under the
Charter, represents contributory plans covering uniformed fire and police personnel. Five tiers of
benefits are provided, depending on the date of the member’s hiring. As of June 30, 2006, the
FPPP had 12,903 active members, 11,815 retired members and beneficiaries, and 59 vested
former members. The FPPP is funded pursuant to the Entry Age Normal Funding Method.
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Among the actuarial assumptions used in valuing the plan are an investment rate of return of
8.0% -- lowered for the June 30, 2006 valuation from the prior assumption of 8.5%, which 1s the
same rate used to discount future values. The inflation rate assumption was also lowered, from
5.0% to 3.75%. For Tiers 1 and 2, any UAAL 1s amortized over a fixed term ending on July 1,
2037. For Tiers 3, 4 and 5, actuarial losses are funded and actuarial gains are credited over a
fixed 15-year term; any liability changes due to benefit or assumption changes are funded over
30 vears.

The FPPP also administers a Deferred Retirement Option Program (“DROP™), which
became effective May 2002. DROP i1s a voluntary program whereby a member with a minimum
of 25 years of service may file for a service pension but continue to work and earn salary and
benefits as an active member. The monthly service pension benefit 1s deposited into a DROP
account that earns a 5% per annum return, payable upon exiting the DROP program.
Participation in the DROP program 1s limited to a maximum of five years. It began as a five-year
program designed to be cost-neutral, with provisions for review and adjustment of the design to
retain its cost neutrality. A study of the program concluded than no adjustment was required. In
addition, a five-vear extension of the DROP program for rank and file police officers and
firefighters has been approved. The extended program also includes provision for review and
adjustment of the program design to retain cost neutrality.

Table 36 shows the present value of retirement benefits, the actuarial value of assets
available for retirement benefits, and two indicators of funding progress for FPPP, the funded
ratio and the ratio of UAAL to annual payroll. Investment gains and losses are recognized on an
actuarial basis over a five-year period. As of June 30, 2006, the market value of assets exceeded
the actuarial value by $767 million.

Table 36
LOS ANGELES FIRE AND POLICE PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(Dollars in Thousands) @

Underfunded or
Actuarial Underfunded (Overfunded) AAL
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Or as a Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability (Overfunded) Funded Covered Of Covered
As of June 30 Assets (AAL) AAL® Ratio®® Payroll® Payroll”®
20029 $11,491,922 $10,606,825 $(885,097) 108.3% $ 946,037 (93.6)%
2003® 11,690,750 11,203,558 (487,192) 1043 970,727 (50.2)
2004® 11,735,696 11,389,981 (345,715) 103.0 1,001,004 (34.5)
20059 11,634,114 12,357,524 723,411 94.1 1,037,445 69.7
2006® 12,121,403 12,811,834 689,981 94.6 1,092,815 63.1%
= Table includes funding for retirement benefits only. Does not include DROP program. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) not
included.
@ Commonly referred to as UAAL. Actuarial Accrued Liability minus Actuarial Value of Assets. Positive numbers represent an actuarial
surplus.
@ Actuarial value of assets divided by actuarial accrued liability.

® Annual payroll against which UAAL amortized.
' UAAL divided by covered payroll
@ Drop in funded ratio is primarily attributable to investment losses and changes in actuarial assumptions and not increased benefits.

Source:  The Fire and Police Pension System Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2006.
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Table 37 summarizes the City’s payments to FPPP over the past five fiscal years.

Table 37
LOS ANGELES FIRE AND POLICE PENSION PLAN
SOURCES AND USES OF CONTRIBUTIONS
(Dollars in Thousands)

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07

General Fund $86,975 $128,489 $159,556 $167,001 $279,721
Tier 5 (1% pick up)®” 8.500 7.900 8,200 9,000 0
Total $95,475 $136,389 $167,756 176,001 $279,721
Percent of payroll 9.6% 13.3% 15.9% 15.1% 24 8%
Current Service Liability $165,695 $168,385 $183,071 180,018 $211,402
UAAL/{Surplus) (79,220) (40,396) (24,183) (13,561) 67,707
Adjustments® 500 500 668 544 612
Tier 5 Current Service Liability!? 8,500 7,900 8,200 9,000 0
Total $ 95,475 $136,389 $167,756 $176,001 $279,721

D pursuant to the Charter, the City pays 1% of the required employee contribution whenever the retirement benefits are at least 100% funded.
D Includes the settlement with the United Firefighters of Los Angeles City (UFL AC) and the excess benefit plan.

Source: City of Los Angeles Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Table 38 below projects the City’s contributions to FPPP, including the projected cost of other
post employment benefits, for the next five fiscal years, based on information provided by the system’s

actuary.

Table 38
LOS ANGELES FIRE AND POLICE PENSION PLAN
PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Adopted

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12
General Fund $327.740 $333.882 $334.862 $347.493 $351,793
Incremental Change $ 48,019 $ 6,142 3 (580) $ 12,632 $ 4,299

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer

Investors are cautioned that, in considering information on the Pension Systems,
including the amount of the UAAL, the funded ratio, the calculations of normal cost, and the
resulting amounts of required contributions by the City, this is “forward looking” information.
Such “forward looking” information reflects the judgment of the boards of the respective
Pension Systems and their respective actuaries as to the amount of assets which the Pension
Systems will be required to accumulate to fund future benefits over the lives of the currently
active employees, vested terminated employees and existing retired employees and beneficiaries.

A-45



These judgments are based upon a variety of assumptions, one or more of which may prove to be
inaccurate and/or be changed in the future.

For additional information, see Note 5 in the “Notes to the City’s Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006.” Various reports for LACERS and FPPP are posted from time to time
on the City’s website, at http://www lacers.org/AboutlL ACERS/ FormsPublications/Reports/index.htm
and http.//www.lafpp.com/LAFPP/index.html, respectively. Such reports are not incorporated as part of
this Official Statement.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Retired members and surviving spouses and domestic partners of LACERS and FPPP
members are eligible for certain subsidies toward their costs of medical and dental insurance.
Both of the Pension Systems have been advance funding retiree health insurance benefits for
current retirees and active eligible members for many years, funding the annual contribution
recommended by its actuaries. There are no member contributions for health subsidy benefits; all
such costs are funded out of the employer’s contribution and investment returns thereon.

As of June 30, 2006, the unfunded healthcare benefits liabilities of LACERS and the
FPPP, based on the actuarial cost method and assumptions used for the related pension plans, are
as follows:

Table 39
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
LOS ANGELES CITY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM @
(Dollars in thousands)

As of June 30 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Valuation Assets $853.916 $ 848,983 $ 858,997 $ 893,378 $ 990,270
Actuarial Accrued Liability 931,964 1,205,811 1,419,813 1,718,899 1,730,799
Unfunded (Overfunded) Actuarial Accrued Liability 78,048 356,828 560,816 825521 740,329
Funded Ratio 91.6% 70.4% 60.5% 52.0% 57.2%

& Onlythe results for 2005 and 2006 reflect the application of GASB 43.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.
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Table 40
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
FIRE. AND POLICE PENSION PLAN
(Dollars in thousands)

As of June 30 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Valuation Assets $3586,954 $392,539 $ 605,999 $ 597,199 $ 613,782
Actuarial Accrued Liability 884,371 926,761 1,009,062 1,257,505 1,631,187
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 297417 334,222 403,064 660,306 1,017,405
Funded Ratio 66.4% 63.9% 60.1% 47.5% 37.6%

" Does not reflect the application of GASB 43.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

The information in Table 39 through 2004 and in Table 40 through 20035 does not purport
to reflect the application of GASB 43 and 45, which will require that LACERS, FPPP, and the
City account for and report the annual cost and the outstanding obligations and commitments
related to health insurance subsidies and other post-employment benefits in essentially the same
manner as they currently do for pensions. LACERS and FPPP are required to comply with
GASB 43 beginning in Fiscal Year 2006-07, with the City complying with GASB 45 the
following year. The 2006 results for both systems already reflect the application of the new
GASB standards.

City Treasury Investment Practices and Policies

The Treasurer invests temporarily idle cash for the City, including that of the proprietary
departments, as part of a pooled investment program which combines general receipts with
special funds for investment purposes and allocates interest earnings on a pro-rata basis when the
interest 1s earned and distributes interest receipts based on the previously established allocations.
The Treasurer also maintains a limited number of special pools established for specific purposes.

The City’s General Pool is further divided into a core pool and a reserve pool. The core
or liquidity portion is targeted at the City’s net liquidity requirements for six months. All
investments in the core section of the portfolio have maturities of one year or less. The balance
of the General Pool not required for the City’s six-month liquidity requirement 1s invested in the
reserve portfolio. This portfolio holds investments ranging from one day to five vears.
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Table 41
POOLED INVESTMENT FUND
GENERAL POOL
Investments as of March 31,2007

Short-Term Core Portfolio Long-Term Reserve Portfolio Consolidated
Average Weighted Maturity (Days) 13.0 days 2.5 years 2.1 years
Effective Yield 5.34% 4.35% 4.50%
Percent of Average
Description Par Value Market Value Total Funds Days
Bank Deposits(” $ 30,104,777 $ 30,104,777 0.54% 1.0
Money Market Funds 0 0 0.00 0.0
LAIF (State of California) 2,630,055 2,630,055 0.05 1.0
Subtotal Cash and Overnight Investments $ 32,734,833 $ 32,734,833 0.59% 1.0
BNY Sweep Account 3 13,047 3 13,047 0.00% 0.0
Bankers Acceptances 0 0 0.00 0.0
Commercial Paper 868,925,000 867,153,402 15.57 230
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 0 0 0.00 0.0
Corporate Notes 0 0 0.00 0.0
U.S. Federal Agencies 0 0 0.00 0.0
U.S. Treasuries 0 0 0.00 0.0
Subtotal: Pooled Investments $ 868,938,047 $ 867,166,450 15.57% 6.0
Total Short Term Core Portfolio $ 901,672,880 $ 899,901,282 16.16% 13.0
BNY Sweep Account $ 0 3 0 0.00% 0.0
Bankers Acceptances 0 0 0.00 0.0
Commercial Paper 150,000,000 0 0.00 0.0
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 0 0 0.00 0.0
Corporate Notes 1,140,736,000 1,131,290,672 20.31 622.0
U.S. Federal Agencies 2,630,075,000 2,627,446,039 4717 1066.0
U.S. Treasuries 765,000,000 761,211,188 13.67 941.0
Total Long-Term Reserve Portfolio $4,685,811,000 $4,669,835,239 83.84% 899.0
Total Cash and Pooled Investments $5,587,483,880 $5,569,736,521 100.00% 761.0

Dollected balance for Bank of America Active Account.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the Treasurer.

The City’s treasury operations are managed in compliance with the California
Government Code and according to the City’s statement of investment policy, which sets forth
permitted investment vehicles, liquidity parameters and maximum maturity of investments. The
investment policy 1s reviewed and approved by the Council on an annual basis. The Association
of Public Treasurers of the Umnited States and Canada (formerly the Municipal Treasurers
Association of the United States & Canada) has certified the City’s Investment Policy.

The City’s General Investment Pool has maintained a AAAf/S1 rating from Standard &
Poor’s Corporation since May 2002, and received a Aaa’/MR1 rating from Moody’s Investors
Service in June 2006.

The Treasurer does not invest in structured and range notes, securities that could result in
zero interest accrual if held to maturity, variable rate, floating rate or inverse floating rate
investments and mortgage-derived interest or principal-only strips.
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The investment policy permits the Treasurer to engage custodial banks to enter into short-
term arrangements to loan securities to various brokers. Cash and/or securities (United States
Treasuries and Federal Agencies only) collateralize these lending arrangements, the total value
of which 1s at least 102% of the market value of securities loaned out. The securities lending
program 1s limited to a maximum of twenty percent of the market value of the Treasurer’s pool,
by the City’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code.

Capital Program

The City annually budgets capital improvements in a number of special purpose funds, as
well as the General Fund. Table 42 represents the expenditures toward capital improvements by
revenue type. This table excludes the expenditure of proceeds of general obligation bonds or
revenue bonds paid out of the City’s Special Parking Revenue Fund.

Table 42
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT EXPENDITURE PROGRAM
(Dollars in thousands)

2006-07 2007-08
2003-4 2004-052 2005-06 {(Estimated)  (Adopted Budget)

General Fund $ 16,926 $ 10,770 $ 14,456 $ 18,500 $ 1,065
Special Gas Tax Street Improvement Fund 3,186 3,817 3,831 34,618 6,028
Stormwater Pollution Abatement Fund 2,539 2,744 6,388 3,400 443
Special Parking Revenue Fund 5,584 14,543 2,720 4,727 21,080
Sewer Construction and Maintenance Fund 205,939 153,385 154,247 273,800 230,000
Park and Recreational Sites and Facilities Fund -- - 448 3,920 2,400
Convention Center Revenue Fund - - - -- 7,000
Street Lighting Maintenance Assessment Fund 5,398 8,138 10,769 11,200 4,405
Proposition C Anti-Gridlock Transit Improvement Fund -- - 2,386 8,072 1,514
Local Sales Tax Transit Improvement Funds 1,364 -- -- - --
Allocation from Other Government Agencies 4,044 916 - - -
Local Transportation Fund® 431 1,164 - - -
Other 2.146 -- 2.820 4,000 4,670

Total $247,557 $195,477 $198,063 $362,237 $278,606
0 Cash basis.

@ Funded by portion of State sales tax dedicated towards this purpose.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Otficer.
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BONDED AND OTHER INDEBTEDNESS

Introduction

The City has issued or caused the issuance of a variety of bonded and other debt
obligations as provided for under the State Constitution, judicial interpretation of the State
Constitution, State statutes, and its own Charter powers. The following summarizes that
indebtedness. The City has never failed to pay principal of or interest on any debt or lease
obligation when due.

The City Administrative Officer serves as the City’s debt manager. Staff of the Office of
the City Administrative Officer structures debt issuances and oversees the ongoing management
of all General Fund and certain special fund debt programs. These include general obligation
bonds, lease obligations, tax and revenue anticipation notes, wastewater system, solid waste
resources fee (formerly sanitation equipment charge) and parking system revenue obligations,
judgment obligation bonds, special tax obligations, Mello-Roos bonds and certain special
assessment obligations.

General Obligation Bonds

The City may 1ssue general obligation bonds for the acquisition and improvement of real
property, subject to two-thirds voter authorization of the bond proposition. A tax on all taxable
real property to pay principal and interest on general obligation bonds 1s levied by the City and
collected by the County on the secured and unsecured property tax bills within the City. (See
“MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES — Property Taxes,” herem). The
following summarizes the various voter authorizations for general obligation bonds. As of
June 1, 2007, $1,411,898,000 in general obligation bonds were outstanding.

Table 43
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
As of June 1, 2007
Amount
Date of Amount Amount Authorized
Election Projects Authorized Izsued but Unissued
4/11/89 Branch Library Facilities (Proposition 1) $ 53,400,000 $ 53,400,000 $ 0
4/11/89 Police Facilities (Proposition 2) 176,000,000 176,000,000 0
4/11/89 Fire Safety Facilities (Proposition 4) 60,000,000 60,000,000 0
6/5/90 Seismic Safety Projects (Proposition G) 376,000,000 376,000,000 0
11/3/98 Zoo Facilities (Proposition CC) 47,600,000 47,600,000 0
11/3/98 Library Facilities (Proposition DD) 178,300,000 178,300,000 0
11/7/00 Fire, Paramedic, Helicopter and Animal 532,648,000 532,648,000 0
Shelter Projects (Proposition F)
3/5/02 Emergency Operations, Fire, Dispatch and 600,000,000 600,000,000 0
Police Facilities (Proposition Q)
11/2/04 Storm Water Projects (Proposition O) 500,000,000 45,000,000 455,000,000
Total $2,523,948,000 $2,068,948,000 $455,000,000

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Citywide Limited Obligation Bonds

The City has received two-thirds voter authorization to levy special taxes on real property
based on the size of improvements (rather than assessed valuation) to secure $235,000,000 in
bonds for a Police Emergency Communications System (911). The last series of these bonds was
issued February 14, 2002. As of June 1, 2007, $125,625,000 of these bonds remain outstanding.

In addition, the City received majority voter approval to create a Citywide Landscaping
and Lighting Assessment District to finance various park and recreational improvements
throughout the City (Proposition K, creating the City of Los Angeles Landscaping and Lighting
District No. 1). While most of these projects are being funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the City
has issued $44,290,000 of bonds secured by these assessments, of which $31,025,000 were
outstanding as of June 1, 2007.

Lease Obligations

The City may enter into long-term lease obligations without first obtaining voter
approval, so long as these agreements meet certain requirements of State law. The City has
entered into various lease arrangements under which the City must make annual payments to
occupy public buildings or use equipment necessary for City operations. These lease agreements
have been with a nonprofit corporation established by the City for this purpose, the Municipal
Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles (MICLA), or with a joint powers authority, the Los
Angeles Convention and Exhibition Center Authority. Securities have been issued, either in the
form of lease revenue bonds or certificates of participation, the debt service on which is paid
from these annual lease payments.

Table 44 summarizes the bonded and certificated lease obligations pavable from the
City’s General Fund as of June 1, 2007, as well as lease revenue bonds payable from the Police
Emergency Communications System special tax described above.
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Table 44

BONDED AND CERTIFICATED LEASE OBLIGATIONS

As of June 1, 2007

Series
Los Angeles Convention and Exhibition Center
Authority, Lease Revenue Bonds 1993
MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program T
(dated August 1, 1994)
MICL A Certificates of Participation, Program AC
(dated October 1, 1997)
Los Angeles Convention and Exhibition Center Authority
Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds, 1998 Series A
(dated April 1, 1998)
MICL A Certificates of Participation, Program AE
(dated December 1, 1998)
MICL A Taxable Certificates of Participation, Program AK
(dated April 1, 199%)
MICL A Special Tax Lease Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999 D (dated April 1, 1999)
MICL A Special Tax Lease Revenue Bonds,
Refunding Series 1999-E (dated April 1, 1999)""
MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program AL
(dated November 1, 1999)
MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program AM
(dated October 1, 2000)
MICL A Special Tax Lease Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002-F (dated February 14, 2002)
MICL A Certificates of Participation, Program AN
(dated February 20, 2002)
MICL A Special Tax Lease Revenue Bonds,
Refunding Series 2002-G (dated February 14, 2002)V
MICL A Refunding Certificates of Participation, Program AT
(dated April 1, 2002)
MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program AQ
(dated April 2, 2002)
MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program AR
(dated April 2, 2002)
MICLA Refunding Certificates of Participation, Program AS
(dated April 2, 2002)®
MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program AU
(dated October 31, 2002)
MICLA Additional Certificates of Participation, Program T
(dated October 31, 2002)
MICLA Leasehold Refunding Revenue Bonds, Program AV
(dated April 2, 2003)

Project

Refunding of Convention Center
Certificates

Refunding of Piper Technical
Center Bonds

Equipment and Real Property

Staples Arena

Equipment and Real Property

Real Property

Police Emergency Command
Control Communications Systems
Police Emergency Command
Control Communications Systems

Equipment and Capital Improvements

Equipment

Police Emergency Command
Control Communications Systems

Equipment

Police Emergency Command
Control Communications Systems
Refunding of Central Library
Bonds

Real Property

Real Property

Real Property, Pershing Square
Equipment and Real Property
Acquisition

Real Property Improvement

Central Library Project

Amount
Izsued
$503,870,000
45,340,000

83,240,000

45,580,000

74,555,000

43,210,000

70,285,000

65,040,000

72,600,000

56,085,000

52,325,000

53,880,000

16,320,000

30,305,000

28,130,000

62,105,000

7,655,000

70,700,000

42,410,000

43,330,000

Amount
Outstanding
$ 51,180,000

5,005,000

16,345,000

39,150,000

16,320,000

39,265,000

36,020,000

34,805,000

21,875,000

19,185,000

38,480,000

20,190,000

16,320,000

29,740,000

26,510,000

54,500,000

6,385,000

41,530,000

38,155,000

31,180,000

Final
Maturity
8/15/11

8/1/07

10/1/14

8/15/24

12/1/14

4/1/29

9/1/11

9/1/13

11/1/15

8/1/10

9/1/13

2112

9/1/13

6/1/20

4/1/32

4/1/27

10/1/22

10/1/27

2127

6/1/15
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Table 44
BONDED AND CERTIFICATED LEASE OBLIGATIONS
As of June 1, 2007

Amount Amount Final

Series Project Issued QOutstanding Maturity

Los Angeles Convention and Exhibition Center Refunding of Convention Center 226,045,000 208,145,000 8/15/15
Authority, Lease Revenue Bonds 2003A Bonds

Los Angeles Convention and Exhibition Center Refunding of Convention Center 235,520,000 235,520,000 8/15/21
Authority, Lease Revenue Bonds 2003B-F (Variable Rate)  Bonds

MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program AW Real Property 34,220,000 33,300,000 6/1/33
(dated June 17, 2003)

MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program AX Equipment Acquisition 64,170,000 44,325,000 4/1/14
(dated April 29, 2004)

MICLA Certificates of Participation, Program AR Real Property Improvement 16,875,000 14,970,000 4/1/24
(dated April 29, 2004)

MICLA Certificates of Participation, Refunding Program AY  Refunding (Real Property) 46,395,000 31,535,000 12/114
(dated May 17, 2003)

MICL A Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2006-A Police HQ Facility, Public Works Bldg. $448,595,000 $448,595,000 1/1/37
(dated Dec 14, 2006) $2,540,785,000 $1,598,530,000

) Bonds payable from voter authorized parcel tax with no contingent liability of the City's General Fund.
Y Primary source of repayment is an assessment of properties in the vicinity of Pershing Square through the establishment of a Mello-Roos district, but the City remains
contingently liable for making up any deficiency from its General Fund.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Commercial Paper Program

In June 2004 the City and MICIL A established a commercial paper program under which
MICLA 1s authorized to issue up to $200,000,000 in T.ease Revenue Commercial Paper Notes
(the “Commercial Paper Notes™). The commercial paper program is used to finance equipment
and real property. The City expects to issue lease revenue bonds through MICLA from time to
time to refund the Commercial Paper Notes. Principal of and interest on the Commercial Paper
Notes are payable from the proceeds of Commercial Paper Notes issued to pay such principal
and interest and are also payable from lease payments to be made by the City. The payment of
principal of and interest on the Commercial Paper Notes 1s further supported by a direct pay
letter of credit, currently scheduled to expire June 1, 2009. As of June 1, 2007, approximately
$171 million in Commercial Paper Notes was outstanding.
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Judgment Obligation Bonds

State law provides for the issuance of bonds to finance an obligation imposed by law.
Pursuant to a procedural ordinance, the City has 1ssued several obligations to finance judgment
obligations. The Judgment Obligation Bonds are secured by the General Fund of the City. Table
45 summarizes the City’s Judgment Obligation Bond issuance.

Table 45
JUDGMENT OBLIGATION BONDS
As of July 1, 2006

Dated Amount Amount Final
Date Issued Outstanding Maturity  Judgment Financed with Proceeds

6/1/98 $25,000,000 $2,245,000 4/1/08 Refund to certain taxpayers of business license taxes which the court in
General Motorsv. City of Los Angeles held to be discriminatory against
interstate and intercity commerce because out-of-City manufacturers
wholesaling in the City had to pay a business tax that in-City manufacturers
wholesaling in the City did not.

4/01/00 25,000,000 7,500,000 41410 To repay judgments related to police officers making claims under the Fair
Labor Standards Act.

8/1/00 13,995,000 3,595,000 8/1/10 To repay judgments related to police officers making claims under the Fair

Labor Standards Act.

Total $63.995,000  $15,340,000

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Revenue Bonds

The City Charter and State law provide for the issuance of revenue bonds, and the
execution of installment purchase contracts that support revenue certificates of participation,
which are secured by and payable from the revenues generated by various enterprise and special
fund operations. These revenue bonds do not represent obligations of the General Fund of the
City, nor are they secured by taxes. Revenue bonds and certificates of participation have been
issued that are secured by wastewater, refuse collection and parking revenues. In addition, three
departments that are under the control of Boards appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the
Council, namely the Departments of Water and Power, Harbor and Airports, have also 1ssued
revenue bonds.

Conduit Debt Obligations

The City has 1ssued bonds or entered into installment purchase contracts secured by and
payable from loans and installment sale contracts, to provide conduit financing for single and
multi-family housing, industrial development and 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporations. These bonds
and certificates of participation are not secured by any other City General Fund or revenues.
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Cash-flow Borrowings

The City annually 1ssues tax and revenue anticipation notes (“TRANs™) to alleviate short-
term cash flow needs that occur early in the fiscal year when taxes and revenues have not yet
been recerved. The following table summarizes the City’s TRANSs issuance over the past five
years.

Table 46
TAX AND REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTES

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Amount
2003-04 $443,600,000
2004-05 650,500,000
2005-06 618,900,000
2006-07 767,500,000
2007-08 909,725,000

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Summary of Long-Term Borrowings

Table 47 presents a pro-forma statement of net direct debt of the City outstanding as of
June 1, 2007, unless otherwise noted. Tables 48 and 49 summarize the debt service to maturity of
certain of these obligations.

Table 47
NET DIRECT DEBT
As of June 1, 2007%

Outstanding at
06/01/07
General Obligation Bonds $ 1,411,898,000
City-Wide Special Tax and Assessment Bonds

Police Emergency Command Control Communications System 125,625,000

Landscaping and Lighting District 96-1 31,025,000

Subtotal 156,650,000
Lease Obligations @@

Equipment 190,700,000

Real Property 1,282,205,000

Subtotal 1,472,905,000
Judgment Obligation Bonds 15,340,000
Revenue Bonds

Department of Water and Power— Water™ 1,879,718,335

Department of Water and Power—Power'” 4341,110,522

Department of Airports™ 303,675,000

Harbor Department © 770,720,000

Wastewater System' 2,249,175,000

Solid Waste Resources Fee (formerly Sanitation Equipment Charge) 281,780,000

Parking System 104,515,000

Subtotal 9,930,693,857
GROSS DIRECT DEBT 12,987,486,857
Less:

Revenue Bonds (9,930,693.857)
DIRECT NET DEBRT 3,056,793,000
Plus:

Tax Allocation Debt 607,055,000

Other Overlapping Debt® 7,981.410,264
OVERALL NET DEBT $11.645.258.264

& As adjusted by notes @ through ‘¥ below.

@ Includes only bonded and certificated lease obligations. Excludes lease revenue bonds included under Parcel Tax Bonds.
= Does not include Commercial Paper

@ Doesnot include California Boating and Waterways Notes outstanding

® Tax Allocation Bonds of the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Los Angeles as of June 30, 2006.

© Overlapping debt information from California Municipal Statistics, Inc. as of June 1, 2007.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Table 48
DEBT SERVICE TO MATURITY ON DEBT PAYABLE FROM TAXES
As of June 1, 2007

General Obligation Bonds City-Wide Special Tax and Assessment Bonds
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Grand Total

2008 $ 108,863,000 $ 62,761,630 § 171,624,630 $ 17550000 3 6563664 $ 24113664 $ 195,738,254

2009 105,950,000 58,329,910 164,279,910 18,275,000 5,822,486 24,097 486 188,377,396
2010 100,085,000 53,907,456 153,992.456 18,995,000 5,057,474 24,052,474 178,044,930
2011 99,745,000 49,659,555 149,404,555 19,725,000 4,245,518 23,970,518 173,375,073
2012 97,510,000 45,374,887 142,884,887 20,555,000 3,385,530 23,940,536 166,825,423
2013 95,185,000 41,029,695 136,214,695 21,220,000 2,462,019 23,682,019 159,896,714
2014 93,225,000 36,741,720 129,966,720 22,150,000 1,466,094 23,616,094 153,582,814
2015 86,220,000 32,518,029 118,738,029 2,155,000 902,045 3,057,045 121,795,074
2016 80,970,000 28,572,538 109,542,538 2,255,000 801,689 3,056,089 112,599,226
2017 70,240,000 25,072,475 95,312,475 2,360,000 694,524 3,054,524 98,366,999
2018 70,225,000 21,708,513 91,933,513 2,480,000 579,979 3,059,979 94,993,491
2019 70,205,000 18,296,263 88,501,263 2,605,000 453,849 3,058,849 91,560,111
2020 70,175,000 14,851,369 85,026,369 2,740,000 320,833 3,060,833 88,087,201
2021 67,130,000 11,447,263 78,577,263 2,140,000 179,250 2,319,250 80,896,513
2022 62,720,000 8,227,338 70,947,338 1,445,000 72,250 1,517,250 72,464,588
2023 52,660,000 5,356,000 58,016,000 0 0 0 58,016,000
2024 39,550,000 3,050,750 42,600,750 0 0 0 42,600,750
2025 27,880,000 1,365,000 29,245,000 0 0 0 29,245,000
2026 9,850,000 421,750 10,271,750 0 0 0 10,271,750
2027 3.510,000 87,750 3.597.750 0 0 0 3,597,750

Total $1.411.898.000 $518.779.888  $1.930.677.888 $156.650.000 $33.007.208 $189.657.208 $2.120,335.096

o Totals may not add due to rounding.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Table 49
DEBT SERVICE TO MATURITY ON BONDED AND CERTIFICATED LEASE OBLIGATIONS
AND JUDGMENT OBLIGATION BONDS

As of June 1, 2007
Equipment Real Property Judgment Obligation Bonds
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Grand Total
2008 51,805,000 $ 8,126,048 $ 59,931,048 $ 38,620,000 3 72,622.8%9 $ 111,242,894 $ 6,145,000 $ 676,699 $ 6,821,699 $ 177,995,640
2009 43,220,000 5,844,062 49,064,062 37,070,000 54,707,497 91,777,497 3,900,000 399,080 4,299,080 145,140,639
2010 44,470,000 3,828,348 48,298,348 41,165,000 53,073,279 94,238,279 3,900,000 216,480 4,116,480 146,653,107
2011 21,735,000 2,158,401 23,893,401 51,195,000 51,135,337 102,330,337 1,395,000 30,690 1,425,690 127,649,428
2012 11,935,000 1,303,518 13,238,518 53,830,000 48,400,796 102,230,796 0 0 0 115,469,314
2013 8,030,000 774,103 8,804,103 55,795,000 45,940,860 101,735,860 0 0 0 110,539,963
2014 5,735,000 413,796 6,148,796 57,875,000 43,716,246 101,591,246 0 0 0 107,740,043
2015 2,380,000 139,303 2,519,303 59,230,000 41,346,531 100,576,531 0 0 0 103,095,833
2016 1,390,000 38,920 1,428,920 61,620,000 38,840,118 100,460,118 0 0 0 101,889,038
2017 0 0 0 64,225,000 36,262,763 100,487,763 0 0 0 100,487,763
2018 0 0 0 66,715,000 33,653,817 100,368,817 0 0 0 100,368,817
2019 0 0 0 69,380,000 30,849,515 100,229,515 0 0 0 100,229,515
2020 0 0 0 72,255,000 27,919,221 100,174,221 0 0 0 100,174,221
2021 0 0 0 68,535,000 24,857,339 93,392,339 0 0 0 93,392,339
2022 0 0 0 71,300,000 22,016,167 93,316,167 0 0 0 93,316,167
2023 0 0 0 30,565,000 19,761,306 50,326,306 0 0 0 50,326,306
2024 0 0 0 31,620,000 18,130,374 49,750,374 0 0 0 49,750,374
2025 0 0 0 32,065,000 16,406,686 48,471,686 0 0 0 48,471,686
2026 0 0 0 29,910,000 14,786,470 44,696,470 0 0 0 44,696,470
2027 0 0 0 31,480,000 13,216,860 44,696,860 0 0 0 44,696,860
2028 0 0 0 25,685,000 11,566,418 37,251,418 0 0 0 37,251,418
2029 0 0 0 26,355,000 10,230,528 36,585,528 0 0 0 36,585,528
2030 0 0 0 24,070,000 8,905,023 32,975,023 0 0 0 32,975,023
2031 0 0 0 25,235,000 7,748,075 32,983,075 0 0 0 32,983,075
2032 0 0 0 26,440,000 6,535,085 32,975,085 0 0 0 32,975,085
2033 0 0 0 25,655,000 5,401,500 31,056,500 0 0 0 31,056,500
2034 0 0 0 24,515,000 4,319,638 28,834,638 0 0 0 28,834,638
2035 0 0 0 25,530,000 3,303,750 28,833,750 0 0 0 28,833,750
2036 0 0 0 26,585,000 2,246,350 28,831,350 0 0 0 28,831,350
2037 0 0 0 27,685,000 1,145,738 28,830,738 0 0 0 28,830,738
Total $190,700,000 $22,626,498 $213,326,498 $1,282,205,000 $769,046,178 $2,051,251,178 $15,340,000 $1,322.949 $16,662,949 $2,281,240,625

@ Totals may not add due to rounding.

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Debt Management Policies

The City adopted a formal debt policy in August 1998, and has also adopted policies for
Mello-Roos financing, variable rate debt and swaps. The formal debt policy and the variable rate
debt and swap policies were consolidated into the City’s Financial Policies in April, 2005 (see
“FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Reserve Fund and Financial Management Policies,”
herein). The City’s Debt Management Policy establishes guidelines for the structure and
management of the City’s debt obligations. These guidelines include target and ceiling levels for
certain debt ratios to be used for planning purposes. The two most significant ratios are shown
below:

Table 50
DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY RATIOS

As of
Ratio Ceiling July 1, 2006
Total Direct Debt Service as Percent of General Fund Revenues 15.0% 9.59%
Non-Voted Direct Debt Service as Percent of General Fund Revenues 6.0% 1.92%

Y The 6% ceiling may be exceeded only if there is a guaranteed new revenue stream for the debt payments and the additional debt will
not cause the ratio to exceed 7.5%, or there is not a guaranteed revenue stream but the 6% ceiling shall only be exceeded for one year.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Table 51 provides a comparison of City debt ratios for its net direct debt outstanding as of
June 30 for the past five fiscal years.

Table 51
FINANCIAL RATIOS
Net Debt as Percent
Fiscal Year Direct Net Debt Net Debt Per Capita Of Assessed Valuation
2001-02 $2,279,430,000 $599 0.98%
2002-03 2,524,542,012 654 0.98
2003-04 2,626,040,942 671 0.93
2004-05 2,966,692,539 750 1.04
2005-06 2,756,510,000 693 0.84

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Table 52 shows debt service paid out of the General Fund as a percent of General Fund
revenues.

Table 52
GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENTAGE OF GENERAL FUNDY

Debt Service Payment™ General Fund Revenues Debt Service as Percentage of
Fiscal Year (3000 (3000 General Fund Revenues
2001-02 $176,755 $3,208,719 5.51%
2002-03 178,311 3,209,024 5.56
2003-04 138,956 3,348,092 4.15
2004-05 175,187 3,548,235 4.94
2005-06 161,116 3,864,425 4.17

O Cash basis.
@ Debt service payments on lease obligations and judgment obligation bonds.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Table 53 provides a schedule of debt retirement for direct net debt.

RETIREMENT OF DIRECT NET DEBT

Table 53

As of June 1,2007"

Maturing

Within

>0 to 5 years
=5 to 10 years
=10 to 15 years
=15 to 20 years
=20 to 25 years
=25 to 30 years
=30 to 35 years
Total

o Totals may not add due to independent rounding.

General Obligation Bonds Special Tax Bonds Equipment Leages Real Property Leages Judgment Obligation Bonds Total
Cumul ative Cumulative Cumulative Cumul ative Cumulative Cumulative
Maturing % of Debt Maturing % of Debt Maturing % of Debt Maturing % of Debt Maturing % of Debt Maturing % of Debt
Principal Retired Principal Retired Principal Retired Principal Retired Principal Retired Principal Retired
$512,153,000 36.3% $95,100,000 60.7% $173,165,000 90.8% $221,880,000 17.3% $15,340,000 100.0% $1,017,638,000 333%
425,840,000 66.4% 50,140,000 92.7% 17,535,000 100.0% 298,745,000 40.6% 0 100.0% 792,260,000 59.2%
340,455,000 90.5% 11,410,000 100.0%% 0  100.0% 348,185,000 67.8% 0 100.0% 700,050,000 82.1%
133,450,000 100.0% 0 100.0%% 0  100.0% 155,640,000 79.9% 0 100.0% 289,090,000 91.6%
0 100.0% 0 100.0% 0 100.0% 127,785,000 §9.9% 0 100.0% 127,785,000 95.7%
0 100.0% 0 100.0% 0 100.0% 129,970,000 100.0% 0 100.0% 129970000 100.0%
0 100.0% 0 100.0% 0 100.0% 0 1000% 0 100.0% 0 100.0%
$1.411,898,000 $156.650,000 $190,700,000 $1.282205,000 $15.340,000 $3.056,793.000

Source:  City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.
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Variable Rate Obligations and Swap Agreements

The City 1ssued approximately $235.5 million in variable rate obligations in connection
with the refunding of certain lease obligations relating to the Los Angeles Convention Center.
The City entered into swap agreements for a notional amount equal to all of these variable rate
lease revenue bonds. Such agreements were intended to mitigate the City’s variable interest rate
risk. The swap agreements provide that the respective swap counterparty 1s obligated to pay the
City a variable interest rate equal to a variable index identified in the swap agreements and the
City is obligated to pay to the respective swap counterparty a fixed interest rate. In certain
circumstances, the City could be required to make an unanticipated termination payment and
such termination payment could be substantial.

On April 6, 2006, the City issued $316,785.,000 of Wastewater System Subordinate
Revenue Bonds to accomplish a variable rate refunding. As part of this transaction, the City
entered into swap agreements for a notional amount equal to the principal amount of 2006A-D
variable rate revenue bonds. Swap payments and any termination in payments would be made
from the City’s wastewater enterprise fund.

The City has a formal swap policy approved by the Mayor and Council in April, 2003.
These policies were consolidated into the City’s Financial Policies in April, 2005 (see
“FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Reserve Fund and Financial Management Policies,”
herein). In conformance with this policy, the City reports quarterly on its swap position to the
Mayor and Council.

Operating and Other Financing Leases

In addition to lease payments budgeted in connection with lease revenue bonds and
certificates of participation, the City has entered into other lease arrangements for office
equipment and other minor acquisitions.

Proposed Additional Financings

The City currently anticipates the completion of some or all of the long-term financings
summarized in Table 54 secured in whole or in part by the City’s General Fund or other revenues
and taxes. Refundings, certificates of participation or lease revenue bonds in addition to those
listed below may be approved to finance real and personal property acquisitions and
improvements. The City may seek further general obligation bond voter authorization.
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Table 54
POTENTIAL ADDITIONAL FINANCINGS

DEBT CALENDAR
Anticipated Estimated
Sale Date'”  Project Type of Obligation Financing Amount
Q3 2007 Refunding MICL A Commercial Paper Lease Revenue $ 108 million
(Equipment)
Q3 2007 Acquisition of office building currently Lease Revenue $238.5 million
substantially leased by City
Q4 2007 Solid Waste System Enterprise Revenue $ 80 million
Q1 2008 Storm Water Improvements General Obligation $100 million
Q2 2008 Refund MICLA Commercial Paper Lease Revenue $100 million
Q4 2008 Little Tokyo Public Parking Parking Revenue $ 10 million
Q4 2008 Police Department Transportation Division Lease Revenue $ 70 million

@ Anticipated quarter of calendar vear.

Source: City of Los Angeles, Office of the City Administrative Officer.

Overlapping Bonded Debt

Contained within the City are numerous overlapping local agencies providing public
services. These local agencies have outstanding bonds 1ssued in the form of general obligation,
lease revenue, and special assessment bonds. A statement of the overlapping debt of the City,
dated June 1, 2007, prepared by California Municipal Statistics Inc., is shown in Table 55. The
City makes no representations as to its completeness or accuracy. Self-supporting revenue bonds,
tax allocation bonds, and non-bonded capital lease obligations are excluded from the debt
statement. The City anticipates issuing additional bonded debt. (See “BONDED AND OTHER
INDEBTEDNESS — Introduction” and “Proposed Additional Financings” herein). The City
also anticipates that new special assessment and special tax districts may be created within the
City, and that debt supported by these special assessments and special taxes may be issued.
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Table 55
STATEMENT OF OVERLAPPING DEBT

As of June 1, 2007

2006-07 Assessed Valuation:
Redevelopment Incremental Valuation:
Adjusted Assessed Valuation:

$349,620,575,879
24,863.997,265
$324,756,578,614

OVERL APPING DEBT REPAID WITH PROPERTY TAXES

Los Angeles County Flood Control District

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

Los Angeles Community College District

Beverly Hills Unified School District

Inglewood Unified School District

Las Virgenes Unified School District

Los Angeles Unified School District

Los Angeles Unified School District State School Loan Repayable
Other School Districts

City of Los Angeles Community Facilities District Nos. 3 and 4
Mountains Recreation and Conservation Authority Assessment Districts
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transit District Benefit Assessment Districts
Los Angeles County Regional Park and Open Space Assessment District

OTHER OVERLAPPING DEBT:

Los Angeles County General Fund Obligations

Los Angeles County Pension Obligations

Los Angeles County Superintendent of Schools Certificates of Participation
Los Angeles County Sanitation District Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5, 8 & 16 Authorities
Pasadena Area Community College District Certificates of Participation
Inglewood Unified School District Certificates of Participation

Las Virgenes Unified School District Certificates of Participation

Los Angeles Unified School District Certificates of Participation

TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT

Q3]

$

Debt
Outstanding
6/1/2007

113,560,000
359,115,000
1,005,200,000
138,394,198
123,490,000
123,246,479
6,504,880,000
880,298
328,868,675
143,445,000
25,745,000
63,640,000
304,235,000

$1,084,851,959
737,082,395
19,817,270
165,740,661
3,915,000
1,890,000
19,290,000
395,744,823

Percentage of overlapping agency’s assessed valuation located within boundaries of the City.

Estimated
Percent
Applicable®™
40.853%
20.020
71.648
0.194
1.329
1.064
87.528
87.528
Various

100
99.976-100
100
40.034

40.034%
40.034
40.034
0.002-14.040
0.001
1333
1.064
87.528

Estimated Shares
Of Overlapping
Debt 6/1/2007
$ 43,392,667

71,830,182
720,205,696
258,485
1,642,511
1,311,343
5,693,591,366
770,507
234,403
143,445,000
25,741,731
63,640,000
121,797,440

$ 434,309,633
295,083,566
7,933,646
9,604,080

39

25,194

205,246
346,387,529

$7,981,410,264

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

A-64



LITIGATION

The following 1s a list prepared by the Office of the City Attormney of completed, pending

or threatened litigation involving the City, excluding personal injury cases and single plaintiff
cases, in which the City has a financial exposure of $5 million or more which, either individually
or in the aggregate, could materially affect the City’s General Fund financial position.

With regard to the other pending litigation, it is the opinion of the City Attorney that the

final determination of such litigation, either individually or in the aggregate, would not
materially affect the City’s General Fund financial position.

L.

Air Transport Association v. City of Los Angeles and Aircraft Owners and Pilots Assn. v.
City of Los Angeles are administrative proceedings before the U.S. Secretary of
Transportation challenging the legality of the transfer of approximately $58 million from
the Airport Revenue Fund to the General Fund. The challenged transfer represents
condemnation proceeds received for certain City owned property taken by the State of
California for use in the construction of the Century Freeway.

Rampart Division Litigation: Investigations have been made regarding alleged illegal
activities of some police officers in the Los Angeles Police Department’s Rampart
Division. All but 1 of the 214 lawsuits served on the City have been resolved and
approximately $75 million has been paid. It is not anticipated that other lawsuits will
arise from the investigations. Any future Rampart litigation payments will be funded
from appropriations from the City’s Liability Claims fund as necessary.

. Fair Labor Standards Act Litigation: 'The City has been sued over the alleged failure by

the City to pay its firefighters-paramedics overtime compensation under the FLSA.
Among the cases are Achan v. City of Los Angeles, which involves 247 firefighters and
Haro v. City of Los Angeles, which involves 87 firefighters. Similar cases concerning
police officers have been filed. An unfavorable ultimate result in the cases could give
rise to a liability of as much as $36 million, which would be paid from the General Fund.

Gousse v. City of Los Angeles secks damages for physical injuries allegedly sustained
from police officers arresting the plaintift for driving a stolen car; a car rental company
had given the plaintiff a car with stolen license plates. The jury verdict awarded the
plaintiff, a surgeon, a judgment of $34.3 million of which Budget Rent-A-Car is to pay
$18.8 mullion and the City to pay the other $15.5 million. The trial judge rejected the
jury’s damages award as disproportionate to the mjury and ordered a new trial on
damages. The Court of Appeal affirmed and returned the case to the trial court for a new
trial on damages.

Estate of Wallace v. City of Los Angeles 1s a wrongful death lawsuit in U.S. District
Court which alleges that a former police officer conspired to kill rap star Biggie Smalls
and that the City 1s responsible for the police officer’s actions. The trial ended when the
judge declared a mistrial. No date for a new trial has been set. Recently the plamtiffs filed
a similar action in state court. An unfavorable ultimate result could give rise to a liability
of substantially less than the $100,000,000 demanded in the lawsuit.

Telephone Tax Litigation: AT&T Wireless et al. v. City of Los Angeles 1s an action in Los
Angeles Superior Court for declaratory relief alleging that there has been a change in the
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taxing methodology for wireless phone calls resulting in a tax increase, which should
have been subject to prior voter approval under Proposition 218. The Court of Appeal
affirmed the trial court’s ruling against the City. Ardon v. City of Los Angeles 1s a class
action challenging the validity of the City’s Telephone Users Tax, due to the federal
government’s interpretation of the federal excise tax. Unlike the AT&T Wireless case,
which involves only wireless calls, this case challenges almost the entire tax. TracFone
Wireless v. City of Los Angeles 1s an individual refund case, but raises the same 1ssues as
in the Ardon case. An unfavorable ultimate result in these cases would restrict the City’s
ability to collect its Telephone Users Tax. The precise amount of revenue at risk 1s
unknown at this time, but could be significant. Sece “MAJOR GENERAL FUND
REVENUE SOURCES — Utility Users’ Tax,” herein.
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APPENDIX B

EXCERPTS FROM THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR
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The City's economy continued to be on¢ of the most diverse in the nation and is the driving foree for
Los Angeles County (the County) The City's largest employers are in the services, wholesaie and
refail Irade, manulacturing, government financial services. transportation, ufilifies, and construction
industries. 1he County continued to be & top ranked county in the manufactaring sector of the-tinited
States. A variely of flems are manulzetured i the Counly, such as, aircrafl, arcraft equz;:sm&m
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These itiatives are aligned with the City's vision of making Los Angeles the safest big city in the
United States

CASH AND INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT

in Qutober 2001, the City Council and.Mayor adopled a rovised Statement of Investment
the Oity's pooled investiments, The revisions were besed on standsdy recommended b
professionalorganizatong and mﬁrm“i theimplementation of currant industry best practices,
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investment Policy.

Under this niew investment Policy, Standard & Poor's (S&F)Y ratad the City's portfolio as “A8ANS 1
Che AN rating refledts the strong pratection provaded against iosses o lhe investment nool as 2
resuit of credit defaults. This rating is giso indicative of the high quality of the individual investiments
keld in the general pool. S&F also evaluated the volatility of the pool and assigned & rating of "817
o sonsitivityl,  S&P specifically noted that the podl has g low market risk orofile and is based o
“sonservabve anvestment polcies” I 5 importantic note thet Los Angsles is the sesond cily-
managed poclto regelve tha highest safety ratings rom 88,

Sublectio e Bmilslions under Califormis Government Code Soction 53801 the Treasuwer alsy
enterinty Hepurchaso Agroements: and Feverse Repurchase Agreements, The masimu
of'a reverse repurchage agreement shall bie 92 days, the progesd of wiilbh mey ot bis
besyord the sxpiration of he agreame BE rEvEIsk fopuirehiade ahiddrnb il fost alda bl Fnd
i amiwig“ arid rivget all other redquirerients delinadled i the State Code The City's. Adriigiating
Gode Division 20, Ghagler d, Afticle 2, Section 2080 further requires oot Oy - Coundib ap
PG mg&u Hohsse &gm@mwﬁw Thi chiorwas urther reised by Gity Coungl o exer
ienaral Mooy Secunties Lending Program hom these provisions,

TheCitv's General Pool investment portffoliois as follows Sdiliar amounts i traciugands

Year Endedidune 30, 20058 Year Ended June 58 20058
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cordract totaled $2 182 million and 51, 450 T rifficy A June 30 PODB sl 2008, respettively,
g e ot ieeted I e ntal pertiolin amwrz Al

BRI



RESERVE FUND POLICY

InAugust 1998, the Mavor and Councladopled a policy that established g fargeted Reserva Fund
balance of 2% of Gengral Fund revenues and set aside & porion of the Reserve Find for usein
amergency siluations. The 2% hgue wouid be reevaluated annually during budget prepaidtion to

Adtount, g T Dy ths May
HedEski™ sl Be blade. ds
aile avalisbia. A fading of o

with:the confiphialion by the Cuonel of "urgenit @
#5 g deleanination hal po othed viable solice
i sdenomic notdesilywduld be based oh 3

[t s not 10 belused to fund ngw programs or positions added oulside of ihe curiérg year
budgst.

During the fiscal year 2006-07 budgal preparation, the Mayor and Councll increased the Emergency
Reszerve from 2% to 2.5% of Genaral Fund revenuss. The $3108.5 million designated amount for
Emergency Reserve is 2.5% of the General Fund's budgeted receipts of %4.3 billion At Jiswe 30,
2006, the Reserve Fund's cash balance, before s allocated porlion of secuntiey lending coliseral,
was BA32ud nillion.

For phitposies of the bullaet, the Redeni Fund I separlé and distinet from the Genaral Fue
for financial reporting purposes; the Gerneral Fund includes. the Reserve Fund

RISK MANAGERENT

The Gl s sel-administerad and selbs dHiorworkers  compensalion, mostpropeity da
the majonty- of fort-habilty exposiuies, Lommercial- insurance s used where it 15 legally
penttpctualy reduired orijudged o betbe most costeffective way o franes tsk. e
insurance protection s slso reguired Blom 2l Oy conbaclors, vendors angd lessess. o
fiders. Uleimeand judgmenis areteonrded when 1S probabie that snasset has been imp
afigbibty has boon incorred and the amourt of [o3s can be redsonably eslimaled. The 18garded
astimated liability for ciaims and judgments includes a provision for Incurred But Not Répoded
(IBNR} fiabilities for workers' compensation and ltort cases including allocated expenses: Futher
discussion of the City’s estimated claims aad hedgrienis pavable s presenied in Notz 48 of the
MNotes to the Basic Financial Statements,

PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Al Ralltime employees ot thie Gty arsgoversd By aneiof three defined Disnelit plsisibn
Blans) namely Ol Eniploybes Ralbsment Svalem (LACERSY Fire and Polte Pension
[Pensiarsy; dnd Water ind Power Emplovess  Retirement. Disability, and Daath. Baiheht (5
Flan [LWe Ketremant). Bach vour iitlependent solusres engaged by the Plans ol
amont of suniel contribution: that e CHy mustinake o U Plans loensuredhal the
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The [ollowing able shows each plan's acluarial vaiue of pension benctit plan net assets, actuarial
accrued lability (ALY, overfundediungorfunded) A8 and funded ratios . at June 30, 2008 fdoliar
amaunts inomilions):

Acluarial Actuarial
Wealipd S Lincerfunded Fumed
Plans Apsely Ligihility AAL Hatig
LAGERS ! 7675 il S & diga F
Bangiong TEIRE 12 81 i aBw
e Retirament s Tk mid g

me*n%}er contributions. The E}epaﬁm@ﬁt of Wate and Power (QW?’} al 50 ;:xrcv ldes hea%thcare
bensfits. lo active and retired employess and ‘their dependents and recognizes the cost of
postretirement benefits as expense over amployees’ service periods.

The following table shows postemployment healthcare benefils net astets; actuarial atorued Bability
(AALY, underfunded AAL and funded ratios at June 30, 2006 (dollar amounts in millions):

Aoiuanal Aatuarial
Walisod fcnruad Underiunded Eunded
e Assels Grabiny BAL et
LACERS 5 e O S . b BE%
Paniomg Bt 1.6851 1087 SR
DA Py 1506 A (i
Whiler nerain assels that will fund: labilities. of the DINP postermployment healthoars: beredts plan

have bissn placed inte By drevocalie
fiade frovn e rust, e s Buch, aﬁmé

frust, cursnt postemplayment healhose benelils it
Geounting standards, they are 0ol tonsidered contrbutions

30, 20086, ﬂW?"‘s sagdricled nvesbrzem&fm pu&x{wnpkaymaﬂt 3"183 thoara beaeﬁts amwme@ o 5504
million.

Addiional information on the Ully's pension and other postemplovment benefils can bedoimd in
Kote SA of the Notes o the Basic Financial Sistements and In the Reguired Supplementary
fnfonmstion Section.
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A Cerificate of Achlevement is valld for a perdod of one year only. | believe our cofrait report

continues to conform 1o the Certificate of Achievement program reguirements, and | am submitting it
to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another cedificate.

The preparatiory of this report would not have been possible without the efficlent and dedicated
senvices of tve antive staft.of the Financial Reporting Division of the Controller's Office. Fwould fike to

mipress my: appreciation. o &l members of the Office: who assisted’ and' contributad 1o the
praparation-of this report: Credit alsg must'be givers to.other professional contributors Citywde.

Respecully submitted,

EALIRAN CHIGK
CIEY CONTROLLER
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i o opinion, based on cur audit and the reports of the other auditors. the financial statements
ieferrad fo above present fairly. fn.all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmenial activitics, the busingss-type activities. the discretely presented componest il
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Los Angeles (the City)
presents a narrative overview and discussion of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006. We encourage readers to censider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have presented in the letter of transmittal of this report. We hope
that the information and the discussions will provide readers with a clear picture of the City’s overall
financial condition.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City exceeded liabilities at the close of the 2005-06 fiscal year by $16.7 billion.
The net assets of $16.7 billion consisted of: $11.7 billion investment in capital assets, net of
related debt; $3.9 billion (restricted net assets) represents resources that are subject to certain
restrictions on how they may be used; $2.1 billion (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet
the City's obligations for its business-type activities; and $1 billion deficit of governmental
activities.

» The City's financial activities during the fiscal year resulted in a net change in total net assets of
$980.3 million. Governmental activities posted an increase of $582.2 million while the business-
type activities increased by $398.1 million.

¢ As of June 30, 2006, the aggregate ending fund balance of the City’'s governmental funds was
$3.7 billion, an increase of $42.9 million from June 30, 2005. Of the combined fund balances of
$3.7 billion, 52.4% or $1.9 bilion is available to meet the City's current and future needs
(unreserved fund balances).

s At the end of the fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance of the General Fund {which includes
the Reserve Fund and other accounts that have General Fund type activity) was $571.2 million,
or 15.9% of total expenditures.

e The City's bonded debt and long-term notes payable at June 30, 2006 totaled $13.5 billion, a net
increase of $1.2 billion from the pricr year’s balance of $12.3 billion.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), basic financial
statements, including the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements, required
supplementary information, and combining statements and schedules for the nonmajor
governmental and the fiduciary funds. The basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City's finances and are made up of the following two statements: the Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities. Both of these statements were prepared using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector businesses, which is the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as nef assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are repecrted as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal
pericds, such as revenues pertaining to uncollected taxes and expenses pertaining to earned but
unused compensated absences, and incurred but unpaid workers’ compensation claims.

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general
government, protection of persons and property, public works, health and sanitation {other than
sewer services), transportation, cultural and recreaticnal services, and community development.
The business-type activities of the City include airports, harbor, power, water, sewer and convention
center services.

The government-wide financial statements reflect not only the activities of the City itself (known as
the primary government), but also those of the legally separate Community Redevelopment Agency
{CRA) presented discretely. The Los Angeles Convention and Exhibition Center Authority, the Los
Angeles Harbor Improvement Corporation, and the Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los
Angeles, although legally separate, have been included as an integral part of the primary
govermnmment because their sole purpose is to provide services entirely to or exclusively for the City,
or the City Council is their governing body.

Fund Financial Statements are designed to report information about groupings of related accounts
that are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
chjectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demenstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in determining what financial resources are available
in the near future to finance the City’s programs.

The governmental funds financial statements are made up of the following: the balance sheet and
the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. Both of these statements
were prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

The budgetary basis statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances is prepared
on a modified cash basis of accounting that is different from generally accepted accounting
principles. (Please see Note 3B of the Notes tc the Basic Financial Statements beginning on page
76 for additional information on the basis difference.)

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance
sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

_4.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type (general,
special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds). Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Proposition A Local Transit
Assistance Fund, Proposition C Anti-Gridleck Transit Improvement Fund, Recreation and Parks
Fund, Special Gas Tax Street Improvement Fund, Community Development Fund, and the Municipal
Improvement Corporation Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds, which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements and schedules elsewhere in this report.

Non-GAAP budgetary basis statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
have been provided for the General Fund and four other budgeted major funds to demonstrate
compliance with the annually appropriated budget. The other budgeted major funds are: Proposition
A Local Transit Assistance, Proposition C Anti-Gridlock Transit Improvement, Special Gas Tax
Street Improvement, and Community Development.

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers —
either outside customers, or other departments/funds of the City. The proprietary funds financial
statements provide the same type of information as shown in the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The City maintains the following type of proprietary funds:

s FEnterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the
airports, harbor, power, water, sewer, and ccnvention center operations. All of the City's
enterprise funds, except the convention center, are considered major funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City. The
City’s pension trust and agency funds are reported under the fiduciary funds. Since the resources of
these funds are not available to support the City's own programs, they are not reflected in the
govemment-wide financial statements. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional informaticn that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information, other than MD&A, is presented concerning the City's
progress in funding its obligaticn to provide pension benefits to City employees and other
postemployment benefits of DWP employees. Also included in this section is the condition
assessment for City bridges.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier provide
infermation for nonmajor governmental funds and fiduciary funds and are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Analysis of Net Assets: As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $16.7 billion at
the close of fiscal year 2005-06.




Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The foliowing table is a condensed summary of the City’s government-wide net assets:

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Condensed Statement of Net Assets
{amain
— ——
Activitins Aetivities
FY 2006 006 FY 2006 FY 2005 2008

Currant and other assets § 5135635 5. OTARLOAT 3 BA0TO52  § 12327578
Capital assets 5.275,304 18052 244 17,207,190 23,327 545

Total asssts 10,410,929 §,751.835 25,244,185 23,615,072 35,655,124
Current and other liabilties 1,215,725 1,160,347 1,870,904 1,922,209 3,086,629 3,002,636
Lang-term Habililss 5,511,637 5,661,355 10,350,220 9,067,800 15,861.016 14,720,155

Total liablities 8,727,412 6821702 12,221,153 10,990,069 16,048 645 17,811,701
Met assels
Ivested incapttalassets,

Bt of selated debt 2948 666 8.777.029 B.405555 11725805 996’? 733
Resiricied 1.755.390 2.142.661 2 083400 3,808 851 2.843 583
UAzestricted {01900 A8 62 938059 1,084,335 74420

Total.net assels 5 3683527 $ 1930133 8.:15.023.002 512624963 16706879 °§ 44565115

Maote, Rounding off difersnoe may aogir ik the discussion:

By far, the largest portion of the City's net assets ($11.7 billion or 70.2%) reflects its invest
capital ‘assets {e.g., land, infrastructure,. buildings, fagilities and equipment) less any

services to its citizens; consequently, these assefs are not available for future spending. Although
the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources: to repay this debi must be provided from other sources since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate the debt.

An additional portion of the Cily's net assets (33.9 billion or 23.3%) represents resources
subject to various restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $1

{8.5%) is the net amount of the governmental activities deficit of $1 bilion and $2,1e'f

activities.

At the iend of fiscal year 2005-06, the €
assets for the City as a whole. While th
billion i phrestricted net Gesets the
deficit balance shown for the governm
$173.2 million (14.5%) from the prior y
Wwas a consequence of the favarable re

usiness-lype activities reported a positive balan
ermmental activities reported: a deficit. of $1 bil
L activities unrestricted néet assets reflected a de
3 deficit balance. The improvement in the deficit &
t of operations for the fiscal year.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The deficit should not be considered, of itself, evidence of economic or financial difficulties. The
deficit reflects the extent to which the City has deferred te future periods the financing of certain
liabilities (i.e. claims and judgments, workers' compensation, compensated absences). While
accounting is primarily concerned with when a liability is incurred, financing focuses on when a
liability will be paid. The City, like many other governments, raises and budgets resources needed to
liguidate a liability during the year in which the liability is to be liquidated rather than during the year
in which the liability is incurred.

Key changes in the statement of net assets are as follows:

Capital assets increased by $2.4 billion or 11.3%. The net increase for governmental activities was
$1.5 billion while for the business-type activities the net increase was $845.1 million. Construction
work in progress at the airports and harbor as well as ongoing improvements to sewer facilities and
power and water utility plants caused the increase for business-type activities. During the year, the
City fully implemented the retroactive provision of GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure assets.
The recognition of the $1.2 billion net historical costs of these assets was the primary reason for the
increase in the governmental activities’ capital assets.

Current and other assets had a net increase of $912.3 million or 8%. Governmental activities
increased by $128.3 million, while business-type activities increased by $784 million. The increase
for governmental activities was mainly due to revenues provided by growth in tax revenues, transfers
from business-type activities, and cash collateral from securities lent. For business type activities the
increases in restricted assets of $644.1 million and receivables of $155.5 million were offset by a net
decrease of $15.6 million in other current assets. The restrictions are for debt reduction, nuclear
decommissioning, natural gas trust, postretirement healthcare, passenger facility charges and
investments with SCPPA, a California joint powers agency. The increase in receivables resulted
from the overall growth in the business-type activities operating revenues.

Long-term liabilities for bonded debts and notes payable increased to $13.5 billicn from $12.3 billion
in the prior year. The total issuances for the year were $350.3 million for governmental activities and
$2.4 billion for business-type activities, while principal retirements totaled $314 million for
governmental activites and $1.1 billion for business-type activities. The City's other long-term
liabilities decreased by $139.3 million, while current and other liabilities increased by $4 million. The
decrease in other long-term liabilities of $139.3 million was due mainly to the decline in tort and non-
tort cases for the governmental activities. The City’s tort liabilities are actuarially estimated using a
5% discount rate.

The increase of $55 million in restricted net assets was composed of $195.7 million increase for
govemmental activities and $140.7 million decrease for business type activities. Of the $195.7
million increase for governmental activities, $172.3 million or 88% accounts for public safety,
transportation, and culture and recreation programs. For the business-type activities, key changes
were on restrictions for capital projects (decrease of $286 million due tc additions and improvements
to utility assets) and passenger facility charges (increase of $101.1 million for current and future
airports related projects). As explained in more detail in the subsequent pages, the City's
unrestricted net assets were up $340.5 million {$173.2 million for governmental activities, and
$167.3 million for business-type activities).

Analysis of Activities: The following table presents condensed information showing how the City's
net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. As previously stated, all changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Condensed Statement of Activities
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
FY 2008 FY 2005 FY 2008 FY 2005 FY 2008 FY 2005
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services .. e $1,181,182 $ 1,151,242 $ 4,858,884 $ 4,531,819 $ 6,149,866 $ 5,683,061
QOperating Grants and Contnbmlons £44,53% 710,146 17,281 11,971 661,820 722,117
Capiial Grants and Contributicns ......... .. 65,850 51,402 130,885 53,276 196,735 134,678
General Revenues
Praperty Taxes ... 1,377,063 1,236 559 — - 1,377,063 1,236 558
Utility Users Taxes .... 606,617 578,542 - - B06 617 578,542
Business Taxes ... reee 436,621 396,316 - o 436,621 398.318
Gther Taxes .. . U 521,451 447 397 - - 521.451 447,397
Unrestricied Grants and CDHtl’lbuflOﬁS ...... 387,586 410,957 - - 367,585 410,957
Unrestricted Invesiment Earmings 21,555 78 878 - - 21,555 29,828
Giher REVENUES ... e e 38,795 30,687 -- -- 38,795 30.687
Total REVENUES ... ..o e e e eee rees 5,261,258 58373976 5,116,850 4,587 066 10,378,108 9,670,142
Expenses
General Government .. 21,672 1,220,826 - o 921.872 1,220,826
Protection of Persons and F’ropert 2,17 147 2,158,014 e - 2,117,147 2,156,814
Public Works .........cooeei v 374,293 337827 - - 374,293 337.827
Heazlth and Sanitation ... ..................... ... 357,574 298777 - - 357,574 288,777
Transporiation .. 286,741 207 952 - - 286,741 202,952
Cuitural and Recreaticnal
Sevives . 336,264 413,344 - - 336,264 413,344
Community Development 297,308 318,119 - - 297,308 318,119
Interast on Long-term Debt 173,930 181,113 o - 173,830 181,113
AIPOTES oot - - B657,3558 599,483 657,358 599,483
Harbor ... - - 340,555 284,557 340,655 284,587
POWET ... ..o - - 2,458,667 2,733,084 2 A58 667 2,235,084
Water .. - - 543,674 625,152 643,574 526,162
Bewer .. i - 497 §499 480,392 497 699 480,392
Cmnveniuon Center - - 34,939 34,371 34,939 34371
Total Expanses .. i et 4,364 929 5420672 4.532,893 4,157 049 9,307,822 8,288,721
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets Before
Transfers and Otherltems . 398,330 {58,596} 883,857 440,017 980,287 83,421
Transfers . . 185,888 180,198 {185,888) (190,193) - -
Ingrease in Net Assels ... ... 582,218 133,502 398,069 249,819 980,287 383,421
Net Asssts Beginning o‘l"Year FUUUDTRUE 1,830,133 1608632 12,624,983 12,375,164 14,555,116 13,883,796
Historical Cost of infrastruciure Assets e 1,171,178 187,809 - - 1,171,176 187,888
Net Asseats Endof Year ... 8 3683 827 $ 1,830,133 $ 13,023,052 $ 12,624,983 $ 16,706,579 $ 14,555118

Governmental Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2006, the total expenses for governmental activities of $4.9 billion were
$264.7 million (5.2%) less than the prior year. Total revenues of $5.3 billion grew by $188.2 million
or 3.7% from $5.1 billion in fiscal year 2005. Program revenues funded 38.8% of the total expenses
of $4.9 billion; taxes, other general revenues, and transfers from business-type activities financed
the balance of 61.1%. Program revenues are resources obtained from parties outside of the City.
They include: (a) amounts received from those who purchase, use or directly benefit from a
program; {b} grants and contributions that are restricted to specific programs; and (c} investment
earnings that are legally restricted for a specific program.
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The following charts show a graphical comparison of governmental revenuess by source,

FY 2008 Fy: 2005
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Revenues from property fax, charges for services, and operating grants and contributions are the
three largest revenue sources for gavernmental aciivities for both fiscal years 2006 and 2005
Together they posted a net increase of $104.8 million. Al tax revenue categories posted growth from
the prior fiscal year. The properdy tax revenue increase of §140.5 million reflected the growth in
assessed valuations of real estate properties as well as the effect of actions taken by the Siate to
resoive fts budget proplems: Such: State actions also affected the governmental gotivities
unrestricted grants and contributions for sales tax and motor vehicle in-lieu tax revenues. Other tax
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The following chart shows a graphical omparison-of the City's governmenial expenses by fimdtion.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The overall expenses for governmental activities decreased by 5.2% or $264.7 million. The decrease
in the provision for leng-term claims and judgments was the primary factor for the decrease in
expenses for general government of $299.2 million. The other governmental functions posted the net
offsetting increase of $34.5 million.

Business-type Activities

The City has six business-type activities: airports, harbor, power, water, sewer and convention
center services. The combined operating revenues from their customers and ratepayers of $4.6
billion were 13.7% ($558.6 million} more than the $4.1 billion combined operating costs.

Since the proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements, a more detailed discussion of the activities of the City's business-type activities is found
in the financial analysis of the City's funds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows
and balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing
the City's financial requirements. In particular, the unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure for the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At June 30, 20086, the City’'s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $3.7 billion. Of
the $3.7 billion, the amount available for spending at the City’s discretion {(unreserved fund balance)
totaled $1.9 billion. The remaining fund balances are reserved to indicate that they are not available
for new spending because they have been committed: (1) to pay debt service - $361.2 million; (2) to
reflect loans, inventories, and the amount due from other funds that are long-term in nature and thus
do not represent available spendable resources - $448.5; {3) to liquidate contractual commitments of
the period - $886.5 million; and (4) for a variety of other restricted purposes - $63.8 million.

Overall, revenues for governmental functions totaled $5.4 billion, while expenditures totaled $5.8
billion. Although total revenues were $422.7 millicn less than total expenditures, cther financing
sources bridged the gap. Other financing sources include proceeds from issuance of debt and
transfers from enterprise funds.

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and it includes transactions of the
Reserve Fund and other accounts that have General Fund type activity for GAAP reporting
purposes. At June 30, 20086, the unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $571.2 million
while total fund balance was $785.4 millien. The unreserved fund balance includes $108.5 million
designated for emergencies and $10 million for capital improvements and other budget adjustments.
As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents
15.9% of the total General Fund expenditures of $3.6 billion, while total fund balance represents
21.9% of that same amount.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The following table presents the summary of revenues and expenditures of the Geperal Fund;

City of Los Angeles
Bummary of Revenues, Expenditures and Other
Finzncing Sources and Uses- General Fund
{amounfs expressed in thousands)

Revenues and (ther Financing Sources Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
EY .06 EYpR W Chongs Y08 eas % @‘13%&

Revenues Expenditureg
Property Temes . ........ 51168082 81,044,945 1299%  Genend Governmend ... B 1063786 § gTRA3S 8.92%
Baates TE@S o 329168 0B854 880%  Profection of Persons
Utifily Users Tases ... GOBB1Y 578 542 4.B5% ard Property ... U 1,854 701 1,766,795 4.08%
Business TAXES ....c...... 436521 b e B xity 1047% PublioWorks s 180,745 03582 681%
OHEr Tases e 478,529 415,852 14.50%  Health and Sanftation ... 219447 219228 0.108%:
Licorsos and Pommts ... 21,524 44 283 HEAEY:  TeEnsportalion .o 115,820 114,187 1:45%
intergovammantal .. 35,601 1HLO7E G0.4%%%  Cultural and Recreational
Charges for Services ... 3248849 400,044 -18.84% ServiDes . 88832 44,298 B0.42%
Servces o Enterprse Crnrnuity

Funds . .ooonns 220685 22T M4 105% Developrent . 30,333 Y B2
FHIS oo wren i 117,103 120297 «258%:  Capitdl Cutlay ....ee WBG 24264 4%, 72%
Spesha Astessenls ... . wT6s R il B0 Debt Sevice Cost
Irwesstrent Eamings ... 24 B 28 105 A O IEBUBIGE s e o 187 Sl < B
L8 O B3 0TY 28,741 1T.58%
Total Rovenoes ... 5806288 3688 A0 325%  Tokal Ewpenditees ... 18EB7EY 3345 542 7.48%
Other Financing Other Finaiicing

Sonrces Lhses
Transfers I 208 847 248 T4 ARTHE Tramsfes Qi 58,281 408,288 14 2%
Totat Revenues and Todal Expenditures and

Other Financing Cithior Firasing

BOUFEBS oo vorereaaee 4,016,185 SAEIB A 208% BISEE oo § & 44 045 § 375 R8 T52%
Excens of Rovenues

Cver Expenditures ... § reasry § 43885 H5.00%
Net Change in

Fund Balance ............. % 124,88& 180280 11379

As slated earlier, certain actions by the State affecled the City's General Fund revenues from
property taxes, sales taxes, and intergovernmeantal (for motor vehicle license feeg). In March 2004,
California voters approved the State’'s Economic Recovery Bond (ERBY measure. Repayment of the
bonds 8 from increasing the Slale’s shars of the sales lax by 0.45% and reducing local
government's share by the same rate. The sales tax reduction is offset by increased logal property
tex revenue. The Increase in property tax allocation comes from education’s share of proparty tax
hack-filled by the Slate's Bducation Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF). Par the City. the rasult of
this arrangement, familiarly known as Striple flip,” for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, was 5858.8
milllan property tax replacement Tor the sales tax shifl, In addition, the City contribuled 3484 million
of property tax to the State general fund.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Vehicle license fees (VLF) are traditional local revenue, and in the past, were collected as unsecured
property tax. In the 1930s, the State began collecting the VLF and distributing receipts to local
governments in lieu of property taxes. The total amount distributed to local governments consists of
VLF paid by the public (about 35% of total) and the amount paid by State general fund {about 65%
of total) through an offset. The State effected changes in the VLF distribution to local governments
such that the State general fund compeonent (or the offset) of the VLF is shifted to the State and is
replaced by equivalent property tax. During fiscal year 2006, the General Fund recorded $257.4
million property tax replacement for the VLF offset.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, property tax revenues increased by $126.9 million to $1.17
billion from $1.04 billion in the prior year. Of the $126.9 million increase, $46.7 million is attributed to
the State actions discussed above ($297.9 million in FY 2006 against $251.2 million in FY 2005).
The remaining $80.2 million was due to growth in assessed valuation spurred by the relatively strong
real estate market. The increases in the other tax revenue categories were the result of an overall
vibrant economy.

Beginning fiscal year 2005-06, the City's revenue from fees paid for plan check, permitting, and
inspection of new constructions are accounted for in the new Building and Safety Pemit Special
Revenue Fund. Before the creation of this fund, such revenues were recorded in the General Fund.
The decreases in the General Fund’s revenues from licenses and permits, and charges for services
were principally due to this change.

The General Fund accounts for the plurality of participating funds in the City’'s general investment
pool. As such, the unrealized market decline of the investment pool instruments at June 30, 2006
was the principal reascn for the decrease of $7.4 million in investment earings.

Total General Fund expenditures for fiscal year 2006 were $3.6 billion, an increase of $240.2 million,
or 7.2%, from $3.3 billion in fiscal year 2005. Expenditures for general government, and protection of
persons and property accounted for most of the increase due mainly to increased pension
contributions.

Overall, General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $223.5 million, down $120.4 million from
$343.9 million in fiscal year 2005. Transfers in from other funds amounted to $206.9 million, while
transfers out amounted to $455.3 million. The Power and Water Enterprise Funds transfers
accounted for majority (89.8%) of the total transfers in, which were $47.2 million less than the prior
year's transfers. The reducticn was due to supplemental transfers in fiscal year 2005. Debt service
and lease payments to the City's financing authority accounted for 24.5% of the total transfers out
while the General Fund’s support for the operations of City libraries, zoo, parks and recreational
facilities accounted for 43%.

The above factors, including a $0.7 million increase in reserve for inventory, resulted in a year-end
fund balance of $785.4 million, a decrease of $24.2 millicn from the pricr year's fund balance of
$809.6 million.

The following charts show graphical comparison of General Fund revenues by source and
expenditures by function.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

General Fund Revenues by Source: $3.81 Billion
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Gengral Fund Expenditurss by Function: $3.59 Billion
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Proposition A Local Transit Assistance Fund accounts for the City's 25% share of the
additional cne-half cent sales tax within the County of Los Angeles for public transit programs. At
June 30, 2006, the Fund's unreserved fund balance was $97.9 milliocn, while the total fund balance
was $112 million, which reflected an increase of $16.5 million from the previous fiscal year. The
increase was primarily due to the increase in reimbursements related to metro rail projects.

The Proposition C Anti-Gridlock Transit Improvement Fund accounts for the City’s 20% share of
the additicnal cne-half cent sales tax within the County of Los Angeles to improve transit service and
operations. At June 30, 2006, the Fund’s unreserved fund balance was $58.3 million, while the total
fund balance was $135.2 million, which reflected an increase of $33.6 million from the previous fiscal
year. The increase was substantially due to reimbursements for the cost of monies used to front-
fund certain transportation projects.

The Recreation and Parks Fund accounts for the City’s recreation programs and park services. At
June 30, 2006, the Fund’s unreserved fund balance was $145.6 million, while the total fund balance
was $163.3 million. The Fund's total expenditures exceeded its revenues by $69.5 million. As
discussed earlier, transfers from the General Fund and available fund balance financed the
deficiency of revenues.

The Special Gas Tax Street Improvement Fund accounts for gasoline tax and grant revenues to
be used for the City’'s local streets and road system. At June 30, 2006, the Fund’s unreserved fund
balance was $13.4 million, while the total fund balance was $26.2 million, which reflected a decrease
of $1 million from the previous fiscal year. The increase in expenditures for street improvement were
funded by traffic congestion and resurfacing grants from the State.

The Community Development Fund accounts for federal grant funds for community and economic
development within the City. At June 30, 2006, the Fund's unreserved fund balance reflected a
deficit of $24 million, while the total fund balance was $154 million, which reflected a decrease of
$6.2 million. Federal block grant revenues were down $20.3 million that resulted to decrease in
grants and subsidies to program recipients and subrecipients.

The Municipal Improvement Corporation Funds account for the activities of the City's public
financing entity, Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles (MICLA). Acquisition of certain
properties and equipment, and construction of buildings and other improvements are financed
through the issuance of MICLA certificates of participaticn and revenue bends. The Debt Service
Fund's aggregate principal and interest requirements for the year were $156.5 million, while lease
payments from the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds were $139.6 million.
Investment earnings and available fund balance of the MICLA Debt Service Fund, and transfers of
available funds from the MICLA Special Revenue Fund funded the difference of $16.9 million.

Proprietary Funds
The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information in the business-type activities
column of the government-wide financial statements. More detailed information is presented in the

following pages.

The following table summarizes the operating results of the City’s six enterprise funds:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Business-type Activities
Change in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 306, 2008

[amounts expressed in thousands)

Laher-
Capsantion
Mrponts Harbior Pavar Water Sewer Contar Tolat

Uperating Revenues ... BEGBIS % #1217 § ZAU3BD % SBAEZS B 494300 % 25 3 46345
Dpurating EXpenses v oo LAY (180 R RV 465,197 {41 sEa) KER 08T H1E)
Eipaeating lecoros L055% oo, {30,778} 144,535 4B TEAR G264 (05N SE6637
Mot Noroperating Revenaes

CEXDRASES] voncvarsin v mrrenes ARy G168 EERifb {62,383 {80,869} 16} {1 5hE5)
Copital Conlrutions 62,590 2,14 22 TRE% 22,428 - 130,885
TEamSIors I v onmsni s = - - - - 215 216
Transiers DHR o vnrsrsrerencrens - - {187,454} {27914 " {2498 £186.104)
Change in Net Assais ..o $ 172,892 $ 04 611 k3 48,881 3 57030 8 4413 ] {0,788 3 98069

Business-fype Activities
Change in Net Assels
Forthe Fiscal Year Ended Jung 30, 2005
{amounts expressed in thousands)
Lher-
Convéinlicn
Alrponts Harbor Pawy Water Saen Coar Fotal

Cipnrating ROvONues .. 5 B¥e2E3 § 3B 5 2254533 % BBRZES 5 ARTGEY 5 A § sI0sauEE
Uperating EXpRises womwee.  {515,288) (B3, 908 (2.062,151) {461,233 [262.402) e {3.739.321)
Operating locome foss) ... 1139 145,060 173442 TR Y B5,205 {14021 A5 Bhb
Mot Nannperating Revendes

(EXPENSEE) 1o cver s 10065 {e,050) {208 {42,970 {55,710 5% {18,5249)
Ciapltal Conteitsations ... " 1708 - 25,8546 14,18 11,580 - RES
Teanshers It - - = - v 12 12
Teansters DUl o ovnensns ercnsnenen - - (1B0.187; Zhans - {208) {1a0.2100
Change in Nel Assots oo 3 1588ED § o % 10753 % 38,354 3 (19,035 3 41781 3 24919

Airporis

Airports Entarprise Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and development of City airports
namely: Los Angeles International Airport, Untario International Adrport, Van Nuys Airport, and
Palmdale Regional Alrport,

For the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2006, the Alrports operating reventes grew 844.5 million or 8.1%,
due primarily to increased activity in fwo categories of avistion revenues- building rentels and
landing fees. Building rental rates and landing rates increased during the year. The increased
landing rates resulted from increased airfield maintenance and operating costs,
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Operating and administrative expenses before depreciation increased $48.5 million or 9.7%. Of the
$48.5 millien, $37.4 million was for increased salaries and benefits due to increase in staff hiring,
annual salary increases, retroactive pay for certain employee groups, and increased retirement
contributions. Contractual services expense increased $15.9 million mainly due to increased costs
associated with post-September 11" security measures. Other operating expenses posted a net
decrease of $4.8 million, while depreciation charges increased by $7.8 million due to additional
assets being placed in service.

Net nonoperating revenues posted a $17 millicn decrease or 12.3%. Major nonoperating activities of
the Airports Enterprise Fund are passenger facility charges, interest income and interest expenses.
Passenger facility charges increased slightly by $1.9 million, which resulted from a modest increase
in passenger traffic. Interest income decreased by $8.4 million mostly due to unrealized fair market
value decline in investments. Interest expenses decreased by $5 million due to scheduled payments
of revenue bonds and commercial paper notes.

As a result of the above financial changes, including capital grants of $62.6 million, the Airports
Enterprise Fund’'s change in net assets for fiscal year 2006 amounted to $172.9 million, up $34
million from fiscal year 2005.

Harbor

The Harbor Enterprise Fund accounts for the operations of the Port of Los Angeles, including
operations of a pilotage service, lease of land and facilities, and production of oil in the Harbor
District.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, operating revenues of the Port of Los Angeles {the Port)
rose to $412.1 million, reflecting an 11.7% increase from prior year revenues of $368.8 million. This
increase is principally attributed to container volume growth and a 5% tariff increase effective July 1,
2005. A total of 7.8 million twenty-foot equivalent units {TEUs} in container volume moved through
the Port facilities during fiscal year 2006, a 7.3% increase from the prior year. Revenue tons billed
grew to 181.6 million or 12% increase from the prior year.

Operating expenses before depreciation rose $15.2 millien to $169 million, a 9.9% increase from the
prior fiscal year. Salaries and benefits expense increased by $7.5 million due to higher costs
associated with health, dental and retirement costs. Outside services had net decrease of $6 million
due to the decrease in security-related expenses cffset by increased environmental assessment and
maintenance dredging costs. Other operating expenses {(which include provisions for bad debts and
workers compensation, and subsidy for air quality program), increased by $15.2 million. Depreciation
charges increased by $28.7 million due to additional assets placed in service.

Significant fluctuations in the net nonoperating items were as follows: $4.3 million increase in income
from joint venture investment, $35.1 million increase in provision for litigation, claims and
settlements; and $7.9 million reduction in grant receipts.

As of June 30, 2006, the change in net assets for the Harbor Enterprise Fund decreased slightly by
$0.5 million to $94.6 million from $95.1 million in fiscal year 2005.

Power and Water

The Power and Water Enterprise Funds account for the operations of the Department of Water and
Power in supplying the City and its inhabitants with water and electric power by constructing,
cperating, and maintaining facilities located throughout the City and in Inyo and Mono counties.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Power

During fiscal year 2006, operating revenues increased by $240.8 million {10.7%) from fiscal year
2005. The increase is mostly due to discontinuing the deferral of revenue collected for out-of-market
sales of purchased power cests and beginning to recognize prier deferred amounts. In addition,
wholesale activities for both the forward and real-time energy and capacity markets also increased.

Fiscal year 2006 operating expenses were $204.7 millicn higher as compared to fiscal year 2005.
Fuel for generation expense increased by $63.5 million due to higher cost of natural gas, while
purchased power costs increased by $106.8 million. Purchased power costs increased due to
economic purchases being made. Economic purchases are purchases of energy on the open market
where DWP has determined that the cost of acquiring the energy is less expensive than using
available generation resources to meet customer demand.

Maintenance and depreciation increased by $22.7 million and $24.2 millicn, respectively. The
increase in maintenance was due to additional work being performed on transmission assets. The
increase in depreciation was due to additional assets being placed in service. These increases were
offset by a decrease of $12.5 millicn in other operating costs related to distribution assets.

The major nonoperating activities of the Power Fund for fiscal year 2006 included the transfer of
$157.9 million to the City's General Fund; interest income earned on investments of $122.7 million;
and $167.5 million in debt expenses. The transfer to the General Fund is based on 7% of the
previous year's operating revenues. Investment income increased $10 million due to interest rates
trending higher in fiscal year 2006 compared to 2005. The increase in debt expense of $20.8 million
is due to the issuance of $932 million revenue bonds and higher interest rates on variable rate debt.
The variable rate bonds’ daily and weekly rate range increased from 2.22% to 2.27% as of June 30,
2005 to 3.94% to 3.95% as of June 30, 2006.

As a result of the above financial changes, including capital contributions of $29.9 millicn, the Power
Enterprise Fund's increase in net assets for fiscal year 2006 amounted to $49.9 million, up $39.1
million from fiscal year 2003.

Water

During fiscal year 2006, operating revenues increased by $40.3 millien {7.2%) from fiscal year 2005.
The increase was due to a 2% increase in consumption and a $8 million increase in sale of water for
hydro generation purposes.

The operating expenses for fiscal year 2006 were $3.9 million higher compared to the prior year.
This was mostly due to an increase in operating costs of $6.9 million offset by a $3.4 million
decrease in depreciaticn expense. The increase in operating costs was related to increase in
security costs, maintenance costs and other operating costs. Purchased water costs have
decreased $1.5 million due to increased snow pack in the Sierra Nevada Mountains resulting in a
decreased demand for purchased water.

The major nonoperating activities of the Water Fund for fiscal year 2006 include the transfer of $27.9
million to the City’s General Fund, $74.1 million in debt expenses, and capital contributions of $13.9
million. The transfer to the General Fund is based on 5% of the previous year's operating revenues.
The increase in debt expense of $14.7 million is due to the sale of revenue bonds in February 2006
and higher interest rates on variable rate debt. Capital contributions remained relatively unchanged.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

&5 aresult of the above financial changes, the Water Enterprise Fund's increase in net assets for
fiscal year 2006 amounted to $57 miliion, up $18.7 million from fiscal year 2005.

Sewsr
The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for the construction. operations and maintenance of the City's
wastewatsr collection and treatmant system,

The total operating revenues of the Sewer Fund for fiscal vear 2006 amounted o 34744 million, a
TO9% e RART million increase fromy e prior vear This was due 10 Increase in sower service
increase in'sewer charges was the resull of & 7% rafe increase effective March 2008 and:anather
7% rate increase’in July 20085,

Total operating expenses amountad {0 $381.5 millian, 8 5.3% or $19.1 million increase from the prior
year's $362.4 milion. Expenses for operations and maintenance increased by $20.9 million while
depreciation charges decreased by $1.8 million. The increase in operation and. mainienance
expenses was mainly due to increased General Fund costs reimbursements.

Nonoperating revenues increased by $12.5 million due prmarily [0 in¢reases in invesiment indome
and disaster assistance grants revenug, Invesiment income posted an ingrease of $6.8 million due
to interast rates trending higher i 2006 Nonoperating expenses daoreased by §2.4 mjllion dus

principally to reduced Migaticn setllament socruals,

As a result of the above financlal changes, including capital contributions of 822 4 mitllion, the Sewer
Enterprise Fund's nel assets for fiscal year 2006 increased by $34.4:mitlion compared 1o a'dedease
ot 519 million in fiscal year 2006,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The foliowing chart shows graphical comparison. of the enterprise funds/husiness-type activities
operating expenses.

FY 2008 Opedating Expenses: $4.07 Billion FY-2305: Operating Exgenses: $2.74 Billion
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

For fiscal year 2006-068, the Clly budgeted for two: Ganeral Fund .accounts- the General
Operating  Account ‘and. the Vehicke License Fee Gap Loan: Financing Proceeds Ac
Transactions between these two acgounis (e.q. transfers Inand outy were eliminste
censoidated financial data. For purposes of the budget, General Fund Operating Accou
Vehlele Licenss Fes Gap Logn Fmammg Proceeds Account are lagal entities Ehai dgre sap
distinct from the non-budgeied Resarw
having Genaral Fund type activity f
and undesigneted fund balance of the General Fuﬂd {’J;}watmg &ammi i ir&nﬁf&r
Resarve Fund and reported as ~Reversion fo Reserve Fund ™

The General Fund ended the year spending less than budgeted while actual revenues endad higher
than anlicipated. The following table summarizes the operating results on a budgetary basis of the
City's General Fund consolidated accounts as described above:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

City of Los Angeles
Budgetary Operating Results- General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 20, 2008
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Acwal Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
TBXES conrrirrnnessrnr i anss e e ea s an s $ 2,814,994 $ 2,814,994 2,961,351 $ 146,387
Licenses, Permits, Fees and Fings ...................... 551,925 552,793 592,455 39.662
Intergovernmental ... 37,009 37,009 99,703 62,703
interest ...........o... 31118 31118 38,064 6,954
DHRET e e e e 18,280 18,280 9,334 {©46)
Total ReVENULS oooovviin e e 3,445 368 3446177 3,700,937 254,760
Power and Waier Transfers ... e 189,808 189,808 185,808 3,992
Reserve Fund Transfers ... rnicvcncvenne e 295,265 295,265 285,265 -
Transiers from Other Funds .........coccomnrincennn. 649,791 858,171 744,698 {113,473)
Loans from Other Funds ..o - 181 16,389 15,638
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources .............. 4,579,665 4,790,114 4,943,107 152,933
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Gienoral GOVernIMent ........c.ccveecicccrmmnnencen 1,346,989 1,375,708 1,285,819 40,189
Protection of Persons and Property ... 1,718,638 1,712,948 1,712,792 50,156
Public Works ..o 288,048 346,178 31,134 25,011
Health and Sanitation ... 231,338 228,785 219,847 8,938
TranSPOTATION «oeeeev e ccmrrns e 128,486 148,835 132,103 8,733
Cultural and Recreational SErvices .....o.ovveveeeen. 87,033 71,181 89,031 2,150
Community Development ... 4,247 113,512 98,840 14,672
Pension and Retirement Contributions .. 27,637 25,266 25,205 1
Capital Oullay ..o e 1,656 44,564 14,415 26,089
Total Expenditires ... 3913443 4,114,855 3.878.886 235,950
Transiers (o Other Funds 125,880 748,738 144,614 4,125
Payment of Loans 1o Other Funds .......ccovnena. - - 17,252 {17,253
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses ............. 4,638,303 4,883,584 4,640,782 222842
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Financing USes .......ccovrevnmrrvsrereccsnnnns {59,638) {13,428) 302,355 375715
Fund Balance, JUY T ..o e e 53.638 53.638 - {69,638)
Carrylorward and Fund Balance Appropriations ............ o 13,782 - £13,78%)
Encumbrances lapsed ......cc..occcmnnirereeccn e - 18,309 18,309
Reversionto Reserve Fund ..........coeeeveeieecinn, (274,044) {274,044)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 46,620 $ 46,620

Receipts for fiscal year 2005-06 were $4.9 billion, a favorable variance of $152.9 million above the

final budget estimate. Tax revenues accounted for most of this variance. Tax revenue categories

that performed 10% or higher than final projections were: documentary transfer fax (39.2% or $61.1

million), gas users’ tax (17.3% or $14.6 million), franchise income {15.1% or $7.1 million}, business
tax (12.8% or $49.4 million), and transient occupancy tax (10.9% or $12.5 million). Property tax
revenue receipts were 1.6% ($17.9 million) below estimate due to approximately $40 million May
2006 collections that the County remitied in the subsequent fiscal year. These figures were

indicative of how well the local economy performed during the fiscal year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Vehicle License Fees (VLF) were the largest single positive factor in non-tax revenues for the fiscal
year. To make up for three months of VLF backfill payments that the State did not allocate to local
governments in 2003-04, a law was passed requiring the State to pay the VLF backfill “gap” funds by
August 16, 2006. The City's receivable was approximately $65.5 million. The City participated in the
State’s VLF Gap Loan Financing Program where California Statewide Communities Development
Authority (a joint powers authority) sold bonds to purchase the VLF receivables of participating cities
and counties. The City received its share of $63.9 million of the bond proceeds in fiscal year 2006.

Total expenditures were less than the budgeted amounts due to budget reduction measures
exercised by the Mayor, City Council and departments. Overall, close fiscal monitoring and revenue
growth ended fiscal year 2005-06 with a $274 million reversion to the Reserve Fund.

LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2006 the City’s bonded indebtedness and long-term notes payable totaled $13.5 billion
as follows:

City of Los Angeles
Summary of Bonded Debts and Long-Term Notes Payable
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmenlal Activities Business-iype Activities Total
bY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2005

Debt backed by the City

General Obligation Bonds .........ovmmmnsieriene, 3 1480010 § 1451358 § - % - % 1480010 % 1451359

Judgment Obligation Bonds ...................... 21,485 78,140 - - 21,485 28,140
Special AssesSment DEBL .....oeweeerrennnmneeeernes 32,59, 34,180 - - 32,5495 34,160
Debt Secured by Specified Revenue Sources

Cetificates of Participation and Lease

Revenue Bonds .........coooeiicininnnnns 1,290,056 1,410,456 - 1,290,056 1,410,496

Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable ............. 562,998 426,712 10,019,480 8,780,701 10,582,407 8,207.413
Loans Payable to U.5. Depariment

of Housing and Urban Development .............. 132,953 135,903 - - 132,953 135,903
Tomal oo $ 3520097 0§ 3486770 % 10815488 0§ 8780701 § 13535506  § 12267471

Significant new issuances during the year are the following:;

* $126.8 million general obligation bonds for 8-1-1 policeffire safety equipment and facilities,
and stormwater program.

e $96.2 million MICLA commercial paper notes for the acquisition of certain equipment,
construction and improvemenis fo certain City facilities.

* $308.6 million Harbor Enterprise Fund revenue bonds to refund certain outstanding bonds.

e $932.1 million Power Enterprise Fund revenue bonds to be used for power system capital
improvements.

e 3482.2 million Water Enterprise Fund revenue honds io be used for water system capital
improvements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

e $617.4 million Sewer Enterprise Fund revenue bonds to refund outstanding commercial
paper notes and revenue bonds.

Mecre detailed information en the City’s bonds and other long-term debt can be found in Note 4| of
the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements beginning on page 108.

As of June 30, 2006, there were no changes in the ratings of the outstanding bonds and the City is in
compliance with its bond covenants.

In August 1998, the City adopted a formal Debt Management Policy that established guidelines for
the structure and management of the City's governmental activities debt obligations. These
guidelines include target and ceiling levels for certain debt ratios to be used for financial planning
purposes. The policy places certain restrictions on the types of items that can be financed, limiting
financing only to those items with a useful life of six years or more. In accordance with this policy,
the ratio of annual debt payments cannot exceed 15% of General Fund revenues for voter-approved
and non-voter approved debt overall, and cannot exceed 6% of General Fund revenues for non-
voter approved debt alone. The 6% ceiling for non-voter approved debt may be exceeded, only if
there is a guaranteed new revenue stream for the debt payments and the additional debt will not
cause the ratio to exceed 7.5%, or there is no guaranteed revenue stream but the 6% ceiling shall
not be exceeded for more than one year.

In additicn, the policy specifies that the City's debt shall not exceed certain other ratios as defined by
Moody's Investors Service, which are listed in the City Debt Policy Statement section of the City
Budget.

In April 2003, the City adopted a Variable Rate Debt Policy and Interest Rate Risk Mitigation Policy.
The Variable Rate Debt sets forth the purposes and the criteria for using variable rate debt, and the
factors to be considered in determining the appropriate amount of the variable rate debt. It also
requires diversification of remarketing agents and counterparties. Budgeting, monitoring and
reporting requirements are also included in the policy.

The Interest Rate Risk Mitigation Policy was developed to provide guidelines for the use of interest
rate mitigation products such as swaps, caps, floors, collars and options in connection with the
incurrence of debt. While the use of these financing products can reduce the City’s exposures to
risks inherent to certain types of debts, careful monitoring is required to preserve the City’s credit
strength and budget flexibility.

As of June 30, 20086, the City is in compliance with the aforementioned policies.

In order to protect against potential rising of interest rates, the City entered into pay-fixed, receive-
variable interest rate swap agreements on the $235.5 million Convention Center variable rate lease
revenue refunding bonds and on the $316.8 million Sewer Enterprise Fund Subordinate Variable
Revenue Bonds. The swap agreements were effective June 1, 2004 and April 6, 2006, respectively.
The costs associated with the swaps are less than what the City would have paid to issue fixed rate
debt. Terms, fair values, and credit risks associated with the swap agreements are discussed in
Note 4K of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements beginning on page 120.

Information related to the City’s legal debt margin is found on page 310. Pledged revenue bond
coverage for the City’'s enterprise funds is found on pages 312 and 313.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2006 amounted to $23.3 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets, which accounts for 65.4% of the City's total assets, includes land, buildings,
facilities, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress. The following table presents

the City's capital assets (in thousands):

City of Los Angeles
Summary of Capital Assets Used in Operations

{amounts expressed in thousands}

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2008 2005 2008 2005 2006 2005
Not Depreciated
Land $ 575042 $ 580,437 $ 2123410 $ 2,119,692 $ 2,899,352 $ 2,680,128
Infrastructure 163,240 161,380 - - 163,240 161,380
Construction in Progress 970 876 784,938 2,087,552 2,020,109 3,058,428 2,805,045
1,710,058 1,506,753 4,213,962 4,139,801 5,921,020 5,646,554
Depreciated, Net
Buildings, Facilities and
Equipmeni 1,960,827 4,834,057 13,589,301 13,053,847 15,545,928 14,887,904
Infrastruciure 1,604,619 403,659 -- — 1,604,819 403,609
3,585,246 2,237,758 13,589,301 13,053,847 17,154,547 15,291,603
Natural Gas Field, Net - -- 237,403 — 237,403 -
Nuslaar Fual at Amortized Gost - -- 14,578 13472 14,578 13,472
Total § 5,275,304 5 3,744 505 % 18,052,244 8 17,207,120 $ 23,327,548 $ 20,951,829

The City changed its reporting method from the modified approach to the depreciation method for
the following infrastructure systems: stormwater (other than sewer), streets, and traffic signals. The
change was effective for fiscal year 2005-06. With this change, the City has fully implemented the
retroactive provisions of GASB Staiement No. 34 on infrastructure assets.

As of June 30, 2006, the condition of City bridges is compliant with the City’s policy. Seventy three
percent of all City bridges are rated B or better and no bridge is rated less than D. The delay in
appropriating funds contributed to the delay in awarding construction contracts for bridges. Because
of this delay, $16.4 million was spent out of the $30 million planned for preservation and
maintenance projects. The reguired supplementary information for bridges is presented on page
170.

Major capital assets activities during the year are as follows:

Governmental Activities

¢ Completed building construction and varicus improvements amounted to $182.4 million that
included $8.7 million acquisition, construction and improvement costs for various fire stations

and other municipal facilities; and $173.7 million for library, recreation and parks, and zoo
facilities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Charges for various projects under construction totaled $368.3 million. These projects are for
police, library, recreational, zoo, stormwater, streets, traffic and various other City facilities and
infrastructure projects.

Capitalized expenses for infrastructure assets totaled $63.6 million. To comply with GASB
Statement No. 34, the historical cost of certain infrastructure assets constructed through fiscal
year 2002 of $1,774.1 million was recorded during the year.

Acquisition for machinery and equipment that were capitalized totaled $114.3 million, while those
retired, salvaged, deleted or sold amounted to $42.6 million.

Business-type Activities

The Airports Enterprise Fund capitalized $208.2 million in fiscal year 2006 that included $4.9
million for land acquisition, $139.9 million for buildings, facilities and improvements and
construction in progress of $63.4 million. Significant capital expenditures were made for noise
mitigation projects, the new Southside airfield at LAX, interior improvements at the Tom Bradley
International Terminal, and in-line baggage screening systems.

The Harbor Enterprise Fund capitalized $109.4 million in fiscal year 2006. The majority of the
capitalized expenses were for commercial development. Gther significant capital outlays were
related to terminal development, dredging projects and environmental enhancements. Although
capital assets posted an increase over the prior year, capital spending fell short of original plans
due to projects that have been put on hold pending completion of additional envircnmental
impact assessments.

The Power Enterprise Fund put into service $331.3 million of additions, including transfers from
construction in progress, to utility plant in service. Of the $331.3 million, $185.9 million or 56.1%
related to distribution assets. Furthermore, the Fund had capital improvements to its generation
and transmission utility plant assets to maintain and support normal load growth. The increase in
construction work in progress is mostly attributable to the Pinetree Wind Project and other
generation improvements. In July 2005, DWP and other members of the Scuthem California
Public Power Authority completed the acquisition of natural gas reserves and other real property
located in Pinedale, Wyoming. The Fund contributed approximately $230 million in the
transaction.

The Water Enterprise Fund put into service $160.5 million of additions to utility plant in service.
Of the $160.5 million, $106.2 million or 66.2% related to distribution utility plant assets, and
$41.1 million was added to source of supply assets. Additions to distribution utility plant assets
comprised the completion of various major reservoir and trunk line projects. Additions to source
of water supply assets include structures and improvements to the aqueduct system. The
remaining $13.2 million of additions were incurred for normal capital activities to maintain and
support general plant, pumping and purification systems.

The Sewer Enterprise Fund put into service $362.6 million of additions, including transfers from
construction in progress, to utility plant in service. Of the $362.6 million, $290.4 million or 80%
related to collection system and $65.6 million or 18% related to treatment plants and equipment.
Charges to construction in progress totaled $178.6 million. These projects are driven by
regulatory requirements.

Significant commitments that include construction contracts are discussed in Note 5B of the Notes to
the Basic Financial Statements on page 149.
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The City’'s policy affecting capital assets can be found in Note1E of the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements on pages 64-66. Additional information can be found in Note 4F on pages 102-104.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The City's 2006-07 adopted budget is $6.7 billion. Of this amount, $3.6 billion, or 53.6%, is
appropriated for departmental expenditures. The remainder of $3.1 billion is appropriated for non-
departmental expenditures. Estimated general receipts of $4.3 billion and special receipts of $1.9
hillion and available balances of $0.5 billion fund the budget.

The budgeted General Fund receipts of $4.3 billion project a net increase of $206 million or 5%
increase from fiscal year 2005-06 actual receipts as follows:

FY 2006-07 FY 2005-06 Increase (Decrease)

Budget Receipts Amount %
Taxes $ 3,135.3 $ 29614 $ 173.9 5.9%
Licenses, permits, fees and fines 649.2 5925 @ 56.7 9.6%
Intergovernmental 42 1 35.8 6.3 17.6%
Interest 440 38.1 59 15.5%
Other 10.5 9.3 1.2 12.9%
Transfers from other funds 4576 497 .8 (40.2) -8.1%
$ 4,338.7 $ 4,134.9 $ 203.8 4.9%

® Excludes VLF Gap Loan Financing proceeds of $63.9 million.
®) Other funds include Reserve, Tax Reform, Power, Water and Telecommunications Liguidated Damages Funds.

Receipts from property, transient occupancy, parking users, utility users and sales taxes are
expected to perform bhetter than the prior year's receipts, while decreases are projected for receipts
from documentary transfer, and franchise taxes.

Property tax is still the City's largest General Fund revenue source. The amcunt of property tax
received is determined by complex Proposition 13 related factors including inflation, the real estate
market, new construction activity, assessment appeals and restorations to the tax rolls. For fiscal
year 2006-07, property tax receipts are expected to post $176.5 million more than the prior year’s
receipts. Of this amount, $93.3 million is attributed to growth in assessed valuations expected to
exceed 10% in fiscal year 2006-07. The balance of $83.2 million is the result of the State's action
redirecting property taxes to local governments in lieu of sales taxes and vehicle license fees. While
assessed valuations have grown in recent years, there are indications of a declining volume of real
estate sales. Because of this, coupled with the stabilizing home prices, the City anticipates that its
revenue from documentary transfer taxes will be $24.6 million or 11.4% less than the fiscal year
2005-06 receipts.

Increased collections from parking fines and reimbursements from enterprise funds for general fund
services that includes fire and police protection are the primary reasons for the 10% projected
increase in revenues from licenses, permits, fees and fines.

Budgeted transfers from Power and Water Revenue Funds totaled $206.6 million while transfers
from the Reserve Fund were budgeted at $231.3 million. Because of the anticipated growth in taxes
and other revenue categories, the Reserve Fund transfers are $64 million less than the prior fiscal
year.

A review of recent economic perfoermance and forecasts by leading economists provides important
insight into the region’s economic outlock and of the City's revenue base.

_26-



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

» Employment in Los Angeles County has fluctuated over the last nine years, growing by 1.8%
annually between 1997 and 2000, and then falling by 1.1% in 2002 and 2003. This fall was
followed by minimal growth of less than 1% in 2004 and 2005. For 2006 and 2007, the Los
Angeles County Economic Development Corporation (LAEDC) projects average employment
expansion in Los Angeles County by 1%. The UCLA Andersen (UCLA) forecasts statewide non-
farm employment growth of 1.5% in 2006 and 1% in 2007. Growth in statewide employment
typically exceeds Los Angeles area employment growth.

e Another good indicator of the local economy is the change in personal income. Personal income
in the Los Angeles County area has grown steadily, moving up to 6% both in 2004 and 2005.
LAEDC anticipates growth of about 6% in 2006 and 2007, and UCLA projects expansion of the
state’s personal income by 5% in 2006 and 4.7% in 2007.

e LAEDC anticipates that inflation, as measured by the consumer price index, will be 4.3% in 2006
and 3.5% in 2007. UCLA forecasts 3% in 2006 and 2.1% in 2007.

s Employment is the primary determining factor of income and income determines the abhility of
consumers to make purchases. City taxable sales between fiscal years 1999-00 and 2000-01
grew by an average of 8% each year but declined by 2% in 2001-02. In fiscal years 2002-03 and
2004-05, taxable sales expanded by an average of 4% each year and about 7.8% in 2005-06. A
5% growth is anticipated in 2006-07, a consensus shared by LAEDC and UCLA.

Other matters that are affecting and will affect the City's current and future operations are as follows:

e Contract negotiaticns with unions representing City civilian employees will occur in the next
fiscal year. If salary increases are granted, each 1% is worth approximately $12 million.

e The City’'s General Fund contributions to the civilian retirement, and fire and police pension
systems continue to increase. It increased by approximately $102 million in 2005-06 and will
increase by $200 million in 2006-07. At June 30, 2006, the unfunded actuarial accrued
liabilities of the two systems for pension benefits were $2.2 billion and $690 million,
respectively. The respective funded ratios were 78% and 95%. In addition, the unfunded
postemployment healthcare benefits liabilities were $740.5 million and $1 hillion,
respectively. The respective funded ratios were 57% and 38%.

e The Reserve Fund transferred $295.3 million as a funding source to the General Fund in
fiscal year 2005-06 and will transfer $231.3 million in fiscal year 2006-07. Reserve Fund
budgetary transfers are made possible by intensive monitoring of department expenditures
by the Mayor and the Council coupled with revenue growth. Problems in the national, State,
or local economy may weaken future revenues, making Reserve Fund transfers difficult
without significantly reducing City service levels.

s A substantial portion of the City's telephone users tax is may be at risk. Changes in Federal
law as well as a Proposition 218 court action are seriously challenging the utility users tax
derived from wireless telephone service which is estimated at $163 million in the fiscal year
2006-07 budget. An unfavorable result would restrict the City's ability to collect taxes on
certain wireless telephone calls. Please see page 143 for additional discussion.

e The City Administrative Officer prepares a five-year budget forecast that is submitted to the
Mayor and City Council in various reports during the year. The forecast is subject to change
as revenue and expenditure data are updated throughout the year. The most recent report
projects deficits of $261.2 million, $241.4 million and $65.1 million for fiscal years 2007-08,
2008-09 and 2009-10, respectively and a surplus of $78.1 millien in 2010-11.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES

The Communily Redevelopment Agengy is a component unit that is legally separate from the City. It
is discretely presented because its governing board is not substantially the same as the: City's
govermning body and it provides services directly o the citizenry rather than to the City govermment.

The following schedule provides condensad data from the CRA’s statement of net assets!
Community Redeveiopment Agency

Condensed Statement of Net Assats
{amounts expregsed inthoysands)

FY 2008 FY 2008

Current argd olher assels & 584,531 & 451,351

Capiial assels 893,880 101,868
Total nessts 884.201 553,215
Current and other liabilitiss BaTT8 B0t
48 025 48,033

78813 0554

54,240 56,881

408459 287 fd4
(Bl ALY (450 DAl

Poilad g B 180,195

At June 30, 2008, the CRA's total liabilities exceeded its lolal assets by $134.6 million or a decrease
of §15.5 million from the previous vear's deficit of $150.1 million. The deficit is primarily due to the
issuance of debt, securad and to be paid for by future incremental property taxes, Debt prof;euatfs are
used to finance redevelopment activities that benefit the community and increase the project areas’
taxable base. The redevelopment activities do nol necessarily result in CRA agsats; if they do, such
assels are carried in the C%%A’s bméjﬁs at substantially below cost. The CRA diso pro é;‘:-a gap
s

payable t@ta g 3124 4 million, while r&hr&m&ntﬁ; and d%feaﬁsana@a totaled $32 5. million, %”r{;ﬁeedg of
the debt issuances increased cash and investment, a component of current and bther assets..
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

At June 30, 2006, the CRA’s long-term debt amounted to $745 million. Of this amount, 81.5% or
$607.1 million are tax allocation bonds. The CRA issues tax allocation bonds to finance certain
redevelopment programs. Receipts from incremental property taxes are used to pay debt service on
the tax allocation bonds. Incremental property taxes are collected irom the excess of property taxes
levied and collected each year on a redevelopment project over the amount that is levied and
collected on the base year property tax assessment.

The following table presents the operating results of the CRA:
Community Redevelopment Agency

Condensed Statement Activities
{amounts expressed in thousands)

FY 2005 FY 2005

Program Revenues

Chargesfor Services ............................... & 9,332 & 8,708

Capital Grants and Contributions .................. 26,707 23,018
General Revenues

Incremental Property Taxes ........................ 127,216 103,231

Interest Income ... 16,568 11,090

OHRE e 1,128 938
Total Revenues ... ..., 180,949 146,983
Program Expenses

HIBUSING oo e e 31,488 25,200

Community and Economic Development ... 32,310 17,088

Public Improvement ...l 7,381 7.851

Project General ...ooovevviniiiiiine e 50,238 34,654

Parking facilities ... 5,055 5,029

Interesi on Longderm Debt ... 29,833 30,333
Total Program EXpenses ..o 158,201 120,155
Increase (Decrease) in Net Loan Valuation ......... {9,155) 28,113
ChangeinNetAssels ... ..., $ 15503 $ 5594

Faor the year ended June 30, 2006, the CRA’s change in net assets of $15.5 million was down $40.4
million from the prior year.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the CRA’s revenues totaled $180.9 million, a $34 million
(23.1%) improvement from the prior fiscal year. Incremental property taxes contributed $24 million to
the overall revenue growth. The CRA benefited from the relatively strong real estate market that
spurred the growth in assessed valuation. Program expenses increased by $36.1 million due to
increased staffing and consuliing services for on-going redevelopment projects. The restructuring of
several loans resulted to the $9.2 million decrease in valuation of the CRA’s loans receivable
portfolio.

Among the measures that the State of California has adopted to alleviate its budget deficit is to

require redevelopment agencies to shift tax increment revenues to the State Educational Revenue
Augmentation Fund. The CRA’s share was $8.9 million for fiscal year 2006.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, creditors, and other
users with a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions conceming any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Office of the City Controller, 200 North Main Street, City Hall East Room 300, Los Angeles, CA

90012.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Net Assets (Deficit)

June 30, 2006

{amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and Pooled Investments
Other Investments
Receivables, Net
Loans Receivable from Component Unit
Inventories
Prepaid Items and Other Assets
Restricted Assets
Investment in Joint Ventures
Net Pension Assets
Capital Assets
Not Depreciated
Depreciated, Net
Natural Gas Field, Net
Nuclear Fuel, at Amortized Cost

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Internal Balances
Deposits and Advances
Other Liahilities
Net Pension Liability
Other Postemployment Benefits Liability
Advances from Fiduciary Funds
Non-current Liabilities

Due Within One Year

Due In More Than One Year

Loans Payable to Primary Government

(all due in more than one year)

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Public Safety
Public Works and Sanitation
Transportation Programs
Culture and Recreation Activities
Community Development and Housing
Passenger Facility Charges
Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits
Other Purposes
Unrestricted (Deficit)

TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Primary Government

Component
Unit-
Community

Governmental Business-type Redevelopment
Activities Activities Total Agency
$ 4,089,583 $ 1432832 $ 5522415 $ 185,501
60,892 - 60,892 162,704
857,514 2,048,950 2,906,464 82,935
73,905 - 73,905 -
16,985 146,088 163,073 35,879
20,813 92,425 113,238 27,675
15,943 3,315,942 3,331,885 69,827

- 7,140 7,140 -

- 148,564 148,564 -
1,710,058 4,210,962 5,921,020 68,206
3,565,246 13,589,301 17,154,547 31,474
- 237,403 237,403 -

-- 14,678 14,578 --
10,410,939 25,244,185 35,655,124 664,201
345,959 589,085 935,044 11,575
629,135 321,027 950,162 -
588 - 588 -
46,813 135,495 182,308 18,223
49,589 (49.,589) - -
33,891 67,945 101,836 21,121
15,813 626,252 642,065 2,859
71,064 11,985 83,049 -

- 168,704 168,704 -
22,873 - 22,873 -
455,335 565,917 1,021,252 19,036
5,056,352 9,784,312 14,840,664 652,094
-- -- -- 73,905
6,727,412 12,221,133 18,948,545 798,813
2,946,666 8,777,029 11,723,695 54,340
104,715 163,951 268,666 217,039
231,421 875,761 1,107,182 67,004
224,313 - 224,313 -
200,024 - 200,024 -
474,360 - 474,360 -
194,432 - 194,432 -
299,140 - 299,140 124,426
- 362,634 362,634 -

- 483,872 483,872 -
27,485 256,443 283,928 -
{1,019,029) 2,103,362 1,084,333 (597,421)
$ 3,683,527 $ 13,023,052 $ 16,708,579 $  (134.812)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELE

8

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

{amounts expressed in thou,

sands)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Component
Program Revenues Primary Government Unit -
Operating Capital Community
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental  Business- type Redevelopment
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General Govemment % 921,672 $ 250,111 % 12,484 % -- $ (BRO.OVTY $ - % (659,077) % -
Protection of Persons and Property 2,117,147 260457 95,623 18,573 (1.742,494) - (1,742,494} -
Public Works 374,203 138,345 133,985 277 (101,686) - (101,686) -
Health and Sanritation 357,574 250,527 18,709 431 (87.907) - (87,907) -
Transportation 286,741 76,785 176,203 2,157 (31,596) - (31,596) -
Cultural and Recreational Services 336,264 133,073 17,220 44,412 (141,559} - (141,559) -
Community Development 297,308 71,884 190,315 - (35,109) - (35,109) -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 173,930 - - - {173,930} - {173,930} -
Total Govemmental Activities 4,864,929 1,181,182 644,539 65,850 (2,973,358) - (2,973,358) -
Business-type Activities:
Airports 657,358 767,660 - 62,590 - 172,892 172,892 -
Harbor 340,656 433,223 - 2,044 - 94,611 94,611 -
Power 2,458,667 2,636,517 - 20,925 - 207,775 207,775 -
Water 543,574 614,620 - 13,898 - 84,944 84,944 -
Sewer 497,699 492,403 17,281 22,428 - 34,413 34,413 -
Other- Convention Center 34,939 24,261 - - - (10,678) (10,678) -
Total Business-type Activities 4,532,893 4,968,684 17,281 130,885 - 583,957 583,957 -
Total Primary Government $ 9,397,822 $ 6,149,866 $ 661,820 $ 196,735 (2,973,358) 583,957 (2,389.401) -
Component Unit- Community
Redevelopment Agency % 165,445 $ 9,332 % - % 26,707 - - -- (129,407
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 1,377,063 - 1,377,063 127.216
Utility Users Taxes 606,617 - 606,617 -
Business Taxes 436,621 - 436,621 -
Other Taxes
Documentary Transfer Tax 213,966 - 213,966 -
Transient Occupancy Tax 138,741 - 138,741 -
Parking Occupancy Tax 75472 - 75472 -
Franchise Income 67,817 - 67,817 -
Miscellaneous 25455 - 25,455 -
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Sales Taxes 329,169 - 329,169 -
Motor Vehide In-Lieu Taxes 24,120 - 24,120 -
Other 14,297 - 14,297 -
Unrestricted Investment Eamings 21,555 - 21,5565 16,568
Other 38,795 - 38,795 1,126
Transfers 185,888 (185,888) - -
Total General Revenues and Other Items 3,555,576 (185,888) 3,369,688 144,910
Change In Net Assets 582,218 398,069 980,287 15,503
Net Assets (Deficit) - July 1 1,930,133 12,624,983 14,555,116 (150,115)
Net Historical Cost of Infrastructure Assets 1,171,176 - 1,171,176 -
Net Assets (Deficit) - June 30 $ 3,683,527 $ 13,023,052 $ 16,706,579 $  (134612)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS

Cash and Pooled Investments
Other Investments
Taxes Receivable

{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $34,029)
Accounts Receivable

{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $502,322)
Special Assessments Receivable

{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $1,648)
Investment Income Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable

{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $49,859)
Loans Receivable

{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $623,809)
Due from Other Funds
Loans Receivable from Component Unit

{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $500)
Inventories
Prepaid Items and Other Assets
Advances to Other Funds
Restricted Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable
Obligations Under Securities

Lending Transactions
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable
Estimated Claims and Judgments Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue and Other Credits
Deposits and Advances
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable
Advances from Other Funds
Other Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Assets Not Available for Appropriation
Debt Service
Special Purposes
Unreserved:
Designated for Special Purposes
Undesighated:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds

TOTAL FUND BALANCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Proposition C

Proposition A Anti-Gridlock Recreation Special Gas

Local Transit Transit and Tax Street
General Assistance Improvement Parks Improvement

$ 1,053,736 $ 126,811 $ 58,936 $ 211,165 $ 15,864
262 464 - - - -
159,605 8 - 1 -
4,439 - - - -
12,021 1,190 530 1,765 237
15,626 13,028 7,881 - 6,810
28,901 308 73 1,144 1,017
16,985 - - - -

24 464 - 76,320 3114 -

- - - - 6,309

$ 1,578,241 $ 141,345 $ 143,740 $ 217,189 $ 30,337
$ 62,934 $ 8,388 $ 50 $ 4,685 $ 760
237 471 18,757 7,983 31,210 3,279
150,041 - - 10,108 -
1,505 - - 92 -
13,688 - - - -

87 - - 13 -

19,452 94 138 405 -
217,998 2,119 414 785 94
19,952 19 - 593 -
56,159 - - 5,955 -
13,564 - - - -
792,851 29,377 8,585 53,846 4,133
124,878 14,038 521 14,646 6,464
41,449 - 76,320 3,114 -
47,860 - - - 6,309
118,468 - - - -
452,735 - - - -

- 97,930 58,314 145,583 13,431

785,390 111,968 135,155 163,343 26,204

$ 1,578,241 $ 141,345 $ 143,740 $ 217,189 $ 30,337
Coentinued...
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Balance Sheet - (Continued)
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Municipal Improvement

Corporation Other
Community Special Debt Governmental
Development Revenue Service Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 4339 $ 75968 $ 67933 $ 2,474,831 $ 4,089,583
Other Investments - - 47,887 13,005 60,892
Taxes Receivable
{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $34,029) - - - 32,753 295217
Accounts Receivable
{Net of Allowance for Uncallectibles of $502,322) - - - 10,299 169,913
Special Assessments Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $1,646) 41 - - 18,016 20,496
Investment Income Receivable 23 123 78 21,523 37,490
Intergovernmental Receivable
{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $49,853) - - - 51,646 95,09
Loans Receivable
{Net of Allowance for Uncallectibles of $623,809) 80,463 - - 158,844 239,307
Due from Other Funds 2,610 - - 14,582 48,635
Loans Receivable from Component Unit
{Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $500) 72,945 - - 960 73,905
Inventories - - - - 16,985
Prepaid Items and Other Assets 193 - 538 373 1,104
Advances to Other Funds - - - 13,857 117,755
Restricted Assets - - - 9,634 15,943
TOTAL ASSETS $ 160,614 § 76,091 $ 116,436 $§ 2,818,323 § 5,282,316
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable $ 4569 $ 8,136 $ - 3 90,072 $ 179,594
Obligations Under Securities
Lending Transactions 642 1,146 - 328,647 629,135
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable - - - 3,166 163,315
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable -- -- -- 63 1,660
Estimated Claims and Judgments Payable - - - - 13,688
Intergovernmental Payable -- 421 -- 2,629 3,050
Due to Other Funds 1,274 3,030 -- 26,977 51,370
Deferred Revenue and Other Credits 8 - - 86,692 308,110
Deposits and Advances 82 -- -- 13,245 33,891
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable - - - 588 588
Advances from Other Funds - - - 125,370 187,484
Other Liabilities g -- -- 276 13,849
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,584 12,733 -- 677,625 1,585,734
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 24,456 112,162 - 589,346 886,511
Assets Not Available for Appropriation 153,601 - - 174,034 448 518
Debt Service -- -- 116,436 244,715 361,151
Special Purposes - - - 9634 63,803
Unreserved:
Desighated for Special Purposes - - - - 118,468
Undesignated:
General Fund - - - - 452 735
Special Revenue Funds {24,027} {48,804} - 625,561 867,988
Capital Projects Funds -- -- -- 497,408 497,408
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 154,030 63,358 116,436 2,140,698 3,696,582
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 160,614 § 76,091 $ 116,436 $§ 2,818,323 $ 5,282,316

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 3,696,582

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 5,275,304

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 306,148

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (5,594, 507)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 3,683,527

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Proposition C

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Utility Users Taxes
Business Taxes
Other Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Services to Enterprise Funds
Fines
Special Assessments
Investment Earnings (Losses)
Program Income
Other
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Protection of Persohs and Property
Public Works
Health and Sanitation
Transpottation
Cultural and Recreatichal Services
Community Development
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Cost of Issuance
Advance Refunding Escrow
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Issuance of Lohg-term Debt
Premium on Issuance of Long-term Debt
Issuance of Refunding Bonds
Premium on Issuance of Refunding Bonds
Payment tc Refunded Boend Escrow Agent
Leans from HUD
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1
INCREASE IN RESERVE FOR INVENTORIES

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30

Proposition A Anti-Gridlock Recreation Special Gas
Local Transit Transit and Tax Street

General Assistance Improvement Parks Improvement
$ 1,168,082 $ -- - - .
329,169 -- - - --
606,617 -- - - --
436,621 -- - - --
476,529 -- - - --
21,529 -- - 987 --
39,601 84,715 53,425 7,536 98,571
324,689 10,866 1,323 99,717 88
229,695 -- - - --
117,103 -- - - --
2,765 -- - - --
21,809 1,399 361 1,114 302
35,077 1,225 18 666 32
3,809,286 98,205 55,127 110,020 98,993
1,063,766 -- - - --
1,854,701 -- - - --
190,745 -- - - 96,129
219,447 -- - - --
115,820 74,698 25,464 -- --
66,632 -- - 172,036 --
39,333 -- - - --
35,116 3,800 2,696 7472 3,905
197 -- - -- --
3,585,757 78,498 28,160 179,508 100,034

223,529 19,707 26,967 {69,488) {1,041}
206,897 27 16,400 124,164 --
{455,291} (3,186) {9,814} -- --
{248,394) (3,159) 6,586 124,164 --

(24.,865) 16,548 33,553 54,676 {1,041}
809,591 95,420 101,602 108,667 27,245
664 -- - -- --
$ 785,390 $ 111,968 135,155 163,343 $ 26,204
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REVENUES
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Utility Users Taxes
Business Taxes
QOther Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Services to Enterprise Funds
Fines
Special Assessments
Investment Eamings {Losses)
Proegram Income
QOther

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Protection of Perscns and Property
Public Works
Health and Sanitation
Transportatioh
Cultural and Recreational Services
Community Development
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Cost of Issuance
Advance Refunding Escrow

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - (Continued)
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Municipal Improvement

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Issuance of Long-term Debt
Premium on Issuance of Long-term Debt
Issuance of Refunding Bonds
Premium on Issuance of Refunding Bonds
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent
Leans from HUD

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1
INCREASE IN RESERVE FOR INVENTORIES

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30

Corporation Other
Community Special Debt Governmental
Development Revenue Service Funds Total

3 - $ - $ - $ 197,778 § 1,365,860
-- -- -- -- 329,169

-- -- -- -- 606,617

-- -- -- -- 436,621

-- -- -- 44 922 521,451

-- -- -- 32,744 55,260
59,618 -- -- 306,503 649,969

1 -- -- 363,538 800,222

-- -- -- 1,978 231,673

-- -- -- 15,471 132,574

-- -- -- 94,428 97,193

(443 3,351 4,747 38,675 71,714
2,410 -- -- 6,400 8,810
333 -- -- 35,066 72,417
62,318 3,351 4,747 1,137,503 5,379,550
-- -- 670 37,834 1,102,270

-- -- -- 234,750 2,089,451

-- -- -- 70,821 357,695

-- -- -- 128,811 348,258

-- -- -- 60,634 276,616

-- -- -- 96,003 334,671
81,230 -- -- 202,120 322,683
-- 129,756 -- 365,042 547,787

-- -- 115,198 125,944 241,142

-- -- 41,281 136,475 177,756

-- -- -- 1,856 2,053

-- -- -- 1,878 1,878
81,230 129,756 157,149 1,462,168 5,802,260
(18,912) (126,405} (152,402} (324 ,665) (422,710}
14,944 1,460 139,775 324 937 828,604
{2,247} {179} {101} (171,898) (642,716}
-- 96,200 -- 172,550 268,750

-- -- -- 9,740 9,740

-- -- -- 73,080 73,080

-- -- -- 4,786 4,786
- -- -- (77,257) (77,257}

-- -- -- 1 1
12,697 97,481 139,674 335,939 464,988
{6,215} (28,924) (12,728) 11,274 42,278
160,245 92,282 129,164 2,129,424 3,653,640
-- -- -- -- 664

§ 154030 § 63,358 § 116436 § 2,140,688 § 3,696,582

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances- Total Governmental Funds $ 42 278

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period. 350,621

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues and other financing sources in the funds. 24,517

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial resources to the
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas, these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the
net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. (34,077)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental

funds. 189,215
Decrease in reserve for inventory 664
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 582,218

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis}
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands}

Actual Variance With
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts {Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) {Negative)}
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,814,994 2814994 $§ 2981381 § 148,387
Licenses, Permits, Fees and Fines 551,925 552,793 592 455 39,682
Intergovernmental 37,000 37,000 99,703 62,703
Interest 31,110 31,110 38,084 6,954
Cther 10,280 10,280 9,334 (948)
TOTAL REVENUES 3,445,309 3,448,177 3,700,937 254,760
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,348,989 1,375,708 1,285,519 90,189
Protection of Persons and Property 1,718,830 1,772,948 1,712,792 80,158
Public Works 289,048 346,175 321,134 25,041
Health and Sanitation 231,330 228,785 219,847 8,938
Transportation 128,490 140,836 132,103 8,733
Cultural and Recreational Services 67,033 71,181 69,031 2,150
Community Development 94,247 113,512 98,840 14,672
Pension and Retirement Contributions 27,037 25,208 25,205 1
Capital Outlay 10,659 40,504 14,415 26,089
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,913,443 4,114,855 3,878,886 235,969
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES (468,134) (668,678) {177,949) 490,729
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Transfers from Other Funds 1,134,358 1,343,238 1,225,771 {117.,485)
Loans from Other Funds -- 761 16,399 15,638
Transfers to Other Funds (725,880) (748,739) (744,614) 4,125
Payment of Loans to Other Funds -- - {17,252) {17,252)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} 408,496 595,258 480,304 (114,954)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES (59,638) (73,420) 302,355 375775
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1 59,638 59,638 -- (59,638)
Appropriation of Fund Balance and Carryforward
Appropriations -- 13,782 -- (13,782)
Encumbrances Lapsed -- - 18,309 18,309
Reversion to Reserve Fund -- -- {274,044) {274,044)
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30 $ -- - % 48,620 % 48,620

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Proposition A Local Transit Assistance Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Actual Variance With
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 89,272 89,272 % 83,042 % (6,230)
Charges for Services 8,245 13,317 10,738 (2,579)
Interest 2,376 2,376 3,149 773
Other - - 1,238 1,238
TOTAL REVENUES 99,893 104,965 98,167 (6,798)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Transportation 149,036 254 974 77,222 177,752
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES (49,143) (150,009) 20,945 170,954
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers from Other Funds - 27 27 -
Transfers to Other Funds (19,398) (27,311) (11,551) 15,760
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (19,398) (27,284) (11,524) 15,760
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES (68,541) (177,293) 9,421 186,714
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 68,541 68,541 66,887 (1,654)
Appropriation of Fund Balance and Carryforward
Appropriations - 108,752 - (108,752)
Encumbrances Lapsed - - 13,253 13,253
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 $ - - § 89,561 § 89,561

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Proposition C Anti-Gridlock Transit Improvement

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{(amounts expressed in thousands)

Actual Variance With
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts {Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 60,366 $ 60,454 % 50,580 % (9,865)
Charges for Services 1,100 1,506 1,392 (114)
Interest 1,200 1,200 1,178 (22)
Other 200 200 18 (182)
TOTAL REVENUES 62,866 63,360 53177 (10,183)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Transportation 55,285 58,442 7,116 51,326
Capital Outlay 2,760 7,028 -- 7,028
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 58,045 65,470 7,116 58,354
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 4,821 (2,110) 46,061 48,171
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers from Other Funds - -- 16,400 16,400
Transfers to Other Funds (18,631) (51,741) (27,544) 24197
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES) (18,631) (51,741) (11,144) 40,597
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES (13,810) (53,851) 34,917 88,768
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 13,810 13,810 87,153 73,343
Appropriation of Fund Balance and Carryforward
Appropriations - 40,041 - (40,041
Encumbrances Lapsed - -- 630 630
FUND BALANCES , JUNE 30 $ - % - % 122,700 % 122,700

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Special Gas Tax Street Improvement Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Actual Variance With
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 87,853 % 104,353 % 97,906 % (6,447)
Charges for Services - 26 88 62
Interest 500 500 566 66
Other -- -- 33 33
TOTAL REVENUES 88,353 104,879 98,593 (6,286)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Works 1,956 11,259 482 10,797
Capital Outlay 10,987 20,621 6,534 14,087
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,943 31,880 6,996 24,884
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 75,410 72,999 91,597 18,598
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers to Other Funds (84,948) (100,479) (94,167) 6,312
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES (9,538) (27,480) (2,570) 24,910
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 9,538 9,538 12,637 3,099
Appropriation of Fund Balance and Carryforward
Appropriations - 17,942 - (17,242)
Encumbrances Lapsed - - 83 83
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 $ - 3% - 3 10,150 § 10,150

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit)
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Community Development Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Actual Variance With
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 31,303 $ 111,105 % 50,618 % (51,487)
Charges for Services - - 1 1
Interest -- - 5 5
Program Income -- 1,800 26,403 24,603
Other - - 333 333
TOTAL REVENUES 31,303 112,905 86,360 (26,545)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Community Development 8,287 177,073 46,917 130,156
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 23,018 (64,188) 39,443 103,611
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Other Funds -- -- 5,373 5,373
Transfers to Other Funds (23,016) (45,485) (31,493) 13,992
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (23,016) (45,485) (26,120) 19,365
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES - (109,653) 13,323 122,976
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JULY 1 - - (41,271) (41,271)
Appropriation of Fund Balance and Carryforward
Appropriations - 109,653 - (102,653)
Encumbrances Lapsed -- -- 1,905 1,905
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30 $ - % - % (26,043) % (26,043)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, Pooled and Other Investments
Unrestricted
Restricted
Notes Receivable

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2006
{(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $2,000) -

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable

(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $114,592)

Accrued Unbilled Revenue
Investment Income Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Inventories
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets
Pocled and Other Investments

Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents

Investment Income Receivable

Passenger Facility Charge Receivable

Total Restricted Assets

Leng-term Investment
Investment in Joint Ventures

(Net of Allowance for Losses of $19,000) -

Capital Assets
Land

Buildings, Facilities and Equipment
Leased Property and Improvements

Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress
Natural Gas Field, Net

Nuclear Fuel, at Amortized Cost

Total Capital Assets

Other Noncurrent Assets
Loans Receivable - Notes
Advances to Other Funds
Net Pension Assets
Other Assets

Total Other Nencurrent Assets
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

Airports Harbor Power Water
$ 566,107 $ 256,258 $ 388,807 $ 124,986
- 191,578 731,205 344,385
20 32,887 -
25,131 38,566 214,106 42,988
27,228 - 140,386 48,847
7,330 4,033 15,940 5,646
- 1,446 50,677 4,059
- 3,846 - 13,407
2,037 1,762 112,107 18,942
1,219 3,825 33,948 18,613
629,052 501,334 1,720,063 619,873
642,826 6,006 - -
37,190 5,001 955,340 161,693
4,602 1,129 - -
20,966 -- -- --
705,584 12,136 955,340 161,693
7,140 -- --
732,643 955,824 144,621 106,906
1,896,023 2,379,972 9,443,337 4,310,956
184,423 - - -
(1,065,538) (931,313) (4,701,008) (1,580,292)
286,985 328,221 570,418 611,323
- - 237,403 -
- - 14,578 -
2,034,536 2,732,704 5,709,351 3,448,893
- 1,327 1,144,941 -
- 40,310 - -
- -- 99,793 48,771
3,947 9,359 116,367 -
3,947 50,996 1,361,101 48,771
2,744 067 2,802,976 8,025,792 3,659,357
$ 3,373,119 § 3,304,310 $ 9745855 § 4,279230
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Fund Net Assets - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2006

{(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, Pooled and Other Investments
Unrestricted
Restricted
Notes Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $2,000)
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $114,592)
Accrued Unbilled Revenue
Investment Income Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Inventories
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets
Poocled and Other Investments
Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents
Investment Income Receivable
Passenger Facility Charge Receivable

Total Restricted Assets

Leng-term Investment
Investment in Joint Ventures
(Net of Allowance for Losses of $19,000)

Capital Assets
Land
Buildings, Facilities and Equipment
Leased Property and Improvements
Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress
Natural Gas Field, Net
Nuclear Fuel, at Amortized Cost

Total Capital Assets

Other Noncurrent Assets
Loans Receivable - Notes
Advances to Other Funds
Net Pension Assets
Other Assets

Total Other Nencurrent Assets
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

- 45

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other-
Convention
Sewer Center Total

$ 91,116 $ 5558 § 1,432,832

106,250 - 1,373,418

- - 32,907

47,284 1,890 369,965

32,088 - 246,549

1,912 §] 34,867

45 845 - 102,027

- - 17,253

11,240 - 146,088

- 2,021 59,626

335,735 9475 3,815,532

88,440 - 737,272

19,331 - 1,178,555

- - 5,731

- - 20,966

107,771 - 1,942 524

- - 7,140

43,824 139,592 2,123,410

5,377,379 594,373 24,002,040

- 9,601 194,024
(2,154,748) (173,868) (10,606,763)

290,605 - 2,087,552

- - 237,403

- - 14,578

3,557,060 569,700 18,052,244

- - 1,146,268

6,652 - 46,862

- - 148,564

19,493 - 149,166

26,045 - 1,490,860

3,690,876 569,700 21,492,768

$ 4,026,611 $ 579175  $ 25,308,300
Confinued...



CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Fund Net Assets - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2006

{(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Airports Harbor Power Water
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable $ 90,837 % 32697 $ 223434 % 64,933
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions 179,986 44 014 73,509 23,518
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable 4,495 - 39,051 17,877
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable 2,619 6,186 43,524 21,724
Due to Other Funds - - 13,407 -
Deferred Revenue and Other Credits 50 358 - 36,487
Deposits and Advances - - - 67,945
Capital Lease Obligations - Current Portion 1,026 - - -
Interest Payable 1,846 9525 80,249 33,108
Bonds and Notes Payable - Current Portion 14,615 Q0,503 188,821 78,063
Advances from Other Funds - - - -
Other Current Liabilities 11,745 89,738 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 307,219 273,021 661,995 343,655
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Capital Lease Obligations - Noncurrent Portion 51,855 - - -
Bonds and Notes Payable - Noncurrent Portion
(Net of Unamortized Debt Related Costs
of $49,678) 320,893 797,262 4,261,748 1,868,494
Net Pensicn Obligation Q776 2,209 - -
Other Postemployment Benefits Liability - - 110,823 57,881
Other Long-term Liabilities 40,474 30,511 500,722 17,074
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 431,998 820,082 4,972,293 1,043,449
TOTAL LIABILITIES 739,217 1,103,003 5,634,288 2,287,104
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,637,147 1,844,939 1,774,252 1,764,265
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 16,040 - 97,017 -
Debt Service 35,472 63,017 600,750 68,471
Passenger Facility Charges 362,634 - - -
Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits - - 331,289 152,583
Other Purposes 77,329 - 129,304 13,165
Unrestricted 505,280 202,451 1,178,955 (6,358)
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 2633902 $ 2201307 $ 4111567 $ 1992126

S4B -
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Fund Net Assets - (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2006
{(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other-
Convention
Sewer Center Total
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable $ 46,454 % 1,805 % 460,160
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions - - 321,027
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable - 129 61,552
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable - 1,944 75,997
Due to Other Funds - 1,111 14,518
Deferred Revenue and Other Credits - 3,599 40,494
Deposits and Advances - - 67,945
Capital Lease Obligations - Current Portion - - 1,026
Interest Payable 10,767 - 135,495
Bonds and Notes Payable - Current Portion 54,434 - 426,436
Advances from Other Funds - 7 7
Other Current Liabilities 27,825 524 129,832
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 139,480 9,119 1,734,489
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Capital Lease Obligations - Noncurrent Portion - - 51,855
Bonds and Notes Payable - Noncurrent Portion
(Net of Unamortized Debt Related Costs
of $49,678) 2,335,576 -- 9592 973
Net Pensicn Obligation - - 11,985
Other Postemployment Benefits Liability - - 168,704
Other Long-term Liabilities 37,461 - 725,242
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 2,373,037 -- 10,550,759
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,512 517 9,119 12,285,248
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,186,726 569,700 8,777,029
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 50,894 - 163,951
Debt Service 107,151 -- 875,761
Passenger Facility Charges - - 362,634
Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits - - 483,872
Special Purposes 36,645 - 256,443
Unrestricted 132,678 356 2,103,362
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 1514004 $ 570,066 $ 13,023,052

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Rent, Concessions and Royalties
Other Operating Revenues

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Fuel for Generation
Purchased Power/Water
Maintenance and Repairs
Operating and Administrative
Depreciation and Amortization

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
CPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment Income

Decrease in Fair Value of Investments

Interest Expense
Other Income {(Expenses), Net

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Capital Contributions
Transfers In
Transfers Out

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, JULY 1
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30

Airports Harbor Power Water
$ 172109 § 373,348 $ 2496,389 $ 598,625
446,581 37,653 - -
1,919 1,116 -- --
620,699 412117 2,496,389 598,625
- - 541,659 --
- - 741,810 95,041
- - 260,217 94,079
547,529 169,001 472,394 205,423
83,945 98,781 270,841 70,654
631,474 267,782 2,286,921 465,197
(10,775) 144,335 209,468 133,428
39,150 18,535 141,729 14,993
(17,847) (4,651) (18,995) (5,703)
(18,861) (37,787) (167,500) (74,081)
118,635 (27,865) 13,148 2,409
121,077 (51,768) (31,618) (62,382)
110,302 92,567 177,850 71,046
62,590 2,044 29,925 13,898
- - (157,894) (27,914)
172,892 94,611 49,881 57,030
2,461,010 2,106,696 4,061,686 1,935,096
$ 2,633,902 § 2201307 $ 4111567 § 1092126
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets {Continued)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Rent, Concessions and Royalties
Other Operating Revenues

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Fuel for Generation
Purchased Power/Water
Maintenance and Repairs
Operating and Administrative
Depreciation and Amortization

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
CPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment Income

Decrease in Fair Value of Investments

Interest Expense
Other Income {(Expenses), Net

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Capital Contributions
Transfers In
Transfers Out

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, JULY 1
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30

Other-
Convention

Sewer Center Total
$ 469,533 $ 8520 § 4,118,614
- 8,421 492 655
4.847 7,304 15,186
474,380 24 245 4,626,455
- - 541,659
- - 836,851
- 847 354,943
232,971 22,259 1,649,577
148,555 12,012 684,788
381,526 34,918 4,067 818
92.854 (10,673) 558,637
14,400 16 228,832
- - (47,1986)
(99,537) - (397,766)
4,259 (21) 110,565
(80,869) (5) (105,565)
11,985 (10,678) 453,072
22428 - 130,885
- 216 216
- (2986) (186,104)
34.413 (10,758) 308,069
1,479,681 580,814 12,624,983
$ 1,514,094 $ 570,056 $13,023,052

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Airports Harbor Power Water
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 614,411 $ 427576 $ 2,490,167 634,158
Receipts for Interfund Services - - 286,947 273,445
Payments to Suppliers (273,811) (125,728) (1,462,463) (200,0086)
Payments to Employees (218,114) (71,798) (431,114) (203,752)
Payments for Interfund Services (50,955) (26,449) (342,519) (252,647)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 71,531 203,601 541,018 251,198
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Transfers In - - - -
Transfers Out - - (157,894) (27,914)
Amounts Received on Advances to Other Funds - 3,732 - -
Noncapital Grants Received - - - -
Interest Paid on Noncapital Revenue Bonds - - (17,060) -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES -- 3,732 (174,954) (27,914)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (205,973) (105,058) (677,882) (318,240)
Receipts from Passenger Facility Charges 118,973 - - -
Proceeds from Escrow Investment Maturities 758 - - -
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds and Notes - 308,570 956,171 501,930
Payments on Capital Leases - Interest (1,802) - - -
Payments on Capital Leases - Principal (912) - - -
Payments on Bonds and Notes - Interest (17,913) (44,535) (133,831) (65,621)
Payments on Bonds and Notes - Principal (38,918) (264,110) (172,600) (23,448)
Deposits to Refunded Debt Escrow Account - - - -
Capital Contributions/Grants Received 62,590 2,042 12,186 12,927
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (83,197) (103,001) (15,956) 106,848
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income Received 37,493 13,348 120,625 9,019
Decrease in Fair Value of Investments (17,503) (3,825) (18,295) (5,703)
Cash Collateral Received (Paid) Under
Securities Lending Transactions 12,033 10,520 (119,290) (15,847)
Distribution from Joint Ventures - - - -
Purchase of Investment Securities - (1,292) (2,122,855) (96,204)
Proceeds from Maturities of Investment Securities - - 2,214,078 62,980
Purchase of Long Term Notes Receivable - - (92,385) -
Proceeds from Notes Receivable - 28 44 999 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 32,023 18,849 28,177 (45,755)

-B0 -
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Cash Flows - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
(amounts expressed in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users
Receipts for Interfund Services
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Payments for Interfund Services

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Amounts Received on Advances to Other Funds

Noncapital Grants Received
Interest Paid on Noncapital Revenue Bonds

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Receipts from Passenger Facility Charges
Proceeds from Escrow Investment Maturities
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds and Notes
Payments on Capital Leases - Interest
Payments on Capital Leases - Principal
Payments on Bonds and Notes - Interest
Payments on Bonds and Notes - Principal
Deposits to Refunded Debt Escrow Account
Capital Contributions/Grants Received

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL

AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income Received
Decrease in Fair Value of Investments
Cash Collateral Received (Paid) Under
Securities Lending Transactions
Distribution from Joint Ventures
Purchase of Investment Securities

Proceeds from Maturities of Investment Securities

Purchase of Long Term Notes Receivable
Proceeds from Notes Receivable

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other-
Convention
Sewer Center Total
$ 452112 % 24529 $ 4,642,953
2,960 - 563,352
(98,554) (3,456) (2,164,018)
- (15,583) (940,361)
(150,138) (3,040) (825,748)
206,380 2,450 1,276,178
- 216 216
- (2986) (186,104)
4. 875 - 8,607
568 - 568
- - (17,080)
5,443 (80) (193,773)
(197,134) (702) (1,505,689)
- - 118,973
- - 758
12,347 - 1,779,018
- - (1,802)
- - (212)
(98,783) - (360,683)
(45,191) - (544,267)
(23,479) - (23,479)
17,203 - 106,948
(335,037) (702) (431,135)
13,297 56 193,838
- - (46,026)
- - (112,584)
- - (2,220,351)
- - 2,277,058
- - (92,385)
- - 45 097
13,297 56 44 647
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Cash Flows - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{amounts expressed in thousands)

NET INCREASE ({DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPONENTS:
Unrestricted Cash, Pocled and Other Investments
Restricted Cash, Pooled and Other Investments

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating

Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Bad Debts Provision (Recovery)
Provision for Obsolete Inventory
Cash Provided By Other Nonecperating Income
Cash Used in Other Nonoperating Expenses
Decrease (Increase) in Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Unbilled Revenue
Due frem Other Funds
Inventories
Prepaid ltems and Other Current Assets
Other Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable

Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Funds

Deferred Revenue and Other Credits
Deposits and Advances

Other Liabilities

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Airports Harbor Power Water
$ 20,357 $ 123,091 $ 376,285 $ 284,377
1,188,576 324,745 743,727 184,994
$ 1208933 $ 447836 % 1,120,012 $ 460,371
$ 566,107 $ 256,268 § 388,807 $ 124,986
642,826 191,578 731,205 344,385
$ 1,208,933 $ 447836 $ 1,120,012 $ 469,371
$ (10,775) $ 144,335 $ 200468 $ 133,428
83,945 98,781 270,841 70,654
(173) 19,569 11,457 1,984
-- -- 11,500 --
-- 334 18,198 6,705
(5,725) -- (5,050) (4,296)
389 (24,950) (25,843) 905
(2,779) -- (15,108) 3,366
-- -- -- 4,001
-- (140) (6,405) (1,595)
(626) (7,478) 8,697 5,931
- - 14,728 4,536
4,295 (14,551) 63,427 (4,551)
1,519 -- 8,130 1,592
4,443 1,392 2,715 (52)
-- -- (4,001) --
(50) (3,939) (61,391) --
- - -- 8,681
(2,932) (9,752) 39,655 19,909
82,306 59,266 331,550 117,770
$ 71,531 $ 203,601 $ 541018 $ 251,198
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Cash Flows - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
(amounts expressed in thousands)

NET INCREASE ({DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPONENTS:
Unrestricted Cash, Pocled and Other Investments
Restricted Cash and Other Investments

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by (Used for)
Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Bad Debts Provision (Recovery)
Provision for Obsolete Inventory
Cash Provided By Other Nonecperating Income
Cash Used in Other Nonoperating Expenses
Decrease (Increase) in Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Unbilled Revenue
Due frem Other Funds
Inventories
Prepaid tems
Other Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue and Other Credits
Deposits and Advances
Other Liabilities

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other-
Convention
Sewer Center Total

$ (102,917) % 1,724 $ 695,917
395,723 3,834 2,841,599

$ 285806 % 5558 § 3,537,516

$ 91,116 % 5558 $ 1,432,832
194,690 -- 2,104,684

$ 285806 % 5558 § 3,637,516

$ 02,854 § (10,673) §$ 558,637

148,555 12,012 684,788
18 - 32,855
- - 11,500
- - 25,237
(15,576) (21) (30,668)
(13,727) (501) (63,727)
4,523 - (9,998)
- - 4,001
(306) - (8,448)
- (262) 6,262
(1,289) - 17,975
(1,046) 7 47,581
- (852) 10,389
- 1,435 9,933
- 362 (3,639)
- 785 (64,595)
- - 8,681
(7.626) 158 39,412
113,526 13,123 717 541

$ 208380 % 2450 $ 1,276,178




CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2006

{amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and Poocled Investments
Investments:
Temporary
U.S. Government Agencies Securities
Domestic Corporate Bonds
International Bonds
Domestic Stocks
International Stocks
Mortgage-backed Securities
Real Estate
Venture Capital and Alternative Investments
Security Lending Collateral
Other
Accounts Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable
Investment Income Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable
Due from Brokers
Advances to Other Funds
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation
of $135)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable
Fiduciary Liabilities
Obligations Under Securities
Lending Transactions
Deposits and Advances
Leans Payable- Current Portion
Loans Payable- Noncurrent Portion
Due tc Brokers

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension, Postemployment
Healthcare and Other Benefits, July 1
Benefit Pension Plans
Postemployment Healthcare Plans
Digability Plan
Death Benefit Plan

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
$ 2,402 $ 190,399
1,470,544 601
2,538,848 -
3,317,133 -
174,278 -
12,507,374 218
5,864,923 10
2,035,446 -
1,440,072 -
1,005,777 -
4,692,233 -
296,108 -
- 1,360
104,946 254
- 2,060
379,974 -
- 22.874
283 -
35,830,341 $ 217,776
651,136 $ -
- 112,942
4,692 233 1,774
- 103,060
2413 -
307,246 -
812,158 -
6,465,186 $ 217,776

27,592 481

1,700,397

37,018

26,259

$ 29,365,155



CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
{(amounts expressed in thousands)

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Plan Member
Other

Total Contributions

Investment Income
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments
Interest Income
Dividend Income
Other Investment Income
Real Estate Operating Income, Net

Investment Income
Investment Expense

Net Investment Income
TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments
Refunds of Member Contributions
Administrative Expenses

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Benefit Pension Plans
Postemployment Healthcare Plans
Disability Plan
Death Benefit Plan

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pensicn, Postemployment
Healthcare and Other Benefits, July 1
Benefit Pension Plans
Postemployment Healthcare Plans
Disability Plan
Death Benefit Plan

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION,
POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE AND
OTHER BENEFITS, JUNE 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension
Trust
Funds

$ 609,526
219,678
1,425

830,629

2,368,246
466,953
274,780

19,347
73,776

3,203,102

(99,675)

3,103,427

3,934,056

1,488,260
20,558
25,123

1,533,941

2,223,769
186,779
(6,017)
(4,416)

2,400,115

25,368,712
1,622,618
43,035
30,675

$ 29,385,155



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements include disclosures considered necessary for a
better understanding of the accompanying financial statements. An index to the Notes follows:
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General

The City of Los Angeles (City) was incorporated in 1850 under the provisions of a City Charter. The
current Charter was approved by the electorate on June 8, 1999 and became cperative on July 1,
2000. Under the current Charter, the authority of the Mayor over the administration of City
departments was increased, while the authority of the Council particularly over decisions by boards
and commissions was decreased. The Controller was given more responsibilities including
conducting performance audits of departments. The new Charter also required the creation of a
system of self-selected advisory neighborhood councils and a Department of Neighborhood
Empowerment, and a new Office of Finance. The new Charter medified a Mayor-Council form of
City government and continued tc provide for an independently elected City Attorney and
independently elected Controller.

As Executive Officer, the Mayor supervises the administrative process of the City and works with
the Council in matters relating to legislation, budget, and finance. As governing body of the City,
the 15-member full-time Council enacts ordinances, levies taxes, approves utility rates, authorizes
contracts and public improvements, adopts zening and other land use controls, and provides the
necessary resources for the budgetary departments and offices of the City. Council action is
subject to the approval or veto of the Mayor and Council may override a Mayoral veto by a two-
thirds vote.

Public services provided by the City include: police; fire and paramedics; residential refuse
collection and disposal, wastewater collection and treatment, street maintenance, and other public
works functions; enforcement of ordinances and statutes relating to building safety; public libraries;
recreation and parks; community develecpment; housing and aging services; planning; airports;
harbor; power and water services; and convention center.

B. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the City (the primary government) consists of the funds,
departments, agencies, boards, and cemmissions for which the City is financially accountable.

Criteria indicating financial accountability include, but are not limited to, the following:

s Appointment by the City of a majority of voting members of the governing body of an
organization, and ability of the City to impose its will on the daily operations of an organization,
such as power to remove appointed members at will; to modify or approve budgets, rates or
fees; or to make other substantive decisions; or provision by the organization of specific
financial benefits to the City; or imposition by an organization of specific financial burdens on
the City, such as assumption of deficits or provision of support, or

e Fiscal dependency by the organization on the City such as lack of authority to determine a
budget, approve rates or issue its own bonded debt without City approval.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Blended Component Units
Although the following are legally separate from the City, they are repcrted as if they are part of the
City because their sole purpose is to provide services entirely to or exclusively for the City or the

City Council is the governing body.

Los Angeles Convention and Exhibition Center Authority

The Authority was formed under a joint powers agreement between the City and the County of Los
Angeles for the purpose of constructing and cperating a convention and exhibiticn hall and related
facilities within the City's boundary. The Authority is composed of 15 members, 10 are appointed
by the City Mayor and 5 are appointed by the County Board of Supervisors. Certificates of
participation debt was issued by the Authority in 1990 to provide funding for the expansion of the
existing Les Angeles Convention Center which is owned and operated by the City. The expansion
activities are included in the Other Governmental Funds. Completed capital assets have been
contributed to the Convention Center Enterprise Fund. In April 1998, the Authority issued taxable
lease revenue bonds to partially finance the City’'s share of acquiring certain real property adjacent
to the Convention Center, by the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Los Angeles,
for the development of the Staples Center. These financing activities are also included in the Other
Governmental Funds.

Los Angeles Harbor Improvement Corporation

The Corporation is a nonprofit, public benefit corporation organized for the sole purpose of
assisting the City, acting through the Board of Harbor Commissicners, in providing financing for the
acquisition, construction, replacement, or expansion of improvements to the facilities within the
area controlled by the Port of Los Angeles (Port). The Corporation is a component unit of the Port
and is included in the Harbor Enterprise Fund.

Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles

The Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles {the MICLA) was formed for the purpose
of rendering assistance to the City for financing the acquisition of properties and equipment, and
the construction of buildings and other improvements, for the benefit of City residents, through the
issuance of certificates of participation and revenue bonds. The MICLA is reported as a major
special revenue and debt service fund.

Parking Authority of the City of Los Angeles

The Authority is a public agency created by a resolution of the City Council in September 1968,
under the provisions of the Parking Law of 1949. Its purpose is to provide parking facilities for the
City. The City Council is the goveming board of the Authority. In May 1996, the City Council
approved the dissolution of the Authority and the transfer of all of its properties to the City. The
dissolution of the Authority and the transfer of its remaining assets to the City will be completed
after all obligations of the Authority to its bondholders are paid. The Authority is included in the
Other Governmental Funds.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Los Angeles {the CRA) is a governmental
entity that is legally separate from the City. It was created by the City to remove blight in
accordance with Section 33000 of the California Health and Safety Code that authorized municipal
agencies to form redevelopment areas and agencies. Under the Code, the local legislative body is
required tc approve the annual budgets and their amendments of such redevelcpment agencies,
when the local legislative body is not the governing body of the redevelopment agency. The
Council as the governing body of the City reviews certain actions of the CRA that have significant
policy or fiscal effect on the Agency, other City departments, policies, programs, or the public. A
Board consisting of seven members appcinted by the Mayor and confirmed by a maijority vote of
the City Council governs the CRA. Either the Mayor or the City Council, as joint appointing officers,
may remove members pursuant to Section 33115 of the California Health and Safety Code. The
CRA is discretely presented because its governing body is not substantially the same as the City's
governing bedy and it does not provide services entirely or exclusively to the City government.

The Cemmunity Redevelopment Financing Authority of the City of Los Angeles (CRFA) is included
as a blended component unit in the CRA financial statements. The financial statements of the CRA
reflect the aggregated amounts of financial data for the CRA govemmental and business-type
activities, presented discretely on the statement of net assets and statement of activities.

Separate audited financial statements may be obtained through the Office of the City Controller,
200 North Main Street, Room 300, Los Angeles, California 90012, for the following City
departments and component units:

Department of Airports

Department of Harbor

Department of Water and Power (DWP)

Sewer Construction and Maintenance Fund

Los Angeles City Employees’ Retirement System

Fire and Police Pension System

Water and Power Employees' Retirement, Disability and
Death Benefit Insurance Plan

Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles

Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Los Angeles

Investment in Joint Ventures
The following entities are joint ventures of the Department of Harbor:
Intermodal Container Transfer Facility Joint Powers Authority (ICTF)

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (ACTA)
Los Angeles Export Terminal, Inc. {LAXT)
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Excluded Organizations

Joint Venture

The Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission {Commission) was created by a joint powers
agreement between the City, Los Angeles County, and the California Museum of Science and
Industry, an institution of the State of California. Its purpose is to provide for the operation and
maintenance of the Coliseum and Sports Arena. The Commission is not a City function and
operates independent of City oversight and financial accountability. The City appointees comprise

33% of the Commission.

Related Organization

The Housing Authority of the City of Los Angeles is an organization for which the City has
appeinted the voting majority of the members of the governing body but for which the City is not
financially accountable.

The City retains and exercises its authority over the entity only as provided by the municipal code
and Federal laws. The entity is fiscally independent from the City. The City is unable to impose its
will on the daily operations of the entity. The City's accountability to this entity is limited to removal
of a commissioner by the Mayor cor the entire board by the City Council for cause and under due
process.

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements {i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from its
legally separate component unit, which is presented discretely.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or program. Included in the direct expenses are indirect costs,
such as fringe benefits, administrative overhead, and liability claims, which were automatically
allocated tc the specific function or program. Charges for workers’ compensation, information
technolegy services, telephone, postage, and fleet services are not allocated and are included as
part of the general government functional activity. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and pension
trust fund financial statements. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recegnized when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the medified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current peried. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded when
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures are recorded
only when payment is due, while expenditures related tc compensated absences, claims and
judgments, and landfill closure and postclosure care costs are recognized to the extent that they
are normally expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources and are due and
payable at year-end.

Revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, business taxes, sales taxes, utility users
taxes, transient occupancy tax, charges for services, special assessments, franchise income,
licenses and permits, and interest income. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to
Federal and State grants and subventions, revenues are recognized when applicable eligibility
requirements, including time requirements, are met and the resources are available.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
other funds.

The Proposition A Local Transit Assistance Fund accounts for the City's 25% share of the
additional one-half cent sales tax within the County of Los Angeles to (a) improve and
expand existing public transit Countywide, including reduction of transit fares, (b) construct
and operate a rail rapid transit system, and {c) mcre effectively use State and Federal
funds, benefit assessments, and fares.

The Proposition C Anti-Gridlock Transit Improvement Fund accounts for the City's 20%
share of the additional one-half cent sales tax within the County of Los Angeles to improve
transit service and operations, reduce ftraffic congestion, improve air quality and the
condition of streets and freeways utilized by public transit, and reduce foreign fuel
dependence.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Recreation and Parks Fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures of the
Department of Recreation and Parks in operating and maintaining parks, playgrounds,
swimming pools, public golf courses, recreaticn centers, recreation camps and educational
facilities, and structures of historical significance.

The Special Gas Tax Street Improvement Fund accounts for the revenues received from the
State for the City's share of the gasoline tax and Traffic Congestion Relief Fund to be used
for preservation, maintenance, and rehabilitation of local street and road system. The fund
also accounts for federal grants from the Surface Transportation Program to finance the
upgrade of the most heavily traveled highways.

The Community Development Fund accounts for the Block Grant funds allocated by the
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the development
of viable urban communities, including: decent housing and suitable living environment;
expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate income;
and physical improvements to communities accompanied by supportive social services.

The Municipal Improvement Corporation Funds account for the activity of the City's public
financing entity component unit which finances the acquisition of properties and equipment,
the construction of buildings, and other improvements for the benefit of City residents. The
assets acquired or constructed by the Corporation are leased to the City under long-term
capital lease agreements and become property of the City at the termination of the lease.
The effects of the capital lease arrangements have been eliminated from the basic financial
statements.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Airports Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and development of City
airports, namely: Los Angeles Intemational Airport, Ontario International Airport, Van Nuys
Airport and Palmdale Regional Airport.

The Harbor Fund accounts for the operations of the Port of Los Angeles, including
operations of a pilotage service, lease of land and facilities and production of oil in the
Harbor District.

The Power and Water Funds account for the operations of the Department of Water and
Power in supplying the City and its inhabitants with water and electric power by
constructing, operating, and maintaining facilities located throughout the City and Inyo and
Mono Counties.

The Sewer Fund accounts for the construction, operations and maintenance of the City's
wastewater collection and treatment system.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the City's three contributory defined
benefit pension plans namely: Los Angeles City Employees’ Retirement System
(LACERS); Fire and Police Pension System (Pensions); and Water and Power Employees’
Retirement, Disability and Death Benefit Insurance Plan (DWP Retirement Plan).

The Agency Funds account for assets held by the City as an agent for others, for example:
Federal and State income taxes withheld from employees; and assessments for payments
of certain conduit debt.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the govemment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board {GASB). Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds subject to this same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's business-type
activities and certain other governmental functions. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Revenues that do not meet the criteria to be reported
as pregram revenues are reported as general revenues. All taxes, even those levied for specific
purpose, are reported as general revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing concern operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services while operating expenses
include cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all Proprietary Fund cash and pooled investments
with the City Treasurer, cash deposits and other short-term investments that are both readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and have maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. At June 30, 2006, the Proprietary
Funds' investments held by escrow and fiscal agents of $1,178.6 million and other investments of
$6 million have maturities beyond three months and therefore are not considered cash and cash
equivalents.

Inventories

Inventories for matenals and supplies, valued at average cost for the governmental activities and
govemmental funds, consist of expendable supplies held for consumption and are recorded as
expenditures when purchased in the fund financial statements, but are recorded as expenses when
consumed in the governmental activities statement of activities.

For the business-type activities and proprietary funds, inventories for materials and supplies are
stated at average cost. Fuel is recorded at lower of cost or market on average cost basis.

The CRA land inventory, which is reported at cost, is acquired for eventual disposition for housing
and commercial redevelopment projects.

Restricted Assets

The restricted assets for govemmental activities and governmental funds are related to the State
mandated deposit with a trustee bank to finance solid waste landfill closure and posiclosure care
costs, donated resources for the renovation of the Griffith Observatory, and allocations from the
State’s Traffic Congestion and Relief Fund for street or road maintenance or reconstruction. For
the business-type activities and proprietary funds, amounts are reserved for accumulated
rescurces for debt service payments, nuclear decommissioning trust funds, postretirement
healthcare benefits trust fund, collected but unexpended passenger facility charges and accrued
interest thereon, a self-insurance reserve, deposits from service users, and retention guarantees
from contractors.

For the CRA, included in this account are investments maintained with fiscal agents for payment of
principal and interest on tax allocation bonds, and securities pledged as collateral on loans for
which it is directly or contingently liable.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets {e.g. streets and
bridges) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
govemment-wide statement of net assets. Generally, assets with an individual cost of at least
$5,000 and an estimated useful life of more than one year are capitalized. Purchased or
constructed capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Assets acquired by donaticn are recorded at estimated fair value on
the date received.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects are constructed.

The business-type activities and proprietary funds capitalize interest costs, or in the case of the
Power and Water Enterprise Funds, provide an “"allowance for funds used during construction
(AFUDC)." Interest and AFUDC capitalized during the year ended June 30, 2006 were $4.8 million
and $5.1 million, respectively.

Depreciation, which includes amortization of assets under capital leases, is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful or service lives of the related assets, except as
noted below.

Depreciation for the Power Enterprise Fund facilities completed prior to July 1, 1973 is computed
by the 5% sinking fund method based on estimated service lives. Decommissioning of a nuclear
power plant, in which the City has an ownership interest, is expected to commence subsequent to
the year 2024. The total cost to decommission the City's interest in the nuclear plant is estimated to
be $130 millien in 2004 dollars. During fiscal year 2000, DWP suspended contributing additional
amounts to the trust funds, as management believes that contribution to date combined with
reinvested eamings, will be sufficient to fully fund DWP’s share of decommissioning costs. As of
June 30, 2006, Power Enterprise Fund has recorded $116.6 million to accumulated depreciation to
provide for the decommissioning liability.

The Power Enterprise Fund’s nuclear fuel is amortized and charged to cperating expenses- fuel for
generation on the basis of actual thermal energy produced relative to total thermal energy
expected to be produced over the life of the fuel.

In July 20035, the Power Enterprise Fund acguired approximately a 74.5% ownership interest in gas
properties located in Pinedale, Wyoming. The Fund uses the successful efforts method of
accounting for its investment in gas producing properties. Costs to acquire the mineral interest in
gas properties, to drill and equip exploratory wells that find proven reserves, and to drill and equip
development wells are capitalized. Costs to drill exploratory wells that do not find proven reserves
are expensed. Capitalized costs of preducing gas properties are depleted by the unit-of-production
methed based on the estimated future production of the proved developed producing wells.
Depletion expense related to the gas field is recorded as a component of operating expenses- fuel
for generation. During fiscal year 2006, the Fund recorded $12.9 million of depletion expense.

The estimated useful lives of the primary government’s capital assets are as follows:

Useful Life
Governmental  Business-type
Category Activities Activities

Infrastructure 20 - 138 years --
Buildings and facilities 40 - 50 years 10 -75 years
Equipment and vehicles 3- 30years 3-20 years
Wastewater collection system -- 80 years
Landplane ports -- 10 - 35